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Our vision is to provide
affordable access to exercise
facilities and expert help

to every person who wants
to improve their wellbeing,
whatever their starting point,
whatever their destination.
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2015 Highlights

2015 has been a landmark year for
The Gym As well as delivering strong
revenue and profit growth we have
completed a successful IPO on the
London Stock Exchange

Highlights O

Note Refer to page 22 for definitlons of key performance indicators

Strategic d Financial
Repaort Statements,

Operational highhghts

Successful
IPO on the
London Stock
Exchange

376,000
members
at the end
of 2015

19 new gym
openings in
2015, bringing
total to 74

Strong
pipeline
for 2016

O

o1



At a Glance

The Gym Group plc © Annual Report and Accounts 2015 © Overview

flexible
ow cost

no-contract

membership

Our strengths

Disruptive business model

The orniginal provider of low cost gym
facilites, we provide 24/7, flexible gym
memberships to deliver value-for-money
for all of our members

Despite our market leading prices,
our gyms are fitted out 1o a high
specification and are well-equipped,
with an average of 170 equipment
stations per gym

02

Technology driven

Our technology-led operating model
enables us to contnually improve our
member experience, Inform our
operating and business strategy with
comprehensive data and manage cur
costs to deliver a graat price, strong
margins and a high return on capial

High quality gym estate

Our rigorous site selection process
and flexible model deliver high returns
across a wide vanety of locations and
property types

Our gyms are located 1n accessible,
densely populated areas and provide
a great environment far our members
with lots of space and light




Financtal

Strategic )
Overvew Hepogn ¢ " \Statament

Our gym locations in the UK

We currently operate 74 gyms across the UK which
are virtually all open 2477 All of our sites have easy
access to car parking or are close to major transport
hubs Our gyms are bright and spacious with high
quality showers and changing facilities and a wide

vanety of gym eguipment.

www thegymgroup com/find-a-gym/

376,000

MEMBERS

03
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Our Journey

The Gym Group was founded in 2007

by our Chief Executive Officer, John Treharne —
a former England national team squash player
with extensive expenence In the health and
fitness sector — and Bridges Ventures LLP.

2007 O

The Gym was founded
by John Treharne with
backing from Bridges

Ventures

2008

GYMS 1
MEMBERS 7,000

2009

GYMS b
MEMBERS 26,000

04

John and Brndges Ventures recogrused that
there was a significant opportunity in the UK
health and fitness market for a low cost gym
offering, with low cost gym membership in
the UK being significantly lower than in a
number of other countries and with price
being 1denufied as the largest obstacle to
aym participatton in the UK

The founding concept was to prowvide
high quality gym-only facilities to a wide
demaographic through 24/7 opening hours,
no fixed-term membership contract and
an affordable monthly membership fee

a strong
track record

2008 ©

The first gym opened
In Hounslow

2010

GYMS 10
MEMBERS 58,000

2011 (V)

Awarded Budget Gym
of the Year at the
National Fitness Awards

2011

GYMS 16
MEMBERS 36,000




GYMS 74
MEMBERS 376,000

acq a
hhhhhhhhhhhh

2014

GYMS 55
MEMBERS 293,000

202 O

GYMS 40
MEMBERS 225,000

2012

GYMS 32
MEMBERS 166,000

05
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Chairwoman’s Statement

2015 was an excellent year for The Gym Revenue
Increased by 31.9% to £60.0 million, Group Adjusted
EBITDA increased by 15.9% to £17.0 million and 19 new
gyms were opened during the year. This demonstrates
the ability of the business to dnve top and bottom line
growth by growing the estate efficiently and meeting

the needs of our members.

Penny Hughes CBE
Chairwoman

O

We are delighted to have histed on the Fult
List of the London Stock Exchange and
welcome our new shareholders to this
exciting business The business has a
well-defined operating and financial model
and has further strengthened its balance
sheet to support future growth We are well
positioned to take advantage of the
substantial opportunity in the market

My first impressions

I joined The Gym shortly before the IPO of
the Company | am pleased to share with
you my first Impressions This 1s a busmess
which has pioneered the low cost gym
medel It has a clear strategy and a
passionate culture with the aim of providing
every member the very best experience
Supported by a knowledgeable and
expenenced property team, it selects
excellent sites that meet strict critena

and deliver high returns in a reassunngly
predictable way Operating a flexible,

low cost, disruptive, technology led model,
The Gym operates efficiently and

1s now driving further benefits from its
increased scale

The fact that The Gym has all these
attnbutes as a relatively young business
with much potential is testament to an
expenenced, talented and driven
management team led by the Company’s
founder, John Treharne

delivering

profitable

growth and

high returns

on capital

Cé

Future growth will enable the Company

to further 1ts vision to provide affordable
exercise facilities to every person who wants
to improve their wellbeing, a very positve
purpose for a company

Strong governance

Strong governance is about putting in place
a system and an openness to challenge

in order to make good decisions At [PO

we strengthened our Board processes

and committee structures, and we expect
to appoint an additional Non-Executive
Director In the coming months to complete
this process There Is a strong commitment
to a well organised and efhicient Board to
support the Executive team, and to enable
swift and confident decision making ‘

Looking ahead

The Gym has extensive opportunities !
to grow In the years ahead Our low cost,

no contract, high quality, 24 hour gym
membership 15 highly attracuve in today’s
fast mowving, value conscious society

Our proposition 1s extremely competitive
within the wider gym market and we are
evidencing new members Jjoining us from
traditional higher cost gyms and other
health and fitness operators Importantly,
more than a third of our new members are
experiencing gym membership for the first
ume We look forward to reaching more
communities as we open more gyms to
prowide thern with the same encouragement
to enhance their wellbeing

Our people are vital in delivering an
outstanding service to our members | am
pleased to announce that in the coming
weeks we plan to introduce a scheme where
all of our staff will have the opportunity to
become shareholders in the business

I am delighted to have been appointed
Chairwoman | believe The Gym, with its
attractive financial model and successful
growth strategy, 1s well positioned to
continue to enhance and create value for
institutional and employee shareholders
as we work every day to provide our
members with an excellent expenence

Panny Hughes
Chairwoman
14 March 2016




Chief Executive’'s Review

The Gym I1s the onginal pioneer of low cost gyms In the

UK that are open 24/7. Underlying our disruptive concept

Is that we offer the products that members want at
market leading prices without compromising on quality
or fundamentals

| am pleased to present my first Chief
Executive’s Review following our
listing on the Full List of the London
Stock Exchange in November 2015

John Treharne o
Chief Executive Officer

Introduction

This has been a landmark year for cur
business with a recard number of new site
openings, Increasing our estate to 74 sites
at 31 December 2015 from 55 In the prior
year Our financial metrics reflect the rapid
growth that we have delivered Total year
end members increased by 28 3% to

376 000 {2014 293,000), revenue of £600
million {2014 £45 5 millien), an increase of
319%, and Group Adjusted EBITDA of
€170 milllon, an increase of 15 9%

204 £147 miflion)

We are a market leader in the low cost
sector, enabling us to realise the benefits of
increased scale to drive down operational
and capital costs and deliver higher returns
Low cost gyms are a fast growing market,
and we continue to drive the expansion of
the sector by attracting members that are
new to the gym market and also from more
traditional gym operators We constantly
seek out ways to (mprove our business
model to capitalise on this market
opportunity Equally, the strength of our
financial covenant means that we are
offered the best sites by landlords which
underpins the growth of our estate and

our pipeline

£16 AVERAGE
MEMBERSHIP
FEE

Finencial

Strateglc
Statements,

Report

Strategic progress

Delivering performance from gyms

Our business model is straightforward

with new sites taking time to reach maturity
Once mature they generate excellent levels
of cash and good returns We have been
accelerating our rollout programme and so
at the end of 2015, 34 of our 74 sites had
been open for less than two years We can
expect to benefit from the growth of these
sites as they mature during the current year
and beyond

Improving cperating efficiencies

Our business model strips out the elements
of the more traditional proposition that

add unnecessary cost and are barely

used, enabling us to operate a low cost
environment As we grow we will use the
benefits of scale and operating expertise
to continue to take costs out of the way that
we deliver the business model We deliver
as low a cost base as possible This enables
us to pass on these benefits to the
members through charging sorme of the
lowest prices in the sector The Gym
charges an average fee of £16 per month

An exercise to renegotiate operating cost
contracts has identfied £1 million of
annualised savings on an ongoing bass
and was implemented durng the year

o7
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

Achieving our rollout strategy

The Gym operates a flexible low cost mode!
that can be used in many different types of
location There remain substanual growth
opportunities to expand our footprint across
the UK In 2015, gyms opened In sites
previously used as retall space {Bedfard
and Reading) and a gentlemen’s club
(Charing Cross) We also opened a gym as
part of a leisure park regeneration scheme
(Hemel Hempstead), as well as gym spaces
vacated by other operators (Eastbourne,
Croydon Purley Way and Derby) Cur new
sites continue to trade well, in ine with our
expectations Our pipeline 1s expanding
rapidly We are well positioned to open
between 15 and 20 gyms in total in 2016 and
per year thereafter over the medum term
The pipeline 1s stronger than at any point In
our history, landlerds are also recognising
the strength of our covenant, assisted
further by our newly acquired status as

a publicly listed company

We continue to refine and reduce the cost
of bullding and fitting out a new site where
we are provided with a clean shell by the
landlerd Savings have been achieved on
multiple stages of the fit-out process,
including bulld costs, gym equipment and
fixtures and fitungs

This 1s demonstrated by the decrease in
the initial cost to fit out a new gym, from an
average of £1 5 millon for the 2008 to 2014
portfolio to an average cost of approximatety
£1 .35 million for the 2015 gyms

Developing the customer proposition

The low cost sector Is still at an early stage
aof development in the UK, particularly
compared with older, low cost gym markets
in matnland Eurcpe and the United States
We continue to evolve our concept to
address the needs of our members

This 1s achieved by monitoring customer
feedback closely to ensure that we provide
what members want at affordable prices
During 2015 we expanded group exercise
classes In response to feedback from
members Similarly, scientific analysis of
actual usage patterns ndicated that
members wanted additional space
allocated for hghter free weights The Gym
also benefited from a brand relaunch to
emphasise our brand personality at our
sites We are applying this to the new sites
as we develop them, ensuring there 1s
consistency acress the sites as well as in
our marketing messaging This new
brandmg will be rolled out into some

of our earher sites as they come up

for refurbishment

a landmark

year

delivering
strategic
progress

08

Monitaring member feedback about our
offer and the service that we provide I1s a
core companent of the development of our
business Examples of feedback include
measuring the use of machines to enable
us to understand when to change the
equipment In our gyms, ensuring that what
we provide 15 In line with what members
want to use Equally we analyse our site
openings to understand the demographics
of cur membership base and aid our
dacision making for future site acquisition
Member feadback about our operational
performance i1s measured through Net
Promoter Score with a score of 60 2%
achieved in 2015 Our online measure of
customer satisfaction, Feefo, score was
94% for the year The business 1s constantly
evolving the way It collects this type

of feedback

Focusing on our pacple

Cur people are instrumental to runming

a successful business The Gym Is made
up of 74 gyms that act as local businesses
drawing on a network of central head cffice
support to fulfil their operational goals

As we grow we continue to enhance the
quality of support to this network of sites

A regional operations structure has been
put In place, along with the expansion of our
commercial team to explore further revenue
opportunities and enhance our monitoning
of suppliers We operate an outsourced
support model where services are provided
through a number of key suppliers

Our people are highly engaged, passicnate
and committed We have achieved a two
star 'Qutstanding’ award In the Best
Companies accreditauon which measures
workplace engagement The Company
recently achleved the Investors in People
Silver award and 1s currently applying for
the Gold award The business continues to
be the only low cost fithess provider with
such accreditation

We are pleased to give our people the
opportunity to share in the success of

the Group [n the coming weeks we will
introduce an all-staff share scheme where
all of our people will be granted an award
of £1,000 free shares and also have the
opportunity to nvest in additional shares




Qur use of technology

Technology and systems are at the heart
of our business and facilitate the low cost
environment that we operate A simple
online joining process is cntical to

our model We are exploring ways to
upgrade our capability in this area with
the development of a new member
management system Qur goal s for
members to access therr data in a

more efficient way and for the busimess
to communicate with members

more effectively

The business moved to a new email sales
platform dunng the year that will enable us
to reach new and lapsed members more
effectively More of our marketing 1s now
online as we expand the scope of Pay per
Chck and Search Engine Cptimisation

At the heart of our marketing effort 1s our
ability to drive potential members n a local
catchment to our website to join up This
critical difference in operation to the
traditional health club market helps us to
attract over 35% first trme gym users Cur
24[7, CCTV controlled environment attracts
awider cross section of people who wish
to exercise outside traditional gym opening
hours when it suits them As a result, over
a third of the membership base are shift
workers such as doctors, nurses, bus
drnivers, taxi drivers, hote! and restaurant
workers, who find traditional opeming hours
too restrictive

Qutlook

The new iinancia! year has started well

and in ine with the Board's expectations
January and February are the two most
significant trading months of the year for any
gym business Membership numbers at the
end of February had increased to 418,000,

a record level with an 11 2% ncrease since
December 2015 This level of member
growth will help to underpin our performance
for the rest of the year The pipeline
continues to be strong and we expect to
open 15 to 20 aites in the current year As in
2015 these site openings will be weaighted

to the second half of the year, with six sites
expected to be open in the first half of the
year and a further four locations where
contractors are on site

Five months into our life as a public
company our strategic priorities and
financial results are progressing well
Qur focus 1s on creating value for both
our members and our shareholders

The Strategic Report has been approved
by the Board and signed on its behalf by

John Treharne
Chief Executive Officer
14 March 2016

NET
PROMOTER
SCORE 60.27.

N

Overview

Strategic
Raport

Governance

Financtal

Statements,
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Market Review

The UK health and fitness club market
has expenenced significant growth in
recent years, with the low cost segment
driving Increases In membership.

£4.3bn
UK GYM
MARKET
VALUE

147, MARKET

PENETRATION

there is

Overview

The UK health and fitness club market has
grown significantly over recent years, with
annual membership revenue increasing
from £3 6 billion 1n 2007 to £4 3 billion

In 2015' 2

Membership numbers also increased,

with 7 2 millon members across a total of
5,714 clubs in 2007, compared to 8 8 millon
members and 6,312 clubs in 2015'2

Part of the growth has been driven by an
increase In market penetration, which has
rnisen from 12% in 2007 to 14% in 2015'2

This growth can be attnbuted to a number
of factors, including increased consumer
awareness of the benefits of an active
ifestyle, and vanous govemnment nibatives
to promote healthier iving

However, potential health and fitness club
members are sull deterrad fram joining a
gym due to the high cost of membersh:p
fees, being tied into a long-term contract,
lack of accessibility and inconventent
opening times?

We believe that recent growth in the
market, combined with changing
consumer demands, presents a compelling
opportunity for investors The Gym Group,
with its innovative and disruptive business
model, 1s perfectly positioned to explont

this epportunity

A fragmented market

The market 1s charactensed by two types
of operator public clubs funded by local
authorities representing 43 8% of the
market, and private clubs funded and
operated by commercial enterprises
representung 56 2% of the market

substantial
opportunity

in the

UK low cost
gym segment

10

The Group operates within the UK private
health and fitness club market which 1s
highly fragmented with over 1,800 operators
and 55 million members The ten largest
operatars account for only 18% of

the market (by number of gyms) with 647
clubs In operation as at 31 March 2015'

The private market comprises two main
types of operator traditicnal and low cost
The key differenttators between traditonal
and low cost gyms are pricing, contract
terms and the facihues on offer Traditional
clubs often require their members to sign
up 1o a fixed-term contract which typically
includes early termination fees Tradltional
clubs are often larger in size, with a wide
range of faciiies avallable such as
swimming pools and saunas, racquet sports
and member sccial areas Traditional
cperators generally have higher operating
costs compared to low cost clubs due to
therr larger size, higher staff count (for
example, many clubs will have a dedicated
in-club sales and marketing team) and
higher matntenance costs

Low cost clubs are those belonging to

a health club chamn with a non-contract
membership option that 1s usually less

than £20 per month? Low cost clubs oifer

a more focused product for consumers
who only want to pay for and use core
fitness equipment such as cardiovascular
machines, resistance training machines and
free weights, and fitness studios Low cost
membership arrangements are typically
more flexible than those of traditonal
operators with imited or no fixed-term
contracts and easy signup and cancellation
polictes In addition to flexible membership
terms, the low cost gym segment also
offers increased accessibility to gyms with
longer opening hours compared to the
traditional sector

Advantages of the operating model
The Gym Group’s disruptive and low

cost operating model has a number of
advantages which have developed as

the market has matured, the number of
successful operators has decreased and
the proven capabilities of expernenced
providers such as The Gym has increased




These include

1) ability to source sites

Sourcing bulldings in the nght locations,
with the nght layout and demographic
profife requires an expernenced property
team and strong leasing covenant

1) scale advantages

Operating margins and returns on capital
are improved by leveraging scale to
purchase more efficiently and amortise
one-off or fixed costs across a larger estate

) access to capital

A proven track record enables access o a
wider pool of capital to support sustained
growth, making raising capital difficult for
new entrants or smaller operators

v} technology

Use of bespoke technology minimises the
requirement for large back office support
functions engaged in data processing
and collection

v) data analytics

We have an advantage over most other
operators since we have bullt a business on
capturing high levels of quality data which
we use to improve the proposition and aid
site selection

Growth opportunity

The UK private health and fitness club
market has grown from 3,146 clubs in 2011

to 3,550 In 2015 This has largely been

driven by the expansion of the low cost

gym segment which has taken market share
from traditional operators as well as growing
the overall size of the market Within the
traditional sector, the number of gyms has
only iIncreased marginally from 3,088 in 2011

to 3,231 in March 2015, while the number of
members has fallen from 4 3 milion to

41 million over the same period The decline
in membership 1s partly due to a number of
traditional aperators exiting the market or
downsizing thelr portfolios as well as
traditonal operators losing members to low
cost operators However, tha number of low
cost gyms has grown from 58 in 2011 t¢ 319
In 2015 and membership has grown rapidly
from © 2 million to 13 million over the

same pernod'

As at March 2015, the top three operators
had approxirnately 74% market share of low
cost gym members and accounted for 70%
of low cost gym openings from March 2013
to March 2015's

From our well-developed, disruptive
business model and our current position
within the top three operators The Gym 1s
well placed to explort the opportunities
within the UK health and fithess sector

1 Leisure Database Company 2015 State of the UK
Fitness Industry Report

Lelsure Database Company data

Mintel Group Lirited Health and Fitness Clubs UK
July 2019

Leisure Database Company 2011 State of the UK
Fitness Industry Report

Lelsure Database Company 2013 State of the UK
Fitness Industry Report

Company analysis

Leisure Database Company data

~o; L4 F Y Lo

Strateqic overnance

Report

Competition®

Number of clubs as
at February 2016

Pure Gym 137
The Gym Group 74
FitdLess 47
Xerasedless 35
EasyGym 14
TruGym 12
Fitness4dl ess 12
Simply Gym n
ActivedLess 10
FitSpace 8

Financtal

Statemants,

1
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Business Model

a disruptive

busi
mode

An attractive
membership
proposition

Nness

Driven by
technology

+ Flexible membership options
e 24/7 access
» No fixed term contract
» Transparent, low pncing

= High quality gym experience
» Wide range of high specification equipment
« Well Iit, safe, clean and well
maintaingd facilites
» Professional, helpful staff

+ Easy online joining and member management process

12

« Online services enhance the member expenence

= Automated access control and 24 hour CCTV
enhances safety and reduces staff costs

+ Comprehensive data dnives better commercial
decisions

« Electronic monitoring of gym equipment usage
means fit-outs are tallored to member requirements




Strategie _ Financial
C""‘"‘“” OVRINANCY  (grataments,

The Gym Group
delivers a compelling
customer proposition
through its disruptive,
low cost, technology-led
business model.

Efficient
operational
structure

s Fit-out costs and underutilised gym floor space
Is minimised

« Staffing model means gym staff ime Is maximised
to dedicate time to supporting members

+ Outsourced support functions to reduce costs
and enable focus on core operations

« Flexible and intensive use of space

13
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Delivering our Business Model

flexible

membership
to suit

every

lifestyle

Traditional gyms The Gym Benefits for members
+ Limited opening hours + 2417 opening hours . Orening times suit
all hfestyles and
occupations
« Fixed term contracts « No fixed term contract « Increased flexibility

High membership fees

Expensive, under-
utilised facilities e.g.
swimming pools

L]

» 55 equipment stations
per gym on average

14

o » £16 typical monthly cost O » Value-for-money
membership

« Gyms fitted out based « Equipment and fit-out
on member appeals to a wide range
requirements of members

. 170 equipment stations » Plenty of equipment
per gym on average choice, even at

peak times




“Even when I'm training, | feel
relaxed at The Gym. It’s the little
things that make the experience

great — The Gym is well

maintained, tidy and the
cleanliness I1s second-to-none.
The staff make everyone feel
welcome, no matter If they're
shy, what their age or what
therr body shape 1s”

LLOYD
GYM MEMBER
CROYDON
PURLEY WAY

15
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Delivering our Business Model continued

usin

technology

to enhance
the member

Joining

In The Gym

experience

Ongoing

Joining The Gym 1s a simple online
process that can be completed in
minutes Membership and joining
fees can be paid by credit or debit
card, PayPal and direct debit
Members can also join using
in-gym kiosks

16

Members enter the gym using an
automated portal, which enables
our gyms to open 24/7 We provide
a safe environment using
monitored CCTV and emergency
help points We analyse detailled
usage data to ensure the selection
of gym equipment I1s tailored to
our members' requirements

Members can manage therr
accounts, view the gymiit class
timetable, book exercise classes
and book personal training
SessIons using computer, tablet
or mobile We use emall, SMS
and social media to communicate
with our members and our
comprehensive database

to constantly improve our
marketing strategy




Strateglc

Report

1overnance

Financial

Statements;
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Delivering our Business Model continued

delivered
with a
high quality

estate

Using our
network

Securing competitive
leases

A variety of
building types

We have a strong network of
property agents, landlords and
developers that provide us with
access to a large number of
site opportunities

Cur highly experienced

property team operates a
rgorous acquisition process

to obtain high quality sites that
meet our target return on capital

Our proven track record, growth
and financial results provide us
with the ability to negotiate
competitive arrangements

with landlords

Our leases are typically

15 years long with 12 month

rent free periods and step-up
provisions every five years

This gives us visibility of our future
property costs and protects us
from volaulity in market rents

Cur flexible fit-out approach
means we are able to use a
wide vanety of bullding types
We have gyms located in
residential schemes, mixed
leisure developments and office
buldings In 2015 we opened our
Charing Cross gym in a former
gentlemen's ¢club

Having a wide choice of locations
means that we can be more
flexible In selecting sites that
meet our acquisition critera
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Our Strategy

The Gym Group's strategy Is to continue
our strong track record of opening and
operating high quality, low cost gyms
and deliver profitable growth and strong
returns on capital The key elements

of the Group’s strategy arer

Drive the performance of O
recently opened gyms

The operational and financial perfoermance
of gyms apened as part of the rallout
strategy and stll maturing are key In
delivenng profitable growth

We will continue to focus on improving
member satisfaction, increasing
membership and optimising yleld

Improve operating efficiencies (B

We will seek to reduce gym fit-out costs
and improve operating efficiencies,
benefitting from scale acocnomies

We will do this by using competitive
tender processes, negotiating improved
terms with supplers and value
engineenng the fit-out specification

to avold unnecessary cost

We will leverage our head office cost
base as our portfolio grows

20

Progress

In 2015 our mature sites contributed
€18 8 million towards aur EBITDA,
compared to £16 2 mullion in 2014

We expect this contribution to
Increase In the future as the large
number of sites opened In the last
two years reach matunty

Progress

Group Adjusted EBITDA Margin
decreased as a result of investment
in key central functlons to support
future growth and the rollout strategy
resulting Iin the opening of some
gyms with a smaller footprint

An exercise to renegotiate operating
cost contracts has identified

£1 milhon of annualised savings

on an ongoing basis and was
implemented dunng the year




Rollout and expansion (V)

We believe that there I1s a significant
growth opportunity for low cost gyms
in the UK The Group i1s well placed to
capitalise on this growth opportunity
and is well-positoned to open between
15 and 20 gyms per year over the
medium term

We will consider the selective acquisition
of extsting gyms when there are
appropriate opportunities

Continue to improve the O
member proposition

By focusing on improving the Group's
proposition and member satisfaction, we
believe that membership numbers will
increase and there should be an
opportunity to increase pricing and

yield over ume

We will lock to offer more services and
products that enhance the expenence
of our members

Focus on people O

Attractuing, mouvaung and training people
of the highest calibre, with the desire and
shility to operate within our values and
culture, I1s key to our continued success

See the relevant nsks that
might Impact progress on
p 28-29

Investors In Paople
Silver

Best Companies
Two Star Outstanding

Strategic
Overview Report

Progress
In 2015 we opened 19 new gyms

Our pipeline 1s stronger than ever
befare, with six sites expected to be
open in the first half of the year and
a further four where contractors are
on site

Progress

During the year we introcduced group
exercise sessions following positive
customer feedback from in-gym tnals.

We also added group exercise
activity space and larger free
weights areas where possible In our
gyms In response to analysis of
usage patterns

We began measuring Net Promoter
Scare In May 2015 and achieved

an average score of 60 2% for

the penod

Progress

We continue to be the only low cost
fithess provider with a silver
Investors In People award

In 2016 we will introduce a scheme
where all of our staff will have the
opportunity to become shareholders
in the business
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Key Performance Indicators

We use a number of financial and
non-financial key performance
indicators (‘KPIs’) to measure our
performance over time

Financial (]

Revenue £m

Definition
Revenue Is generated from membershlp fees and anclllary servicas
such as vending Income

2015 performance
Revenue Increased by 31 9% as a result of increased member numbers
and a 0 7% Increase In average revenue per member per month

Group Adjusted EBITDA £m

Definition
Group Adjusted EBITDA Is calculated as operating profit before
depreciation amortisation exceptional items and other Income

2015 performance

Group Adjusted EBITDA increased by 15 9% largely due to the increase
Iin the number of gyms in operation resulting from the Group’s ongoing
rallout strategy

Group Adjusted EBITDA before Pre-Opening Costs £m

Definition
Group Adjusted EBITDA before Pre-Opening Costs is defined as Group
Ad]usted EBITDA excluding the costs agsociated with new site openings

2015 performance
Group Ad|usted EBITDA before Pre-Opening Costs has Increased by
18 1% reflecting the Increase in the gym estate

22

Group Operating Cash Flow £m

Definitien
Group Operating Cash Flow is calculated as Group Adjusted
EBITDA less working capital less mantenance capital expenditures

Malntenance capital expenditure compnses the replacement of gym
equipment and premises refurbishment

2015 performance
Group Operating Cash Flow increased by 12 7% due to an increase
in Group Adjusted EBITDA and efficient use of working capltal

Group Operating Cash Flow Conversion %

Definition
Group Operating Cash Flow Conversion is calculated as Group
Operating Cash Flow as a percentage of Group Adjusted EBITDA

2015 performance

Group Operating Cash Flow Conversion decreased as a result of
increased maintenance capital expenditure dus to the growing estata
but sull remalns high

Expansionary Capital Expenditure ¢m

Definttion

Expansionary Capital Expenditure Is the expenditure in relation to the
fit-out of new gyms Expanslanary Capital Expenditurs 1s stated gross
of amounts funded by hinance leases

2015 performance

Expansionary Capital Expenditure has increased by 38 8% due to
19 sites being opened in 2015 compared @ 15 openings In 2014 and
also due to iming differences In payments

Excluding cash flow timing differences, Expansionary Capital
Expenditure was £26 7 milion in 2015 and £22 3 million in 2014
Included in 2015 1s £11 million related to enhancements and
IT projects.




Financial O

Net Debt £m

Definition
Net Debt Is defined as borrowings from bank facillties and finance
leases less cash and cash equivalents

2015 performance

Net Debt has reduced slgnlficantly due to proceeds received fram the
Groups IPO being used ta repay existing third party debt and internal
cash generation

Non-Financial O

Total Number of Gyms

2015 performance
The Group opened 19 gyms in 2015 as part of the rollout strategy

Total Number of Membaers ‘000

Definition
Number of members reflects gym memberships at the year end

2015 performance
The 28 3% increase in member numbers was primarily due to sites
reaching matunity and the opening of 18 gyms during 2015

Average Revenue per Member per Month £

Definition

Average Revenue per Member per Month is calculated as revenue
drded by the average number of members diided by the number of
months in the penod

2015 perfarmance
Average Revenue per Member per Month increased by 07% due to the
strong performance of new sites

See the relevant KPIs against
our strategy on p.20-21

Strategic
Cwverviaw Report

Net Debt to Group Adjusted EBITDA

Definition
Net Debt to Group Ad|usted EBITDA is defined as Net Debt as
a proportion of Group Adjusted EBITDA

2015 performance
Net Dabt to Group Adjusted EBITDA has reduced significantly due te tha
reduction in Net Debt

Number of Mature Gyms in Operation

Definition
Mature gyms are defined as gyms that have been open for 24 months or
more measured at the end of the year

2015 performance
The Group's pregressive rollout strategy means that gyms opened in
2013 are censiderad to be Mature in 2015

Mature Gym Site EBITDA £m

Definitich
Mature Gym Site EBITDA is calculated as Group Adjusted EBITDA
contributed by the mature gym portfolic

2015 parformance
Mature Gym site EBITDA has increased by 15 9% due to the gyms
opened In 2013 reaching maturlty in the current year
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Financial Review

The Group delivered ancther excellent
performance in 2015, with revenue growth
of 31.9% and Group Adjusted EBITDA
growth of 15.9%, with strong performances
from both mature and new gyms

Richard Darwin o
Cheef Financial Officer

3197
REVENUE
GROWTH

15.9%
GROUP
ADBJUSTED
EBITDA
GROWTH
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Summary 2015 2014

£000 £000
Total number of gyms 74 55
Number of year end members (000) 378 293
Revenue 59,979 45,480
Group Adjusted EBITDA! 17.016 14,688
Group Adjusted EBITDA before Pre-Opening Costs? 19,681 16,668
Adjusted Earnings?® (1,107) (4,452)
Group Operating Cash Flow* 18,616 16,514

1 Group Ad|usted EBITDA is calculated as operating profit before depreciation amertisation exceptional items

end other incoms

Group Adjusted EBITDA before Pre-Opening Costs Is defined as Group Adjusted EBITDA excluding the costs

essociated with new slte openings

income and the related tax effect

k4
3 Adjusted Eamings is calculated as the Group's loss for the year before amertisation, exceptional items, other
4

Group Operating Cash Flow is celculated as Group Adjusted EBITDA less worlang capital less maintenance

capltal expenditures

Our Group Adjusted EBITDA growth has been achieved despite the substantial pre-opening
costs of £27 millon incurred with the opening of 19 new gyms, and additional investment in

our key central functions

Group Operating Cash Flow increased by 12 7%, as a result of the conversion of Group
Adjusted EBITDA offset by increases in maintenance capital expenditure as our estate

increases In size

Result for tha year

2015 2014

g0 £000

Revenue 59,979 45,480
Cost of sales (1,073) {1,040)
Gross profit 58,906 44,440
Admintstration expenses (55,105)  {39,452)
Exceptional costs (7,607) (2,653)
Other income 1,105 -
Operating (loss) / profit (2,701) 2,335
Finance income 265 20
Finance caosts {9,946) (1,797)
Loss before tax (12,382) (9,442)
Tax credit 909 659
Loss for the year {11,473) (8,783)

Revenue

The strength of The Gym's member proposition has contnued to be reflected in our

membership performance Year end membership numbers increased significantly in 2015,
with 376,000 members at 31 December 2015 compared to 293,000 at 31 December 2014

The average number of members increased by 31 0% during the year to 355,000
{2014 271,000), primarly due to the opening of 19 new gyms Average member numbers
were split between mature sites of 234,000 and new sites of 121,000° Average revenue

per member per month Increased from £13 98 1n 2014 to £14 08

As a result Group revenue increased by 31 9% to £60 0 mullion 1 the year ended
31 December 2015, from £45 5 million in the year ended 31 December 2014

5 Mature sites are defined as gyms that have been open for 24 months or more measured at the end of tha year

New sites are defined as gyms that have been open for less than 24 months at the end of the year







Group Adjusted EBITDA

2015 2014
£'o00 £'000

Operating {loss) / profit
Exceptional tems
Qther tncome

Depreciation of property, plant and equlpment

Amortisation of intangible assets

{2,701) 2,335
7,607 2,653

(1,105} -
10,907 7.600
2,308 2,100

Group Adjusted EBITDA

17,016 14,688

Administration expenses
Administration expenses increased by

39 7%, driven primanly by an Increase

n the total number of gyms from 55 as at
31 December 2014 to 74 as at 31 December
2015 Due to the higher number of site
openings in 2015, pre-opening costs
associated with new site openings
increased from £2 0 million to £2 7 million

Property lease rentals and staff costs

form a significant part of aur administration
expenses. Property lease rentals increased
from £7 8 milion »n 2014 to £11 2 mulion in 2015
due to a larger portfolio of gyms Staff costs
increased fram £5 5 million to £8 4 million
This was driven by both gym openings and
head office support staff costs

stron

Depreciation charges increased from £76
million in 2014 to £10 9 million in 2015, largely
as a result of the Increased number of sites
The Group's depreciation chaiges appear
high in relation to operating loss / profit as
leasehold improvements and fit-out costs
starnt to be depreciated as soon as a gym

1s opened, whereas It takes time for a gym
to reach mature profit levels

Head office costs increased from

£4 0 midlion to £6 3 milion This 1s due to
Investments in key business functions,
including property, commercial and finance
We believe that our core functions are now
well-placed 1o support the growth of the
bustiness in the foreseeable future

erformances

from
mature

and

new sites

Suategle N Financial
Report overnance

Statamants,

Other iIncome

Other income of £11 million relates to
proceeds received mn relation to a lease
surrender for one of the Group's sites that
did not reach opening

Group Adjusted EBITDA

Group Adjusted EBITDA increased durning
the year mamly due to the increase in the
number of gyms in operation resulting from
the Group's ongoing rollout strategy, and
from gyms reaching matunty mn member
numbers and revenue

Group Adjusted EBITDA was adversely
affected by pre-opening costs, with gym
openings being weighted towards the
second half of the year Group Adjusted
EBITDA before Pre-Opening Costs
increased by 181% to £197 milion

(2014 £16 6 mullion)

As a result of the ongoing rollout strategy
Site EBITDA contnbuted by the 40 mature
sttes demanstrated strong growth,
increasing by 15 9% to £18 8 mdlion

(2014 £16 2 million from 32 sites)

EBITDA from the 34 new sites performed
strongly and increased by 81 2% to £4 5
million {2014 €2 5 million from 23 new sites)
Growth was driven by an increased number
of new gyms and the strength of gyms
opened during 2014 and early 2015 as they
mature This strong performance has offset
losses associated with gyms opening later
in 2015 which are in the process of growing
their membership numbers The impact of
gym openings was magnified as a result of
1i out of the 19 total openings occurnng in
the second half of 2015
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Financial Review continued

Exceptional items

In the year ended 31 December 2015
exceptional costs of £76 milhon were
incurred (2014 £27 milhon)

This includes £5 7 millon of costs in relation
to the Group's IPO An addiieonal £2 6 million
of costs assoclated with the issue of new
shares have been recognised within

share premium

In accordance with IFRS 2, a non-cash
charge of £10m {2014 £nil} has been
recognised In respect of share options
granted to staff and senior managers in
connection with the capital restructuring
on the date of the IPO

Additionally £0 8 mulion was incurred in
relation to the exploration of strategic
options prior to the IPO

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 15 7% to

£9 9 million in the year ended 31 December
2015, from €11 8 million in the year ended

31 December 2014

This included €1 6 million {2014 £nil) of
exceptional inance tems relating to the
write off of capitalised financing fees and
nterest on inance lease creditors, which
occurred as part of the refinancing activity
in November 2015 Excluding exceptlanal
items, finance costs decreased by 30 0%,
driven pnmarily by a decrease in Preference
share interest of £2 5 milon following

a change in the Company’s Arucles of
Association in 2014, and fair value gains
on mnterest rate dervatives
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Finance costs will decrease in 2016 due to
the refinancing carned out in 2015 Based
on the December 2015 interest charge, the
proforma annuahsed interest charge for
2015 was £0 8 million

Taxation

The Group has incurred an Income tax
credit for the year ended 2015 of £0 2 million
{2014 €ntl) due to the trading loss position
and adjustments in respect of pnar years
Trading losses were offset by disallowable
exceptional costs and disallowable interest
charges ansing under the previous private
equlity funding structure A deferred tax
credit of £O7 miflion (2014 £07 milkon)

has arisen m relation to the reversal of
temporary differences

Earnings

The loss for the year increased from

£8 8 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to £11 5 million for the year ended

31 December 2015 as a result of the factors
discussed above

Basic earnings per share (EPS’) was a loss
of £019 (2014 loss of £018)

Adjusted EPS was a loss of £002 (2014 loss
of £009) Adjusted EPS Is calculated by
excluding amortisation, exceptional items,
other income and the resultant tax effect
from basic earnings The improvement in
Adjusted EPS results from both an increase
in Adjusted Earnings and the dilution ansing
on the 1ssue of shares on IPO

2015 2014
cash Flow £'000 £'000
Group Adjusted EBITDA 17,016 14,688
Movement In working capital 4,348 3,407
Mamntenance capital expanditure! (2,748) {1,581)
Group Operating Cash Flow 18,616 16,514
Expansionary capiial expenditure? (28,230) (20,335)
Other income 1,105 -
Exceptional items (7,001) {2,653)
Taxation {73) (244)
Finance costs {4,108) {5.726)
IPO proceeds 89,931 -
Repayment of debt (89,842) {2.617)
Other net cash flows from financing activity 16,886 16,546
Net cash flow {2,716) 1,485

1 Maintenance capital expenditure comprises the replacement of gym equipment and premises refurbishment
2 Expansionary capitad expendiwre relates to the Group s ivestment in the fit-out of new gyms and central IT
projects It is stated gross of amaounts funded by finance leasing {£31 milllon, 2014 £47 million) and net of

contrlbutions towards landlard building costs

2015 2014

£000 £000
Net debt at 1 January 49,205 36,743
Group Operating Cash Flow {18,618) (16,514)
Expansionary capital expenditure 28,230 20,335
Other non-operating cash flow {4,275) 8.641
IPO proceeds {89,931) -
Drawdown of new bank factlity 10,000 -
Financing fees and costs of IPO 9,828 -
Repayment of shareholder loans 22,699 -
Net debt at 31 December 7,140 49,205




Dividend

Due to the short perlod of time between the
IPO and the year end, the Board has not
recommended a final diwdend for 2015

The Directors Intend to declare an intenm
dividend in respect of the first half of 2016
The total dividend for 2016 1s expected to
be 10% to 20% of Adjusted Earnings

Cash Flow

The Group continues to deliver strong cash
generation with Group Operating Cash Flow
127% higher at £18 6 millon (2014 £165
million) due to an Increase In EBITDA
resulting from a greater number of gyms
and efficient use of working capital, offset
by Increased mvestment in maintenance
capital expenditure as the estate grows
These factors result in a small decrease

in Grroup Operating Cash Flow Conversion
10 109 4% (2014 112 4%)

Expansionary capital expenditure of
£28 2 million anses as a result of the
fit-out of new gyms

Proceeds from the Group's IPO of £899
milion and a new term loan of £10 0 million
were used to repay £53 9 million of
borrowings under the Group's previous bank
loan facilives (including accrued interest),
£22 7 million of outstanding shareholder
loans, £10 0 million of cutstanding finance
leases and £8 8 millicn of cash costs
associated with the IPO

As a result of the Group's IPO and
rehnancing, combined with the strong
operating performance, Net Debt Group
Ad)usted EBITDA decreased to 0 42x
(2014 3 35%)

Balance sheet

Our business model, strong conversion
from revenue to cash and debt restructuring
dunng the year results in an uncomplicated
balence sheet

The nen-current assets of the Group have
increased by £i6 0 million to €134 4 million
This i1s as a result of capital expenditure in
property, plant and equipment and
computer software totalling £29 2 million,
offset by depreciaticn and amertisabion
of £13 2 million

Cash balances have decreased as a result

of the net funding of the capital expenditure
programme from operating cash flows

Balance sheat

Sér::)e.gri‘c overnancel Financtel

Statements,

Other current assets primarily relate to
prepaid property costs and have remaimed
consistent year on year Trade and other
payables have increased by £4 7 mullion
largely as a resuk of lease incentives
associated with new gyms opening

during the year

The Group has drawn £100 million of ts five
year bullet repayment facility £25 0 milkon
of the facility was undrawn at 3} December
2015 and will be utlised to fund new sites,
working capital and capital expenditure

Richard Darwin
Chief Financial Officer
14 March 2018

2018 2014
£ 000 £000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

85,237 67510
49,137 50,870

Deferred 1ax asset 177 -
Total non-current assets 134,551 118,380
Current assets

Inventones 122 75
Trade and other recewvables 5,654 4,282
Cash and cash equlvalents 2,860 5,576
Total current assets 8,636 9,933
Total assets 143,187 128,313

Current liablhities

Trade and other payables
Income taxes payable
Borrowings

25,546 20,797
- 2486
- 3613

Total current liabilities

25,548 24,656

Non-current liabilities
Borrewings

Provisions

Financial instruments
Deferred tax habilities

8,966 70,253

232 223
- 1,037
- 559

Total non-current liabilities

9,198 72,072

Total liabilities

34,744 06,728

Neot assets

108,442 31,585
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Principal Risks

The risk factors addressed below are those
which we believe to be the most matenal to
our business model, which could adversely
affect the operations, revenue, profit, cash
flow or assets of the Group and which may
prevent us from achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives Additional risks and
uncertainties currently unknown to Us, or
which we currently believe are immatenal,
may alse have an adverse effect on

In order to gain an understanding of the
risk exposure of the Group we review each
area of our business annually and use

a methodology that will assist the Group

In measuring, evaluating, documenting
and monitoring its nisks within all areas

of its operations

We use our nsk management process as
described to idenufy, montor, evaluate and
escalate nsks as they emerge, enabling
management to take appropnate action
wherever possible in order 1o control them
and also enabling the Board to keep nsk
management under review Dunng the year
the Board carned out a robust assessment
of the principal nsks facing the Group,
including those that would threaten the

Group's business model, future the Group
performance, solvency or hquidity
Principal nsk Impact Mitigation
Competition The ability of the Group to hold or » Maintain pnce discipline and leadership

The Group may face increased
competition and pressure from
competitor pricing decsions

Organic rollout
Site scarcity may affect the
delivery of our roflout plan

Member experience

Failure to provide members with a high
quality product and service would
damage the Group's reputation

Staff retention

Loss of key staff through retention
policy and failure to manage
succession

Information technology
dependency

Our ebility to enrol members, carry
out online marketing activity, process
payments and control gym access

1s dependent on the performance

of our IT systems

Data protection

The Group holds business critical and
confidential information electronically
A breach of security or data protection
rules i1s a key nsk
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increase pnces and therefore achieve
performance targets could be
affected

Delays to our rollout plan may have
adverse Impact on growth targets and
operational returns

Reductions in actual or percenved
customer service could resultin a
decrease in membershlp numbers and
revenue generation

A lack of expenenced and motivated
staff will have a detrimental impact on
ll areas of the business, from
operations to central functions

Disruption in cntical IT systems
could have a negative impact on
our reputation and our ability to
collect revenue

Unauthorised access, loss or
disclosure of this information may lead
to legal claims, regulatory penaltes,
disruption of operations and
reputational damage

Maintain focus on choosing the best sites in
a geographical area
Continue to invest in the member proposition

Our highly expenenced property team are
focused on site selection and sourcing the
best deals

Monitor utilisation, NPS & Feefo scores
Enhance monitoring and feedback processes
Ongoing review of equipment usage to ensure
we meet member requirements

The Group uses a vanety of techmgues to
attract retaln and motivate staff at all levels
across the business These techniques include

Competitive remuneration packages
Opportunities to own shares in the Company
Opportunities for training and progression
Short, clear reporting lines

Succession planning

Our pnimary data systems are hosted by
fully-quakfied organisations in suitable data
centres

Our pnimary IT infrastructure 1s fully managed
by specialst IT companies who provide
best-practice architecture and support

All membership and business information

15 backed up using third party locations
Robust disaster recovery and business
continuity plans are tn place

The Group's networks are protected by
firewalls and secure passwords

All sensitive online data capture and data
presentation 1s SSL encrypted Our website
and member management system are
scanned quarterly to be PCIl comphant
Access to the central member database
requires 2-Factor Authorisation

All financial data relating to customers Is
stored on external PCI Compliant and, where
relevant, BACS approved systerns managed
by external payment prowiders The Group
does not store or retan any customner financial
data In its own online systems




Principal nsk

Outsourcing model

The Group operates a largely
outsourced model, ncluding areas
such as information technology
systems, payment processing and
marketing [t risks overdependence
on third party cperational delivery

Operational gearing
High operational geanng from the
fixed cost base

Regulatory

Failure to adhere to regulatory
requirements such as the Listing Rules,
taxation, the Data Protection Act, health
and safety requiremenits, planning
regulations, noise abatement and
advertising and marketing regulations

Going Concem

O

0n 12 November 2015, the Company's shares

Impact

As the Group grows there Is nsk that
delivery from service providers is either
unrehable or of unsatisfactory quality

A limited number of correcuve options
in the cost base could be made to
correct any underperformance in
membership numbers, which coutd
have an adverse impact on profitability

Potential reputational damage and
penalties

The Directors believe that this has

Financial

Strategic

Report overnance
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Miigation

Ensure quality supphers are chosen through
well-run tender processes

Understand and seek to mitigate supplier key-
man nsks

Service lovel agreements for all key suppliers
Members of management monitor serice
levels and hold suppliers to account

Ongoing assessment of whether any services
should be moved to an insourced resource

Monthly monitoning and reforecasting of business
performance at site level
Active yield management on a gym by gym basts.

» Regular financaial management by senior

management team and Board

The Board has cversight over the
management of regulatory nsk and
compliance, and delegates specific
responsibilities to sertor management
Expert opinion sought where relevant

Legal advice taken to ensure systems,
processes and documentation confarm

with the Data Protection Act

Third party health and safety nsks assessments
and audits carried out Staff conduct penodic
health and safety assessmemts

Employment and continuous training and
developrent of appropriately qualified staff

As a consequence, the Group 1s in a strong

finenclal position to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this
reason, the Directors have adopted the going
concern basis In preparing the Financlal
Statements The Directors have made this
assessment after conslderation of the
Company’s budgeted cash flows and related
assumptions and in accordance with the
Going Concern and Liquldity Risk Guldance
for Directors of UK Companles 2009 published
by the UK Financial Reporting Council

were admitted to trading en the main market
of the London Stock Exchange and a new

£35 0 million, flve year bullet repayment loan
tacility was entered into Refer to note 18 of the
Financial Statements for further detalls

of the loan facility

e strengthened The Gym's capital structure
and postioned the Group for the continued
mplementation of s growth strategy,

given the Company access to a wider range
of capital-rassing options which may be of
use in the future to support the rollout of
new gyms or to support possible future
acquisitions, and

further iImproved the ability of the Company
ta recruit, retain and incentivise its key
management and staff

The principal use of the net proceeds from the
IPO and refinancing were

# £74 6 million to faciltate the refinancing of
previous facilities, and

» the remainder for general corporate
purposes.

Viabilty Statement

O

In accordance with provision C 2 2 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2014, the Directors
have assessed the viability of the Group taking
Into account the Group's current position and
the potential mpact of the principal risks
documented above that would threaten its
business model, future performance, sclvency
or liquidity Based on this assessment, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Company will be able to continue in
operation and meet ts labllites as they fall
due over the period to 31 December 2018

wiability statement as this aligns with the penod
covered by the Group's Board approved
strateqic plan The three year penod covers the
maturity of recently opened sites and those
planned to be opened In 2016 and 1s a
reasonable period over which the Group
assesses the emvironment In which it operates.
The Board considers the plan annually and on
aroling three year basis The output of this plan
1s used to perform debt and headroom profile
analysis, which ineludes a review of sensitivity
to nisks which are considered possible with a
serious but not severe iImpact, and nsks
considered less probable with a severe impact.

In stress testing for these types of nsks, the
Group considerad a number of sensitvities
both iIndndually and in combination (e g
membershup, pricing gym maturity profile and
lease rentals) The strategic planning model was
then flexed to the extent required to adversely
affect the wability of the business across all
principal nisks The nisks detalled above which
have the greatest effect on financial results are
considered to be competition organic rollout
and member expenence, Scenarios were also
modelled taking into account the effect of
miugation against these threats which generally
involved delaying or cancelling phases of the
gym rollout programme

The Directors have determined that the three
year penod to 31 December 201815 an
approprate perlod over which to assess its
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Corporate Social Responsibility Statement

Our vision Is to provide affordable access to

exercise facilities and expert help to every person
who wants to improve therr wellbeing, whatever
therr starting point, whatever their destination.

In delivering our viston we focus on five key areas:

1 Our members

Two thirds of the adults in the UK are overweight or obese, with the
annual cost of obesity estmated at £27 billion per year As well as
hawing a reduced life expectancy, obese adults are less likely to be
in erployment and can face discnmination and stigmatism’

The Gym 1s helping to remove barners to better health We offer 24/7,
no fixed term membership contracts with gyms in accessible
locations 35% of our members have never used a gym before

We listen carefully to our members and look to introduce services
and products that meet therr requirements We use data analysis to
monitor equipment usage and exercise patterns, and use our
findings to tallor members’ expernences to their needs

Our Investment in a compelling membership proposition 1s reflected
in our membership numbers and our member sausfaction scores
Although a low cost s a key daver for our members, it 1s not their
sole prionty

During 2015 our membership numbers increased by 28 3% and our
Net Promoter Score was 60 2% We aim to maintain our Net Promoter
Score year on year

2 Our people

We employ more than 200 people and our team increases in
number with every gym that we open We invest in the careers of our
pecple, creating genuine 1ob satisfaction that results in exceptional
service to our members

We are proud that our Investors In People accreditation was further
endorsed 1n 2015 with a Silver award, demonstrating our commtrment
to realising the potential of our people We are the only low cost
fitness provider to win this award

We have also achieved a Two Star ‘Outstanding’ award in the Best
Companies accreditation

Even more satisfyting 13 how our people focus translates into
retaining high-performing staff, with retention rates in 2015 of 877%

Our flat structure also gives local teamns the autonomy to develop
their people This includes tramning programmes for new General
Managers, and the expert input of our In-hcuse Marketing Academy
In 2015 we invested £331 in training on average for each of our staff

Personal trainers perform an important service for our members

As well as prowiding training sessions, the self-employed personal
trainers conduct gym tours, carry out member inductions and
provide an important rele in supporting our members Many
personal trainers apply to become and are considered for Assistant
General Manager positions at our gyms

We believe that no individual should be discriminated agamst on the
ground of race, colour, ethnicity, religious belief, political affiliation,
gender, age or disability

A breakdown of our Board, senior managers and alf employees by
gender 1s as fallows

Number of smployeas gt 31 December 2015 Female Male
Board 1 {(14%) 6 (86%)
Senior managers 5{23%) 17 {77%)
All staff 58 (27%} 155 (73%)

1 Public Health England Making the case for tackling obesity

a business
driven by

social

responsibility
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3 Health and satety
From the design of our gyms to the expert guidance of our gym
teams, safety sits at the heart of cur operations

We comply with all safety legislauon, we act on specialist guidance
from safety experts Peninsular, and we commission independent
health and safety managers to perform continuous safety audits
The output from their findings 1s actioned by regional managers,
and monthly accldent / incident reports are reviewed by the Board

We are determined to maintain our very low accident rate but are
well equipped te act as first responders if needed For example,
every site has a defibrillator to treat sudden cardiac arrest and our
expenence shows that this can save lives

4 Integration with the community

We help bring new life to communities by using spaces which other
service providers often avoid In 2015 we have built gyms in vacant
retall space, iIn gym locatlons vacated by previous operators and as
part of town regeneration schemes

Our gyms are also active in community and charity fundraising, and
The Gym Group was the proud sponsor of the #BeAGameChanger
awards in 2015

5 Environmental responsibility
From the design of a gym itself, to the way we equip and cperate it,
we seek to mmimise our envirenmental iImpact at each stage

Energy efficiancy

We demand excellent energy efficiency from our gym equipment,
heating, ighting and ar conditioning systems Only one of our
pleces of gym equipment requires an external power source Under
a building energy management programme we are phasing in
efficient LED ighting wherever possible, and our ighting and arr
conditioning systems automatically adjust to quieter times i

our gyms

Sg::;gric overnance Financial

Statements

Greenhouse Gas { GHG') emissions for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been measured as required under the Large and
Medium-Sized Companiles and Groups {Account and Reports)
Regulations 2008 as amended In 2013 There 1s no comparative data
as this is the first tme that the Group has presented its GHG data
The main activities which release GHG include usage of purchased
gas and electricity to power our gyms We have used the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting standards (revised
edition) and data gathered to fulfil the requirements under

the CRC Energy Efficiancy schems to calculate the disclosures

tcose
Emissions from operations (scope 1) -
Emissions from energy usage {scope 2) 10,251
Total
Intensity ratio (tCO.e per gym) 1385

Water consarvation

Qur washrooms are equipped to minimise water consumption and
waste, and our cleaning equipment uses 70% less water than
convenuonal machines

We are also proud te support African communitres by selling Thirsty
Planet bottled water, helping to provide them with clean water supplies

Waste

From enline joining to cardless memberships, we minimise our
consumption of rescurces Where we do produce waste, we have
actve programmes to recycle it

On a new site, we will typically recycle 90% of the matenals we strip
out, and ht-outs are based on BREAM standards, incorporating
environmental considerations into every project We also minimise
pollution, for example by using chemical-free products for cleaning
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Corporate Social Responsibility Statement continued

our people
are at the

heart of

OUur success

Engaging our people

We prefer to promote
internally but are
happy to refresh

our thmking with
candidates from
outside the business
and sector
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We invest heavily in
training to give our
people the skills they
need to deliver now,
as well as to develop
their careers with us

We involve managers
in the definition of
success, let them get
on and manage, and
then hold them
accountable for

their results

REWARD

We aim to be market
competitive In
remuneration and
will shortly offer staff
the opportunity to
Invest and share

IN OUr SUCCEess




Adi, a martial arts enthusiast, joined The Gym in
Vauxhall in 2013 as a Personal Trainer After 12
months of coaching from the Vauxhall team she
became an Assistant General Manager

In March 2015 Adi joined our Trainee General
Manager programme Hawing the opportunity to
work at a variety of gyms and work alongside a
number of expenenced General Managers gave
her the confidence to progress further and she

became General Manager of our Croydon Purley
Way gym in December 2015

“My job 1s fun! | love the freedom and
responsibility | have, and being at work gives
me a buzz It's a great opportunity to work for

The Gym, and I'm proud to represent the
business in front of our members”

ADI ANDREEVA

GENERAL MANAGER

Strategic . Financiel
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Board of Directors

Penny Hughes CBE O

Independent Non-Executive
Chairwoman

Penny has served on the boards
of directars of firms across the
consurner, media, technology
and finance sectors

Since January 2010 she has
been a non-executive director
of The Royal Bank of Scotland
plc where she has been
chalrwoman of the remuneration
committee and now leads the
sustainable banklng committee
Penny Is also a non-executive
director of SuperGroup plc,
sitting on the audit and
neminations cemmittees

Penny has experlence as
chalrwoman of each board
committea within former non-
executive director roles which
include Mornson Supermarkets
plc, The Bady Shop plc, Home
Retall group pic, Gap inc,
VVedafone plc Reuters plc

and Skandinaviska Enskilda
Banken AB

Penny has acted as adwser

to Bridgepoint Capital with
representation on the board

of Molton Brown during its sale
and spent the majonity of her
executive career at CocaCola
and was appointed President
CocaCola Great Bnitain

& Ireland in 1992

Having bean Presldent of the
Advertising Association for

six years Penny received a CBE
for services to the media in the
Queen's Birthday Honours listin
June 201

Penny 1s Chairwoman of the
Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit and Risk
and Remuneration Commitiees
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John Trehame O

Chief Executive Officer

Jim Graham 0

Chief Operating Officer

Richard Darvwan 0

Chief Financial Officer

John founded The Gym In 2007
and has served as |ts Chief
Executive Officer since Its
inception John has over

20 years' experlence with the
health and fitness industry and
has considerable experlence in
developing successful and
profitable businesses in the
private sector

John launched Dragons Health
Clubs plc in 1991 and grew the
business to 22 health clubs and
nine golf clubs by 2002 Dragons
Health Clubs successtully floated
on AIM m 1997 and was sold to
Crown Sparts plc in 2000 John
served as a managing director
of Crown Sports plc from 2000
to 2002

John is on the board of ukactive,
a not-for-profit trade body
compnsed of members and
partners from across the UK
active lifestyle sector He was
recognlsed as the CEOQ of the
Year (South East) by the British
Private Equity and Venture
Capital Association Management
Team Awards in 2013

Jim joined The Gym in April 2014
as Chief Operating Officer after
leaving Phoenix Equity Partners
where he was the operating
partner advising the
management teams on a range
of Investmanits, including The
Gym He held a similar pasition
at Candover Partners from 2007
to 201

Prior to joining the private equity
Industry, Jim was managing
director of Orange s pay-as-you-
go mobile business from 2005 to
2007 and also held the role of
director of strategy and led the
marketlng services function

He has worked as a
management consultant with
Accenture and spent 15 years
in the Royal Navy He has an
MA in engineering, an MSc In
mathematics and an MBA from
London Business School

Richard joined The Gym as Chlef
Financlal Officer in May 2015 He
possesses extensive expernence
waorking for leisure end FMCG
compantes in the UK and
internationally

He has previously held the
positions of chief financial officer
of Essenden plc from 2009 to
2015 and chief financial officer

of Pararmount Restaurants from
2003 to 2008 Ha led both
companies through perlods

of significant strategic and
operational change

After qualifying as a Chartered
Accountant with Coopers &
Lybrand, Richard worked with

a number of high profile brands
in strategle development roles,
including The Rank Group plc,
Hard Rock Café International
and Diageo plc, where he
completed a number of high
value mergers and acquisitions




Paul Gilbert o

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Philip Newbaorough 0

Non-Independent
Non-Executive Director

Overview

David Burns 0

Non-Independant
Non-Executive Directar

Paul was the Non-Executive
Chalrman of The Gym from
February 2012 until
Septembar 2015

In March 2014 he was appointed
as non-executive charrman of
Clothingsites co uk Ltd, an online
branded menswear retailer Paul
was also appointed as the
non-executive chalr of Hiring
Hub, an online recrutment
business in October 2014 and
Sykes Cottages, an online travel
business, in July 2015

Peul's previous roles include
non-executive chairman of
Batterbathrooms chief financial
officer and acting chief executive
officer at Matalan chief financial
officer at Td Hughes and chief
financial officer at National Car
Parks. He has held seniar finance
management roles at GUS plc,
Littlewoods and News
Internatlonal plc

Paul Is an economics graduate
from the University of Cambridge
and a Chartered Accountam

Paul Is Chairman of the Audit and
Risk and Remuneration
Committees and a member of
the Nominaticn Committee

Philip 1s a co-founder of Bridges
Ventures and has been its
managing partner since 2002
He chairs ali the firm’s investment
committees He Is currently
invotved 1n much of the portfalio
and has negotiated the
successful exits of Simply Switch
The Office Group and The
Hoxton, among others Phllip led
Bridges Venturas' Investmaent in
The Gym and cofounded the
business with John Treharme

Prior to founding Bridges
Ventures, Philip had 14 years of
experience as a chief executive
officer of three growth
businesses. He previously
worked at Aiwa UK Lid and Aiwa
Europe Ltd as director and
general manager and was then
appointed managing director
of MWB Business Exchange Ltd,
a serviced office provider

Philip Is an economics graduate
from York University and
a Chartered Accountant

Philip is 8 mernber of the
Nominatton and Rermuneration
Committees

Dawd is a managing partner of
Phoenix Equity Partners end has
held this post since July 2014
He s also chairman of Phoenix's
management committee and

a member of its Investment
committee He leads Phoenix's
Investment actrities In the
leisura and consumer sector

Dawvid has warked in the private
aquity market for nearly 20 years
and has approximately 17 years
of expenence as a private equity
Investor in the UK He s also a
director of Riviera Travel end

LK Bennett.

David has an MSc In international
economics and finance and

a BSc in economics from

Cardiff Unsversity

David is a member of tha Audit
and Risk Committee

Strategic
Repaort
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Corporate Governance Report

Chairwoman’s Introduction 0
Penny Hughes CBE

Dear Shareholders,
| am pleased to be introducing our first Corporate Governance Report

The Board 1s committed to ensuring that the Group operates

with high standards of corporate governance We believe that itis
important that the governance structure supports the success of
the Company’s strategy and ensures the creation and preservation
of shareholder value, as well as benefiung other stakeholders

As part of our preparation for the Company s listing, we recognised
that while our internal governance processes were fit for purpose,
additional work was required to enhance these processes to meet
the obhgations of being a company listed on the London Stock
Exchange Accordingly, a signiicant amount of work was carried

out to ensure that the Company’s operations as a listed company
complied with relevant regulation and guidance This work included
creating and embedding the necessary pelicies and procedures to
meet the various corporate governance and regulatory requirements
applicable to the Company post listing

As you will see from our Corporate Governance Report, due to the
fact that we have only been a listed caompany since 12 November
2015, there are some areas of the 2014 UK Corporate Governance
Code that we are not yet compliant with or have not yet had the
chance to complete, including a board evaluation As menticned
above, the Board 1s commutted to matntaining high standards of
corporate governance and our intention ts to be fully compliant with
the UK Corporate Governance Code for the next inancial year

The remainder of this report explains in more detall the corporate
governance structure currently in place, including our Board and
Committee structure and polictes and protocols on Internal controls

Penny Hughes

Chairwoman
14 March 2016

36

Board governance

Overview

This Report explains the key features of the Company’s governance
structure and how it complies with the UK Corporate Governance
Code (‘the Governance Code’ 1t also explains the functiocning of
our Board Committees and the effectiveness of the Group's nsk
management and interal control systems

Comphance with the Governance Code
Except as described below, the Board has complied with all the
provisions set out in the Governance Code since Admission

« Pravision B 1 2 recommends that a company outside the FTSE 350
should have at least two independent non-executive directors in
addition to the charperson For the purposes of assessing
compliance with the Governance Code, the Board considers that
the Sentor Independent Director, Paul Gilbert, 1s considered to be
independent of management and free from any business or cther
relationship that could matenally interfere with the exercise of his
Judgement The Board also considers that Penny Hughes, as
Chairwoman of the Company, was independent at the tme of
appointment As well as the three Executive Directors, the
Company has two other Non-Executive Directors who are
nominated by major shareholders and are therefore not
considered to be independent for the purposes of the
Governance Code

In order to comply with the Governance Code’s requirements,

the Company will appoint one further independent Non-Executive
Director The recruitment for this position 1s progressing and the
Company will update the market when an appointment has

taken place

Provisions B 21, C 31 and D 21 recommend that the Audit and Risk
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
should be made up of a majernty of Independent Non-Executive
Directors, excluding the Chairwoman The Company intends to

be fully compliant with these provisions as sooh as a new
independent Non-Executive Director has been appointed

Provision B 61 recommends that a performance evaluation I1s
carned out on an annual basis An exercise was undertaken
before the IPO 10 evaluate the skills and experience of the
Executive Directors and non-independent Non-Executive
Directors to identify ndependent Non-Executives who would
add to their expenence of a listed company to promote the
effectiveness of the Board Given that the Company has only
been listed since November 2015, the Board did not carry cut
an evaluation before the year end but an evaluation of the
performance of the Board, the Directors and Committees will be
undertaken dunng 2016 and reported In next year's Annual Report

The Board and Sub-Committees

The Board compnses seven members, including two independent
Non-Executive Directors {including the Chairweman), two non-
independent Non-Executive Directors and three Executive Directors
A st of the Directors and theirr biographies can be found on pages
34t0 35

The Board 1s satisfied that there 1s a sufficient balance between
Executive and Non-Executive Directors on the Board to ensure that
no one indwidual has unfettered decision making powers, and that
the Board has the appropriate balance of sklls, expenence,
ndependence and knowledge of the Company to enable it

to discharge its duties and responsibilities effecuvely




The pnimary responsibility of the Beard 1s to promote the long-term
success of the Company and sustainably grow shareholder value
The Board has responsibility for the management, direction and
performance of the Group and for ensuring that apprapriate
resources are in place to achteve Its strategy The Board directs
and reviews the Group's operattons within an agreed framework

of contrals, allowing risk to be assessed and managed within
agreed parameters

The Board has established a formal schedule of matters reserved
for its approval and has delegated other specific responsibilites
to its principal sub committees the Audit and Risk Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee Each
Committee’s roles and responsibilities are set out In formal terms of
reference, which are determined by the Board These are avalable
for review on the Company’s website Reports from each of these
Committees are provided on pages 39 to 54

All Board and Committee meetings are minuted and formally
approved at the next meeting Board minutes contain detalls of the
Drrectors’ decision making processes and any concerns ratsed by
the Directors

During the year vanous matters reserved for the Board were
rewiewed and where necessary amended The schedule of matters
reservad for the Board includes the consideration and approval of

the Group’'s strategic aims, objectives and commercial strategy,
review of performance relative to the Group's business plans and
budgets,

major changes to the Group's corporate structure, including
acquisitions and disposals,

Financial Statements and Group dwvidend policy, including
recommendation of the final dividend,

major changes to the capital structure Including tax and treasury
management,

major changes to accounting policies or practces,

the system of internal control and nisk management paolicy,

the Group’s nsk appetite statements, and

the Group's corporate governance and comphance arrangements

The senior management team are responsible for executing the
strategy determined by the Board

Chairnnvomnan and Chief Executive Officer

There Is a clear separation of responsibilities between the
Chairwoman and the Chief Executive Officer Penny Hughes, as
Non-Exacutive Chairwoman, sets the Board agenda and leads
discussion and decision making She uses her expenence of
chalring at her previous non-executive roles to promote effective
debate and contribution from both Executive and Non-Executive
Board members John Treharne, as Chief Executive Officer, leads
the operational and day-to-day management of the Company

Strateqgic Financial
Report overnance

Statements,

Senior Independent Director (‘SIDY)

Paul Gilbert takes the role of SID on the Board Paul is available to
shareholders if they have concems that the normal channels of
Chairwoman, Chief Executive Officer or other Executive Directors
have falled to resolve, or for which such channels of communication
are inapproprate He will also act as intermediary for the other
Directors and the Chairwoman as necessary

Non-Executive Directors

Varous funds managed by Phoenix Equity Partners 2010 LP (‘the
Phoenix Adwised Funds’} continue to be significant investors in the
Company following its PO Pursuant to the Relationship Agreement
entered into at the tme of the PO, the Phoenix Advised Funds are
entitted to appoint one Non-Executive nominee Director to the Board
for so long as the Phoenix Advised Funds are entitled to exercise or
control, directly or indirectly, 10% or more of the votes able to be cast
on all or substantially all matters at general meetings of the
Company The first such appointee as non-independent Non-
Executive nominee Director 1s Dawvid Burns

Bridges Community Developrnent Venture Fund Il LP also conunues
to be a significant investor In the Company Philip Newborough,
co-founder of Bndges Ventures, has been appointed as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company Philip's appointment as
non-independent Non-Executive Director for up to 12 months after
Admission will provide support and continuity to the Company

in the near term following the Group's IPO

Relationship Agreement

On 6 November 2015 the Company entered into & Relatonship
Agreement with the Phoenix Advised Funds The principal purpose
of the Relationship Agreement is to ensure that the Company will be
capabile of carrying on its business independently of the Phoenix
Advised Funds, that 1) transactions and arrangements with the
Pheenix Advised Funds will be conducted at arm’s length and on
normal commercial terms, 1) none of the Phoenix Advised Funds nor
any of their associates will take any action that would have the effect
ot preventing the Company from complying with 1ts obligations
under the Listing Rules, and ) none of the Phoenix Advised Funds
nor any of their associates will propose or procure the proposal of a
shareholder resolution which 15 intended or appears to be intended
to aircumvent the proper application of the Listing Rules

The Relationship Agreement will contnue for so long as the Phoenix
Adwvised Funds and any of their assocciates together are entitled to
exercise or to control, directly or indectly, the exercise of 10% or
more of the nghts to vote at general meetings of the Company

Under the Relationship Agreement, the Phoenix Advised Funds

are able to nominate one Non-Executive nominee Director for
appointment to the Board for 5o long as the Phoenix Advised Funds
and therr associates are, ether alone or together, entitled to
exercise, or ta control, drectly or iIndirectly, the exercise of, 10% or
mors of the nghts to vote at general meetings of the Campany

1 Tha Governance Code is avallable on the Financial Reporting Council webslte at
www frc org uk
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Corporate Governance Report continued

Board meestings

There were 11 Board meetings held in 2015 {(one after the IPO) and
there are eight Board meetings scheduled for 2018 with additional
ad-hoc Board meetings as required The Board and Committee
meeungs have standing agenda items, which ensures that ali
aspects of the business are given due consideration as approprnate

Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings between the [PO
on 12 November 2015 and 31 December 2015 is as follows

Amtendance 2016
Penny Hughes 10of1
John Treharne 1of1
Jim Graham 1of1
Richard Darwin tof1
Paul Gilbert 1of1
Philip Newborough 1of1
Dawvid Burns 1of1

Appointment and election of Directors

The Board considers all Directors to be effective, committed to their
roles and have sufficient tme to perform their dutres Accordingly, all
members of the Board will be offering themsalves for re-election at
the Company’s first Annual General Mesting (AGM") on 16 May 2016

All of the Directors have service agreements or letters of
appointrment and the details of therr terms aze set out in the RBeport
of the Remuneration Committee The service agreements and letters
of appointment are avallable for inspection at the Company’s
registered office during normal bustness hours No other contract
with the Company or any subsidiary undertaking of the Campany in
which any Director was maternally interested existed dunng or at the
end of the financial year other than the Relationship Agreement with
Phoenix Advised Funds discussed on page 37

Directors’ induction and professional development

The Company has an induction programme in place to prownide new
Directors with a formal, tallored induction that Includes visiting the
main operational locations The Board and Committee standing
agenda items include the brefing of Directors on a wide range of
topics, which include corporate governance and regulatory
requirements Additionally, Directors have access to the advice

and services of the Company Secretary and independent and
professional advice at the Company's expense should they
determine that this 1s necessary to discharge their duties

In 2016 the Charrwoman will review training and development needs
with each Director

Board evaluation and effectivenass

An axercise was undertaken before the IPO to evaluate the skills
and expernence of the Executive Directors and non-independent
Non-Executive Directors to identify iIndependent Non-Executives
who would add to therr expernience of a listed company to promote
the effectiveness of the Board Penny Hughes was recruited as
Chairwoman an & November 2015, and the search for a further
independent Nan-Executive Director 1s progressing

An external consultancy firm, Spencer Stuart & Assocrates Lirited,
was used In the search and appointment of the Chairwoman
Spencer Stuart & Associates Limited has no other connection

with the Group
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An evaluation of the performance of the Board, the Directors and
Committees will be undertaken dunng 2016 and reparted In next
year's Annual Report

Directors’ conflicts of Interest

Closewall Limited (Closewall’) is a bullding firm owned by the brather
and sister-in-law of John Treharne Closewall 1s one of three fit-out
contractors that tender for contracts for the design and construction
of the Group's gyms with which the Group has leng-term
relationships The Group paid £76 milhon (2014 £5 3 millkon) to
Closewall In connection with the fit-out of new gyms during the year
ended 31 December 2015 .John Treharne has never been involved In
decision making n relation to the fit-out contractors that the Group
engages and the Group operates a robust purchasing process
overseen by a number of senicr employees |n the opinion of the
Directors such decision making 1s subject to appropriate
governance procedures

Dawid Burns 1s a managing partner of Phoenix Equity Partners
Limited, adviser to Phoenix Equity Partners 2010 Guemsey Limited
Phoenix Equity Partners 2010 Guernsey Limited i1s the manager of
various Phoenix entities which control 281% of the voting nghts in the
Company as at 14 March 2016

Philp Newborough is a managing partner of Bridges Ventures
Bnidges Ventures 1s the manager of Bridges Community
Developrnent Venture Fund Il LP, which controls 13 9%

of the voting rights In the Company as at 14 March 2016

Save as set out In the paragraphs above, there are no potential
conflicts of interest between any Directors or semor management
of the Company and their private interests or other duties

Information and support

An agenda and accompanying pack of detailed papers Is circulated
to the Board well in advance of each Board meeting These include
reports from Executive Directors, other members of senior
management and external adwsers Members of senior
management may be invited to present relevant matters to the
Board All Directors have direct access to senior management
should they require additional information on any of the items to

be discussed The Board and the Audit and Fisk Committee also
receive further regular and specific reports to allow the monitoring
of the adequacy of the Company's systems of internal controls

The Information supplied to the Board and its Committees will be
kept under review and formally assessed on an annual basis as part
of the Board evaluation exercise to ensure it Is fit and proper for
purpose and that it enables sound decision making

Relationship with shareholders

The Board 1s committed to maintaining good communications

with existing and potential shareholders based on the mutual
understanding of objectives As part of the IPO procass the Chief
Executive, Chief Operations Officer and Chief Financial Officer met
with a large number of potential shareholders On an ongoing basis
the Group has regular dialogue with institutional shareholders In
order to develop an understanding of their views which is
communicated back to, and discussed with, the Board

Ensunng a satisfactory dialogue with shareholders and receiving
reports on the views of sharehalders 1s a matter reserved for the
Board under its terms of reference

Presentations given to analysts and investors covering the annual
and interim results, along with all results and other regulatory
announcements and further information for investors are included
on the Company's website at wwwtggple com
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Charrwoman
Penny Hughes CBE

o

Other Members Paul Gilbert and Dawid Burns

Roles and responsibilities

The role of the Committee 1s to develop and maintain a formal,
ngorous and transparent procedure for making recommendations
on appomntmenits and re-appointments to the Board In addiuen,

it 1s responsible for reviewing the succession plans for the Executive
Directors and the Non-Executive Directors

This involves

* keeping under review the leadership needs of the Group,
both Executive and Non-Exacutive, with a view to ensuring

the continued ability of the Group to compete effactively In
the marketplace,

regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board to ensure it has an appropriate balance of skills, diversity,
experence, knowledge and independence, and reporting and
making recommendations to the Board with regard to any
changes, and

regularly assessing the knowledge, skills and expenence of
individual members of the Board and reporting the results to
the Board

Diversity

Our policy 1s that no individual sheuld be discnminated against

on the ground of race, colour, ethnicity, religious belhef, pofitical
affilation, gender, age or disability Whilst we have not currently
established diversity targets this policy s reflected in our approach
to recruitment at all levels, including Board level As at 31 December
2015 the board comprised 14% (1) female and 86% {(6) male

Board members

Governance processes

The Committee meets at least twice a year and at such other tmes
as the Committea Chair or any member of the Committee may
request The Committee did not meet between the IPO and the
end of the financial period The Committee met for the first ime

on 1t March 2016

The Company does not comply with the UK Corporate Governance
Code in respect of there being two independent Non-Executive
Directors (excluding the Chairweman of the Board) serving on the
Committee The Board beheves this will not have an impact on the
Group's governance In practice and following the recruitment of one
additional independent Director will achieve full compliance with the
Govemnance Code

The Committee has formal terms of reference which can be viewed
an the Company’s website www tggplc com

Main activities

On 11 March 2016 the Committee met to review the terms of
reference, the structure of the Board and Sub-Committees and
consider succession planning

Annual evaluation of the Nomination

Committee’s performance

Due to the short period of existence far the Nomination Committee,
an evaluation has not been undertaken The first full evaluation will
be completed in 2016 and reported on In next year's Annual Report

Penny Hugheas

Chairwoman of the Nomination Committee
14 March 2016
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Report of the Audit and Risk Committee

Chairman o

Paul Gibert

Other Members Penny Hughes and David Burns

Attendance 2015
Paul Gilbert 1of1
Penny Hughes 1of1
Dawid Burns 1ofl

Roles and responsibilities

The Audit and Risk Commuttee's role 15 to assist the Board with the
discharge of its responsibiliies in refation to financial reporting,
including reviewing the Group's annual and half year Financial
Statements and accounting policies, internal and external audits
and contrels, reviewing and monitoring the scope of the annual
audit and the extent of the non-audit work undertaken by external
auditors, advising on the appomtment of external auditors and
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal audit, internal controls,
nsk management, whistleblowing and fraud systems in place within
the Group
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Governance processes

The Audit and Risk Committee meets at least four times a year and
as requested by the external auditor The Committee held a private
session with the external auditor without members of management
being present at the December 2015 meeting

The Company does not comply with the UK Corporate Governance
Code In respect of there being two independent Non-Executive
Directors {excluding the Chairwoman of the Board} serving on the
Committee The Board believes this will not have an impact on the
Group's governance in practice and following the recruitment of one
additional iIndependent Director will achieve full compliance with the
Governance Code

The Committee 1s deemed to be financiglly Iiterate by their business
experience, with the Chairman being a Chartered Accountant

The Committee has formal terms of reference which can be viewed
on the Company's website wwwtggplc com

Maitn activities
In the penod since IPO, the Committee

* adopted the Terms of Reference for the Committee,

« reviewed draft accounts for the financial period to
31 December 2015,

s reviewad the Group's accounting policies and key
accounting judgements,

« reviewed and approved the external audit plan and
subsequent audit findings,

» considered the effectiveness of the internal control
anvironment, and

s reviewed and approved the Annual Report and
Financial Statements




Cntical accounting Judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty

Prlor to each meeting of the Audit Committee at which they are to
be considered, management produces a paper providing details
of any significant accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty Management are also invited to attend
these meetings where further guidance Is required The significant
1ssues constdered by the Audit Committee In respect of the 2015
Annual Report are as follows

Critical judgement Haw the item was addressed

Recognition of
membership
Income

The Audit Committee places rehance

on management controls over revenue
recognition As membership iIncome Is
principally generated by direct debit
receipts, monthly reconciliations regarding
membership and cash receipts are key
controls in this area and have functioned
robustly throughout the year

Potentlal
Impairment of
goodwill and
Intangible asseats

Impairment reviews have been performed
by management on the Group's cash
generating units to which goodwill and other
intangible assets have been allocated The
cash flow forecasts used were based on the
budgets approved by the Board tegether
with assumed growth rates thereafter The
key assumptions areund future growth rates
and discount rates used were reviewed and
considered by the Audit Committee The
Committee 1s satisfied that there was no
impairment of goodwilt and other intangible
assets as at 31 Dacember 2015 Please refer
to note 13 to the Financial Statements for
further information

Costs assoclated with the IPO have been
apportioned between costs on 1ssuing new
share capital (recogmsed in share premium)
and IPO costs {recogmised within profit or
loss) The apportionment was calculated
based on the number of new shares 1ssued
as a proportion of the total share capiltal

Accounting for the
IPO and related
refinancing
transactions

The Committee has reviewed and I1s
satisfied with this rationale

External audrtor

The external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, was appointed on 28 July
2015 This appointment was made having considered the capabilihes
and experience of Ermst & Young LLP in comparison to the
incumbent audit firm We reviewed the effectiveness of the

auditor through

¢ reviewing the 2015 audit plan,

s discussing the results of the audit including therr views on matenal
accounting issues and key judgements and estimates,

+ considering the robustness of the audit process, and

» confirming ther ndependence and objectvity

We were satisfied with the performance and independence of Ernst
& Young LLP and recommend their reappaintment at the AGM

Financial

Strategic

Overview Report

Statements,

Risk management

The Board 1s ultmately responsible for ensuring that a robust

nsk management processis in place and effectively operated
The relevant roles and responsibilities in momitoring and operating
the system of nsk management are as follows

The Board

= provides strategic directton on the appropnate
balance between nsk and reward
® sets the ‘tone’ and culture for managing nsk and
embedding nsk management
& ensures the most significant nsks facing the
organisation are properly managed
* evaluates the nsk implications of planned investments
s plans for how the business will manage a crisis

o

The Audit Committee
= monitors and reviews the Group's systern of internal
control and nsk management
* makes recommendations to the Board for
impraovements or developments

o

Sentor Management
s promote and support the embedding of risk

management throughout the business

® ensure there Is active management of
identfied and emerging nisks

» formally review the nsk register at least twice a year

s report to the Audit Committee on the

internal control environment

On an ongoing basis, all business functions evaluate their respective
nsks using a consistent methodology of idenufication, categonsation
and weighting, with the exercise led by a member of senior
management The nisks which are considered to be the principal
nisks of the Group are detalled on pages 28 and 29

Internal control
The Group operates its system of internal contro! by using the
following key elements

& regular review meeungs of vanous groups, including business
functions, senior management, sub-committeées and the Board
to discuss key 1ssues,

a detaled business planning process, combining top-down and
bottom-up approaches, with outputs reviewed by the Board,

a robust system of financial controls, including preventative
controls and a thorough review process, and

cireutation of monthly reports to the Board containing detailed
information regarding financial performance, rolling forecasts,
actual and forecast covenant compliance and financial and
non-financial KPIs

The above risk management and internal contrel systems have
been in place during 2015 and up to at least 14 March 2016 The
Audit and Risk Commuttee, on behalf of the Board, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems and nsk management
processes in place duning the year, taking account of any matenal
developments since the year end The Committee has not idenufied,
nor been advised of, any failings or weaknesses that it has
determined to be sigmficant As part of their review the Audit and
Risk Committee has considered the FRC's 2014 ‘Guidance on

Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and
Business Reporting’
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The Group did not have an internal audit function during the year
As part of its review of financial position, prospects and procedures
during the IPO, the Committee considered the need for an internal
audit function It was concluded that an internal audit function ts not
necessary at this tme, given the relatvely straightforward nature of
the Group's operations and the low levels of portable assets such
as cash in hand and inventory The necessity of an internal audit
function will be kept under review

Whistleblowing

The Group encourages staff to report any concerns which they
believe need to be brought to management's attention concerning
any financial or other impropriety

All staff receve a copy of the employee handbock, which ncludes
whistleblowing arrangements and sets out the procedures that apply
for a member of staff to raise concerns in respect of suspiecions of
wrongdoing or unethical conduct

The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's whistleblowing procedures at the March 2016 meeting

Non-audit services

During the year the auditors provided other services in relation

1o thewr work as reporting accountants in connection with the
Company's IPO and adwisory services in relation to the exploration
of other strategic optiens The fees for these services totalled
£025,000, compared to a fee for the statutory audit of £80,000
Excluding the work as reporting accountants and other services in
relation to the IPO, non-audit services totalled £129,000 and related
to services delivered befare Ernst & Young LLP were appointed as
statutory auditor

Ernst & Young LLP were caonsidered best placed to carry out this
work given their knowledge of the Company and its operations
The Board was saushed that this work would not compromise the
independence of Ernst & Young LLP given the exceptional nature
of the majonty of services provided

The Audit Committee approves any non-audit services provided by
the auditor for any projects with an expected cost greater than 15%
of the statutory audit fee to ensure the independence of Ernst

& Young LLP 1s maintained
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Annual evaluation of the Audit Committee's performance
Due to the short period of existence for the Audit Commuttee, an
evaluation has not been undertaken The first full evaluation will
be completed in 2016 and reported upon In the Annual Report

Fair, balanced and undearstandable

The Board recognises its duty to ensure that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, are fairr, balanced and understandable
and prowide the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the performance, strategy and business model of the Company
The Board has placed reliance on the following to form this opinion

» the process by which the Annual Report and Accounts were

prepared, including detalled project planning and a

comprehensive review process,

the review of the Annual Report and Accounts by the Audit and

Risk Commitiee, placing reliance cn the expenence of the

Committee members,

raports prepared by senior management regarding critical

accounting judgements and key financial areas,

& discussions with and reports prepared by the external auditor,

¢ ongoing financial information, including KPIs, recerved on a
monthly basis

As detailed in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement on page 58,
each of the Directors has confirmed that, to the best of each
person's knowledge and belief, the Annual Report 1s fanr, balanced
and understandable

Paul Gilbart
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee
14 March 2016
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

Chairman
Paul Gilbert 0

Other Members Penny Hughes and Phiip Newborough

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to welcome you to the first Report of the Remuneration
Committee which The Gym Group has prepared since its IPO in
November 2015 and to introduce myself as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

This Repart contains details of the remuneration receved by our
three Executive Directors during 2015, which was a transformational
year far the Company as a whole and a transitional year for the
Executive Directors In terms of their remuneration In addition, as
this 15 the first Report published since Admission, 1t also contains
aur future remuneration policy which, If approved by shareholders
at our 2016 AGM, will apply to all payments made to our Directors
for three years from that date

Summary of our Directors’ remuneration policy

In the IPO prospectus, a summary was provided of our approach to
executive remuneration post Admissicn This approach was agreed
following a review, undertaken with the assistance of independent
adwisers, of the Group's remuneration policy for senior managerment,
including the Executive Directors, in order to ensure that it was
approprate for a isted company environment

The principal objectives of our pay policy are

» to attract, retain and motivate the Group's Executive Directors and
senior management, provide reward opportunities that align with,
and support, the Group's business strategy as It evolves, and align
incentives with the creation of long-term shareholder value,

= 10 ensure that the Executive Directors are fairly rewarded for
the Group's performance over the short and long-term, and

+ for a significant propoertion of ther potential total remuneration
to be performance-related

Elemant of pay Private equity-backed pay practice

We are very aware that our policy must be capable of being
operated so as to take account of the Company's evolution following
Admission In particular, the palicy must reflect the fact that our
senior executive pay arrangements need to transiticn over time from
ones that are reflective of a non-hsted private equity-backed entity
In which senior executives have very material stakes to a more
standard plc structure, as summarnsed in the table below

As a result, we believe it very much in our shareholders’ interests

to reserve an appropnate degree of flexibility n our policy For
example, as explained below, the Executive Directors’ remuneration
packages have been structured so that annual bonus and long-term
Incentive opportunity Increases ever the years following Admission
towards a more market standard listed company level, albeit with
additional headroom in terms of maximum reward opportunity
reserved in both plans to offer higher Incentive opportunity In later
years If considered appropnate Also, a conservative approach has
been taken to salary in 2016 {our first full year following Admission)
on the basis that, as the Company develops in the forthcomming
years, there may be a need to make above inflationary salary
Increases to move fixed pay to levels consistent with those of

a more mature business

Listed Plc pay practice

Base salary Lower than plc norms

Highar levels typically offered

Pension and benefits Lower than ple norms

Higher levels typically offered

Annual bonus

Lower bonus oppertunity than ple norms
Qften less formulalc/more discretionary
Payable In cash

Higher bonus opportunity typically offered More
formulalc, with a broader range of financial and
non-financial measures

Long-term incentives

Potentially most valuable element of the package
Large one-off' equity-based awards granted, linked
to a successful exit event

Smaller, but sull significant, element of the
package Regular annual grants made which vest
aver at least three years subject to achievement
af performance targets

43



The Gym Group plc € Annual Report and Accounts 2015 § Governance

Report of the Remuneration Committee continued

| have set out below some key points of our approach to Executive Director remuneratton which we believe delivers against these objactives

Element Summary of approach

Base salary

Base salanes will typically be reviewed annually, with consideration given to the performance of

the Company and the individual, any changes in responsibilities or scope of the role, as well as
pay practices In relevant comparator companies of a broadly similar size and complexity Also as
stated above, we will ensure that base salary levels and annual increases take due account of the
Company's development following, and the conservative base salary positioning on, Admission

Base salanes for the Executive Diractors for 2016 {(which are unchanged from Admission) will be
John Treharne £240,000, Jim Graham £180,000, Richard Darwin £180,000

Pension

The Executive Directors will receive defined contnibution pension prowision {or cash supplement)

which for 2016 will equal 15% of base salary for John Treharne and 10% for Jim Graham and

Richard Darwin

Annual bonus

While the overall bonus plan maximum will be 100% of salary, for 2016 the Executive Directors bonus

cap will be 47 5% of salary, with the intention that this be increased to 75% 1n 2017 For 2016, 70%

of the bonus will be based on financial targets (namely EBITDA, albeit subject to a minimum site
cpenings threshold), with the remaining 30% based on personal / strategic targets relating to KPls
such as site openings Net Promoter Score and staff engagement Going forward, we are committed
to providing as transparent disclosure as 1s practicable and 1s 1n shareholders’ interests of the bonus
targets used in the pnor year Bonuses will be payable in cash

For 2015, and as stated in the prospectus, the Executive Directors participated in a discretionary
annual bonus plan which given that the IPO occurred towards the end of the year, was allowed to
continue for the remainder of 2015 Having considered the Company’s overall perfarmanca in what
was a transformational year in which key financial highlights included 31 9% revenue growth and

15 9% growth In Group Adjusted EBITDA, the Remuneraticn Committee determined that the Executive
Directors should receive bonuses totalling £118,667 which reflected their vital contribution to the

Company's success

Long-term incentives

Share based lang-term incentives will be provided to the Executive Directors (and other selected

semor management) via a Perforrmance Share Plan ( PSP'), which was established on Admissien
While the normal individual plan maximum grant level will be shares equal in value ta 200% of base
salary, the first award made to John Treharne in 2016 will be over shares worth 87 5% of salary, with
Jim Graham and Richard Darwin receving an award over 75% of salary worth of shares Award levels
far 2017 and subsequent years are currently intended to be 175% of salary for John Treharne and
150% of salary for Jim Graham and Richard Darwin (although actual participauon levels will be kept
under regular review) The 2016 awards will vest three years after grant based upon performance
against stretching adjusted Earnings Per Share and relative Total Shareholder Return targets

In addition, to encourage Executive Directors to build or maintain a shareholding in the Company,
formal shareholding guidelines apply which require the current Executive Directors to hold shares
worth at least 300% of base salary, reflecting their existing targe holdings For any future Executive
Directors, the required |evel of holding will be 200% of salary

Malus/Clawback

Consistent with best practice, malusiclawback provisions may be operated at the discretion of the

Remuneration Committee in respect of awards granted under the PSP and the annual benus in

certain circumstances

Format of the report and matters to be approved at our AGM
The regulations governing the Directors' remuneration reports of
listed companies require that we split our report into two sections
the Policy Report sets out the Campany’s forward-looking Directors'
Remuneration Policy and the separate implementation Report gives
details of the payments made to Directors in 2015, as well as other
required disclosures
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Therefore, at our 2016 AGM we will be holding two votes on
remuneration matters

» avote on the Directors’ Remuneration Policy as set outin Part A
of this Remuneration Report, and
« avote on the remaining iImplementation sections of this Report

| hope that you will support our approach on remuneration matters
as we complete the wransizon to listed company practices

Paul Gilbert
Chartrman of the Remuneration Committee
14 March 2016




Introduction

This report contains the matenal required to be set out as the
Directors’ Remuneration Report for the purposes of Part 4 of The
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013, which amended The Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 {'the DRR regulations’)

Part A represents the Directors’ Remuneration Policy This policy will
take effect, subject to the approval of the shareholders, rmmedately

after the 2016 AGM

Part B constitutes the implementation sections of the Remuneration
Report (Implementation Report’) The auditors have reported on

Executive Directors

Element and purpose

Palicy and operation

Financial

Strateglc A
OVeManced  |statements,

Aeport

cerntain parts of the Implementation Report and stated whether,
in their opinion, those parts have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Compantes Act 2006 Those parts of the
Implementauon Report which have been subject to audit are
clearly indicated

Part A Directors’ remuneration policy

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy as set out in this section of the
Remuneration Report will take effect for all payments made to
Directors from the date of the AGM, which 1s expected to be held on
16 May 2016 The policy has been developed with regard to the UK
Corparate Governance Code and Is felt to be apprapriate to support
the long-term success of the Company while ensuring that it does
not promate Inappropriate nsk-taking

Maximum Performance measures

Base salary

This Is the core element of pay
and reflects the individual's role
and posltion within the Group
with some adjustment to reflect
their capability and contribution

Base salaries will typically

be rewiewed annually, with
conslderation given to the
performance of the Company
and the individual, any changes
in responsibilities or scope

of the role, as well as pay
practices in relevant comparator
compantes of a broadly similar
size and complexity (with due
account taken of both market
capitalisation and turnover)

The Committee does not strictly
follow benchmark pay data

but instead usesitas oneofa
number of reference points when
considering, In its judgement, the
appropnate level of salary Base
salary 1s paid monthly in cash

It ts anticipated that salary nfa
Increases will generally be

In Ine with those awarded to
salaried staff That said, in certain
circumstances (including, but

net imited to, changes in role
and responsibilities, market
levels individual and Company
performance and to reflect the
conservative salary positioning at
PO}, the Committee may make
larger salary increases to ensure
they are market competitive The
rationale for any such increase
will be disclosed In the relevant
Annual Report However, an
overnding cap applies, the effect
of which is that no Executive
Director's base salary will be
increased If the result of such
increase Is that their base salary
would be higher than the median
CEO salary in the FTSE All-Share
Travel & Leisure sector from time
to time

Benefits
To provide benefits
valued by recipients

The Executive Directers currently
receive private medical cover, a
car parking space {in the case of
the CFQ) and additional mebile
telephone contracts (in the case
of the CEO)

The Committee reserves the
discretlon to introduce new
benefits where It concludes
that 1t 1s appropriate to do so,
hawing regard to the particutar
circumstances and to

market practice

Where appropriate, the Company
will meet certain costs relating to
Executive Director relocations

It 1s not possible to prescribe nfa
the hkely change 1n the cost

of Insured benefits or the cost

of some of the other reported
benefits year-to-year, but the
provision of benefits 1s currently
Intended to be imited in value to
£10,000 {or such higher amount
as the Committee determines},
plus a further 100% of base salary
In the case of relocations

The Committee will monitor the
costs of benefits in practice
and will ensure that the overall
costs do not increase by

more than the Committee
considers appropriate in all the
circumstances
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Executive Directors {continued)

Element and purpose

Palicy and operation

Maximum

Perfarmance measures

Pension
To provide retirement benefits

Executive Directors can receive
pension contributions to personal
pension arrangemenits or,if a
Director 1s impacted by annual

or lifetime limits on contribution
levels to qualifying pension

plans, the balance (or all} can be
paid as a cash supplement

The maximum employer's
contribution 1s imited to up to
15% of base salary

nfa

Annual bonus plan

To motivate executives

and incentivise delivery of
performance over a one-year
aperating cycle, focusing on the
short- to medium-term elements
of our strategic aims

Annual bonus plan levels and the
appropriateness of measures

are reviewed annually at the
commaencerment of each financial
year to ensure thay continue to
support our strategy

Once set, performance measures
and targets will generally

remain unchanged far the year,
except to reflect events such as
corporate acquisitions or other
major transactions where the
Committee considers 1t to be
necessary In Its opinion to make
appropriate adjustments

Annual bonus plan outcomes are
currently paid in cash following
the determination of achievement
against performance measures
and targets (although the
flexibility 1s reserved to pay a
portion In deferred shares which
may alsa allow for a dividend
accrual feature)

Clawback provisions apply to the
annual bonus plan as explained
in mora detall tin the notes to the
policy table

The maximum level of annual
bonus plan outcomes 1s 100%
of base salary for the duration
of this policy However, in 2018
the Executive Directors' bonus
cap will be 47 5% of salary, with
it currently intended that this
be increased to 75% cf salary in
2017 Actual bonus opportunity
each year will be kept under
regular review, subject to the
100% oversll cap

The performance measures
applied may be financial or non-
financigl and corporate, dvisional
or individual and in such
proportions as the Committee
considers approprate

Where a sliding scale of targets
1s used, attaining the threshaold
level of performance for any
measure will not typically
produce a pay-out of more than
20% of the maximum portion of
overall annual bonus attributable
to that measure, with a sliding
scale to full pay-out for maximum
performance However, the
annual bonus plan remains a
discretionary arrangement and
the Committee retains a standard
power to apply 1ts judgement to
ad|ust the outcome of the annual
bonus plan for any performance
measure {from zera to any cap})
should 1t consider that to be
appropriate

Long-term incentives

To motivate and incentivise
delivery of sustained
performance over the long-
term, and to promote alignment
with shareholders' interests, the
Company operates the PSP

Awards under the PSP may

be granted as nil/nominal

cost options ar conditional
awards which vest to the extent
petformance conditions are
satished over a penod of at least
three years Vested awards may
also be settled in cash

The PSP rules allow that the
number of shares subject to
vested PSP awards may be
increased to reflect the value of
dividends that would have been
paid in respect of any record
dates falling between the grant
of awards and the expliry of any
vesting period

Clawback and malus provisions
apply to PSP awards and are
explained in more detail in the
notes to the policy table

The PSP allows for awards over
shares with a maximum value of
200% of base salary per financial
year (300% In exceptional
circumstances) Actual
participation levels will be kept
under regular review, and the
Committee expressly reserves
discretion to make such awards
as it congiders appropnate within
the plan hmit

The Committee may set such
performance conditions on

PSP awards as It considers
appropriate, whether financial

or non-financial and whether
corporate, divisional or indiwmdual

Performance perods may

be over such periods as the
Commuittee selects at grant,
which will not be less than, but
may be longer than, three years

No more than 20% of awards vest
for attaining the threshold level of
perfermance conditions
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Policy and operation

Maximum

Financial

Strategic

iovernancyg

Statements

Report

Performance measures

Share ownership guidelines
To further align the interests of
Executive Directors with those
of shareholders

Executive Directors are expected
to bulld up a prescribed level of
shareholding To the extent that
the prescribed level has not been
reachead, Executive Directors

will be expected to retain a
proportion of the shares vesting
under the Company's PSP until
the guidelne 1s met

300% of base salary for the
current Executive Directors,
200% of salary for any future
Executive Director

The Committee reserves the
power to amend, but not reduce,
these levels in future years

nfa

All-staff share plans

To encourage share ownership
by staff, thereby allowing

them to share In the long-term
success of the Group and align
their interests with those of the
shareholders

The Company has decided

to aperate an all-staff share
scheme (under which an award
of 'free shares' can be made, as
well as ‘partnership shares' and
‘matching shares’) The Comparny
also has the facility to operate a
Sharesave scheme

These all-staff share plans are
established under HMRC tax-
advantaged regimes and follow
the usual form for such plans

Executive Directors would

be able to participate in all-
employee share plans an the
same terms as other Group staff

The maximum participation levels
for all-staff share plans will be the
limits for such plans set by HMRC
from ume to time

Caonsistent with normal
practice, such awards would
not be subject to performance
conditions

Chairwoman and Non-Executive Directors

Elemant and pLrpose

Policy and operation

Maximum

Performance measuras

Chairwoman and Non-Executive
Director fees

To enable the Company to recrunt
and retain Company Chairs

and Non-Executive Directors

of the highest calibre, at the
appropnate cost

The fees paid to the Charrwoman
and Non-Exacutive Drrectors aim
te be competitive with other fully
listed cempanies of equivalent
size and complexity

The fees payable to the
Non-Executive Directors are
determined by the Board with the
Charwoman’s fees determmed by
the Committee Directors do not
participate in decisions regarding
their own fees

The Chairwoman and Non-
Executive Directors will not
participate in any new cash or
share incentive arrangements
from the tme of Admission

No benefits are envisaged for the
Chairwaman and Non-Executive
Directers but the Company
reserves the nght to provide
benefits including travel and
office support

Fees are paid monthly in cash

The aggregate fees and any
benefits of the Chairwoman and
Non-Executive Directors will not
exceed the hmit from time to time
prescribed within the Company's
Articles of Assoclation for such
fees {currently £500,000 pa In
aggregate)

Any increases actually made will
be appropnately disclosed

n/a
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Notes to the policy table

Malus and clawback

The Remuneration Committee may apply malus and clawback to a
PSP award where there are circumstances which would justify such
acticn The relevant ciicumstances include but are not imited to

» the Company matenially misstated its financial results for any
reason and that misstatement would result or resulted ether
directly or indirectly in an award being granted or vesting to a
greater extent than would have been the case had that
misstatement not been made,

« the extent to which any performance target andlor any other

condition was satished was based on a matenal error, or on

inaccurate or misleading information or assumptions which
resulted erther directly or indirectly in an award being granted or
vesting to a greater extent than would have been the case had
that error nat been made, and

circumstances arose of continued to arise dunng the vesting

period of an award which would have warranted the summary

disrmissal of the participant

[ ]

Normally, clawback can operate for up o three years following the
vesting of an award Similar clawback provisions apply to the annual
bonus plan

Stating maximum amounts for the remuneration policy

The DRR Regulations and related investor guidance encourages
companies to disclose a cap within which each element of the
Directors’ remuneration policy will operate Where maximum
amounts for elements of remuneration have been set within the
Directors’ remuneraticn policy, these will operate simply as caps
and are not indicative of any aspiration

Travel and hospitality

While the Commuttee does not consider It to formn part of benefits in
the normal usage of that term, it has been advised that corporate
hospitality, whether paid for by the Company or ancther, and
business travel for Directors and n exceptional circumstances their
families may technically come within the applicable rules and so the
Committee expressly reserves the nght for the Committee to
authonse such activities within its agreed policies

Differences between the policy on remuneration for Directors from
the policy en remuneration of other staff

While the appropriate benchmarks vary by role, the Company seeks
to apply the philosophy behind this policy across the Company as a
whole Where the Group s pay policy for Directars differs from its pay
policies for groups of staff, this reflects the appropnate market rate
position and/or typical practice for the relevant roles The Company
takes into account pay levels, bonus opportunity and share awards
applied across the Group as a whole when setting the Executive
Directors’ remuneration policy
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Committee discretions

The Committee will operate the annual bonus plan and PSP
according to thew respective rules and the above policy table The
Committee retains discretion, consistent with market practice, In a
number of respects, in relation to the operation and admintstration
of these plans

These discretions include, but are not hmited to, the following

s the selection of participants,

» the timing of grant of an award/bonus opportunity;

* the size of an award/bonus opportunity subject to the maximum
Iimits set out in the policy table,

s the determination of performance against targets and resultant
vesting/bonus pay-outs,

» discretten required when dealing with a change of control or
restructuring of the Group,

« determination of the treatment of leavers based on the rules of the

plan and the appropnate treatment chosen,

adjustments required in certain circumstances (e g nghts 1ssues,

corparate restructuring events and special dividends), and

e the annual review of performance measures, weightungs and
targets from year to year

In addiuon, while performance measures and targets used in the
annual benus plan and PSP will generally remain unaltered, if events
occur which, in the Commuttee’s opinion, would make a different or
amended target a farrer measure of performance, such amended or
different target can be set provided that it 1s not matenally more or
less difficult to satisfy, having regard to the event in question

Any use of these discretions would, where relevant, be explained in
tha Directors' Remuneration Report and may, where appropnate and
practicable, be the subject of cansultatron with the Company’s major
shareholders In addition, for the avoidance of doubt, In approving
this policy report, authority 1s given to the Company to honour any
commitments entered into with current or former Directors prior to
the adoption of this policy

The Committee may make minor amendments to the policy set out
abave for requlatory exchange control, tax or administrative
purposes or to take account of a change n legislation, without
obtaining shareholder approval for that amendment



Recruitrment remuneration policy

The Company’s recrutment remuneratton policy aims to give the
Committee sufficient flexibility to secure the appointment and
promotion of high-calibre executives to strengthen the management
tearmn and secure the skill sets to deliver our strategic aims

In terms of the principles for setting a package for a new Executive
Drrecter, the starting point for the Committee will be to apply the
general policy for Executive Directors as set out above and structure
a package in accordance with that policy Consistent with the DRR
Regulations, any caps contained within the policy for fixed pay do
not apply to new recruits, although the Committee would not
envisage exceeding these caps In practice

The annual bonus plan and PSP, including the maximum award
levels, will operate as detailed in the general policy in relation to any
newly appointed Executive Director For an internal appointment, any
vanable pay element awarded n respect of the prior role may erther
continue on Its onginal terms or be adjusted to reflect the new
appolntment as appropriate

For external and internal appointments, the Committee may agree
that the Company will meet certain relocation expenses as it
considers appropnate

For extarnal candidates, it may be necessary to make additional
awards in connection with the recruitment to buy out awards
forfested by the individual on leaving a previous employer

For the avordance of doubt, buy-out awards are not subject to a
formal cap Any recrutment-related awards which are not buy-outs
will be subject to the Imits for the annual bonus plan and PSP as
stated in the general policy Details of any recruitment-related
awards will be appropnately disclosed

For any buy-outs the Company will not pay more than 1s necessary
In the view of the Committee, and will in all cases seek, in the first
Instance, to deliver any such awards under the terms of the existing
annual bonus plan and PSP [t may, however, be necessary in some
cases to make buy-out awards on terms that are more bespoke than
the existing annual bonus plan and PSP

All buy-outs, whether under the annual bonus plan, PSP or otherwise,
will take due account of the service obhgations and performance
requirements for any remuneration relinguished by the individual
when leaving a previcus employer The Committee will seek, where
it1s pracucable to do so, to make buy-outs subject to what are,

In its opinton, comparable requirements in respect of service and
performance However, the Committee may choose to relax this
requirement in certain cases, such as where the service andfor
performance requirements are matenally completed, or where such
factors are, in the view of the Committee, reflected in some other
way, such as a significant discount to the face value of the awards
forfened, and where the Committee considers it to be in the interests
of shareholders

A new Non-Executive Director would be recruited on the terms
explained above In respect of the main pohcy for such Directors

Strategic ] Financial
Repon Covernance

Statamants

Service contracts

Executive Directors

Each of the Executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company which were effective upon Admission and dated
6 November 2015 The policy I1s that each Executive Director's
service agreement should be of indefinite duration, subject to
termination by the Company or the individual on six months' notice
The service agreements of all Executive Directors comply with that
policy The contracts (which are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office) contain a payment in lieu of notce
clause which 1s firmited to base salary only

The Committee reserves flexibility to alter these principles if
necessary to secure the recruitment of an appropnate candidate
and If appropriate introduce a longer initial notice period of up to
two years reducing over tme

Non-Executive Directors
The independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed by letters
of appointment

The Chairwoman's and Paul Gilbert’s appointments are for initial
periods of three years, are subject to re-election at each Annual
General Meeting of the Company and are terminable on one manths'
notice given by either party

David Burns 1s appointed to the Board by vanous funds managed
by Phoenix Equity Partners 2010 Guernsey Limited pursuant to the
terms of the Relationship Agreement His appointment is terminable
on one months' notice given by either party, subject to the terms of
the Relationship Agreement

Philip Newborough 1s appointed to the Board for up to 12 months
after Admission Hrs appomntment s terminable on one months'
notice given by either party

The Non-Executive Directors cannot participate in the Company's
Incentive plans from Admission, are not entitled to any pension
benefits and are not entitled to any additional payment in
compensation for early termination of their appointment beyand
the notice referred to above

For each Non-Executive Director the effective date of their latest
letter of appointment {which are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office) 1s

Name Date of appointment

6 November 2015

6 November 2015

6 November 2015

6 November 2015

Penny Hughes
Paul Gilbert

David Burns

Philip Newborough
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Termination policy summary

The Remuneration Committee will consider treatments on

a termination having regard to all of the relevant facts and
crreumstances available at that time This policy applies both to
any negotiations hinked to notice periods on a termination and any
treatments that the Committee may choose to apply under the
discretions available to it under the terms of the annual bonus plan
and PSP The potential treatments on termination under these plans
are as follows

Annual Benus Plan

If an Executive Director resigns or Is dismissed for cause before the
bonus payment date, the right to recewe any bonus normally lapses
if an Executive Directar ceases employment before such date by
reason of death, imury, ill health, disability or any other reason
determined by the Committee, such bonus will be payable as the
Committee In its absolute discretion determines Similar treatment
will apply in the event of a change in contral of the Company

Performance Share Plan
If, duning the performance or vesting period, a participant

e resigns or 1s dismessed for cause, awards lapse in full,

» dies, awards vest in full, and

» ceases to be employed due to injury, il health, disability,
redundancy, the participant’s employing company or employing
part of a business being sold out of the Group
or for any other reason the Committee determines, awards
are retained and vest In the normal course subject to the
performance conditions, or, If the Committee so decides,
immediately on the participant ceasing to be in employment
Awards will be pro-rated by reference to the proporton of
the performance period for which the parucipant remained
employed, unless the Committee deterrnines otherwise

If there 1s & change of control or winding up of the Company awards
typically vest to the extent that the relevant perfermance conditions
have been satisfied at that ime and subject also to pro-rating,
unless the Committee determines a different basis of vestng

The all-staff Share Incentive Plan and Sharesave scheme provide
treatments for feavers in ine with HMRC rules for such plans

The Company has the power to enter into settlement agreements
with Directors and to pay compensation to settle potential legal
clams In additton, and consistent with market practice, in the event
of the termination of an Executive Director, the Company may make
a contribution towards that indvidual’s legal fees and fees for
outplacement services as part of a negotiated settlement Any
such fees will be disclosed as part of the detail of termination
arrangements For the avoidance of doubt, the policy does not
include an explicit cap on the cost of termination payments

External appointments

The Cornpany's policy 1s to permit an Executive Director to serve as
a non-executive director elsewhere when this does not conflict with
the Indmidual’'s duties to the Company, and where an Executive
Director takes such a role they may be entitled to retain any fees
which they earn from that appointment Such appointments are
subject to approval by the Chairwoman
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Statement of consideration of employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group

Pay and employment conditions generally 1n the Group will be
taken into account when setting Executive Directors’ remuneration
The Committee will receive regular updates on overall pay and
conditions in the Group, including (but not imited to) changes in
base pay and any staff bonus pools in operation There Is also
oversight of the all-staff share plans which Executive Directors

and all other Group staff can participate in on the same terms

and conditions Reflecting standard practice, the Company will not
consult with staff in drawing up the Company’s annual Remuneration
Report or when determining the underlying policy

Statement of consideration of shareholder views

The 2016 AGM 15 the first occasion on which the Company will
seek the support of its shareholders for matters relating to the
remuneration of Executive Directors The Committee will ensure
that it considers all of the feedback which 1t receives from its
shareholders duning this process

Mustrations of application of remuneration policy

The following charts show how the remuneration policy for
2018 set out above for Executive Directors 1s applied using the
following assumptions
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+ Consists of base salary, benefits and pension
# Base salary is the salary to be paid in 2016
# Benefits measured as benefits pard in the year ended 31 December 2015 on an annualised basis
+ Pension measured as the defined contribution or cash allowance in lieu of Company contnibutions of 10% to 15% of salary

Minimum

Base salary Benefits Pension Total ixed
John Treharne £240,000 £8 810 £36,000 £284,810
Jim Graham £180 000 £3,046 £18,000 £201,046
Richard Darwin £180,000 £2 820 £18 000 £200,820
Based on what the Director would receive if performance was on-target {excluding share price appreciation and
dividends)
Target « Annual bonus. consists of the on-target bonus (0% of maximum opportunity used for illustrative purposes)

s LTI consists of the threshold level of vesting (20% vestng) under the PSP
Based on the maximum remuneration recevable {excluding share price apprectation and dividends)

Maximum s Annual bonus consists of maximum bonus of 47 5% of base salary

» LTl consists of the face value of awards (at B7 5% of salary for John Treharne and 75% of salary for Jim Graham and
Richard Darwin} under the PSP

It should be noted that, as explained above, the Executive Directors’ annual bonus opportunity and PSP award levels in 2017 will be increased
An amended chart will be contained in next year's Report to reflect these changes

Part B Implementation report

Single total figure table (audited)

The remuneration for the Executrve and Non-Executive Directors of the Company who pertormed qualifying services durning the year
1s detalled below The Non-Executive Directors received no remuneration ather than their annual fee

As the Group listed in November 2015, a significant part of the 2015 and all of the 2014 remuneration related to when the Group was
privately owned

Far the year ended 31 December 2015

Director Salary/fees' J::g::; Bonus Il-:cr:‘egr;:ii::; Pension Other? mmuner;ra:::
John Treharne £205,444 £8,810 £60,000 - £13,539 - £287,793
Jim Graham £168,141 £3,046 £36,000 - £8,523 - £215,710
Richard Darwin £113,346 £1,022 £22,667 - £2,709 £66,710 £206,454
Paul Gilbert £93,190 £2,575 - - - - £95765
Penny Hughes! £19,861 - - - - - £19,861
David Burns £30,000 - - - - - £30,000
Philip Newborough £30,000 - - - - - £30,000
Andrew Mathews® £74,688 £857 - - £2,604 - £78,149

Notes

| Fees are payable to the Phoenix Advised Funds and Bridges Ventures in relatlon to monitoring and the appointments of David Burns and Philip Newborough

2 Taxable benefits compnse private medical cover, a car parking space (in the case of tha CFO) and additional moblle telephone contracta {in the case of the CEQ)

3 Relates to a non-recurnng joining bonus on appointment as a Directar prior to Admission

4 Appointed with effect from 6 November 2015 As disclosed In the Prospectus an Admission Penny Hughes became entitled to receive a fee of £50 000 for services ‘
provided to the Company prior to the date of Prospectus with it agreed that conditional on Adrisslon she would subscerlbe for en amount equal to the net amaunt of
such fee being 13 589 new Ordinary shares of the Company at the Offer Price This is in addition to the remuneration highlighted in the table above

5 Resigned as a Director on 18 May 2015 Remuneratlon relates to Andrew Mathews's penod as a Director ‘
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

Taxable Long-term Total
Director Selaryfeas' benafits? Bonus incantives Pension Othar remuneration
John Treharne £185,000 £8,399 £60.000 - £0,220 - £262,619
Jim Graham £108,000 £2,031 £108,000 - £4.N7 - £222,748
Paul Gilbert £133,332 £1,896 - - - - £135,228
Dawd Burns £30,000 - - - — - £30,000
Phihp Newborough £30,000 - - - - - £30,000
Andrew Mathews £124,800 £684 £20,000 - £6,500 - £151,984

Notes.
1 Fees are payable to the Phoenix Advised Funds and Bridges Ventures In relation to monitoring and the appaintments of David Burns and Philip Newboraugh
2 Taxable benehts compriga private medical cover and additional mokbile telephone contracts {in the case of the CEQ)

The aggregate emoluments (being salary / fees, bonuses, benefits and pension allowances) of all Directors for 2015 was £963,732
(2014 £832,579)

Further information on the 2015 annual bonus (audited)

For 2015, and as stated in the Prospectus, the Executive Directors parucipated in a discretionary annual bonus plan which, given that the

IPO occurred towards the end of the year, was allowed to continue for the remainder of 2015 Having considered the Company's overall
perforrmance in what was a transformational year in which key financial highlights included 31 9% revenue growth and 15 9% growth in Group
Adjusted EBITDA, the Remuneration Committee determined that the Executive Directors should receve bonuses totalling £118,667 which
reflected their wvital contribution to the Company’s success The Committee believes that the actual performance indicators it used to
determine the 2015 bonus outturn are commercially sensitive and so will not be disclosed However, the Committee is committed to adhering
to principles of transparency In terms of annual bonus target disclosure going forward and will, therefore, provide appropnate and relevant
levels of disclosure of the bonus targets applied for (and performance against) the 2016 bonus In next year's Report

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)
The table below detalls for each Director, the total number of Directors’ Interests in shares at 31 December 2015

Philip
Director John Treharme Jim Graham' Richard Darwin? Paul Gllbert  Penny Hughes David Burns Newbarough

Number of Ordinary shares held 4 510,937 1,142,047 959,321 1,220,489 13,589 - -
as at 3t December 2015

1 Jim Graham also has an indirect Investment in the Company as an investor in Phoenix Equity Partners 2010 GPL P
2 The tetal number of Ordinary shares in which Richard Darwin or persons connected with him is or are intarested includes 35,758 Ordinary shares owned by
Charlotte Darwin

The shareholdings and awards set out above include those held by Directors and therr respective connected persons
Under share ownership guidelines implemented by the Remuneratton Committee, the existing Executive Directors are required to build
and then maintain a shareholding equivalent to at least 300% of base salary At the 2015 year and, the Executive Directors complied with

this requirement

Payments to past Directors (audited)
Andrew Mathews resigned as a Director on 18 May 2015 His remuneration has been disclosed to the date of termination

Payments for loss of office (audited)
No payments were made to any Director n respect of loss of office duning the year
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Performance graph and CEQ remuneration table {(unaudited)
The graph above shows the total shareholder return (TSR')
performance of an investment of £100 in The Gym Group plc’s
shares from its Iisting in November 2015 to the end of the penod,
compared with a £100 mvestment in the FTSE Small Cap Index over
the same pernod The FTSE Small Cap Index was chosen as a
comparator because 1t represents a broad equity market index

of which the Company is a constituent The TSR was calculated

in accordance with the relevant remuneration regulations

The table below details certain elements of the CEQ s remuneration
over the year
Leng term

Incentive
vesting rates

against

Single figura Annual maximum

of total bonus  oppertunity

remuneration pay-out %

2015 £287793 £60,000 nfa

There was no formal cap on annual bonus opportunity in 2015
Therefore, we have stated the bonus actually paid to the CEOC for
2015 In the above table, as opposed to the percentage of overall
bonus cpportunity earned No long-term incentive awards vested
In 2015

As the Company listed i November 2015, part of the 2015
remuneration relates te when the Group was privately owned

Percentage change in remuneration of Director undertaking
the role of CEQ (unaudited)

The below table presents the year on year percentage change in
remuneration received by the CEO, compared with the change in
remuneration received by all UK staff

CEO All saff
Salary and fees 11% 25%
Short-term incentives - 25%
Ali taxable benefits 26 8% 39%

Strategic Financlal
@ @ overnancy  srataments,

Relative importance of spend on pay {unaudited)

The table below detalls the change In total staff pay between 2014
and 2015 as detailed in note 8 of the Financial Statements,
compared with distnbutions to sharehalders by way of dividend,
share buy backs on any other significant distnbutions or payments
These figures have been calculated in ine with those in the audited
Financial Statements

2015 2014
“ change £'000 £000
Total gross staff pay 511% 7,520 4977

Dividends f share buy backs - - -

Implementation of Policy for 2016 (unaudited inforrnation)
Base salary

Base salaries from Admission, which will also apply for 2016, are as
follows

e John Trehame £240,000,
e Jim Graham and Richard Darwin £180,000

Pansion

Contributions rates for John Treharne for 2016 will be 15% of salary,
and 10% for Jim Graham and Richard Darwin Contributions may be
made as cash supplements In full or In part

Benefits
Details of the bensfits receved by Executive Directors are set out in
note 2 to the single figure table on page 51

There 13 no intentlon to introduce additional benefits in 2016
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Annual bonus

While the overall bonus plan maximum will be 100% of salary, for
2016 the Executive Directors' bonus cap will be 47 5% of salary 70%
of the bonus will be based on financial targets {(namely EBITDA,
albert subject to a mimimum site epenings threshold), with the
remaining 30% based on personal/strategic targets relating to KPls
such as site apenings, Net Promoter Score and staff engagement
Due to 1ssues of commercial sensitivity, we do not believe 1t 1s In
shareholders’ interests to disclose any further details of these
targets on a prospective basis However, the Committee s
committed to adhenng to principies of transparency in terms of
retrospectve annual bonus target disclosure and will, therefore,
provide appropnate and relevant levels of disclosure of the bonus
targets applied for (and performance aganst) the 2016 bonus in
next year's Report Bonuses are payable in full in cash

Long-term incentives

Awards will be made in 2016 under the PSP to John Treharne over
shares worth 87 5% of salary, with im Graham and Richard Darwin
receving an award over 75% of salary worth of shares These awards
will vest three years after grant based upon performance against the
followang stretching equally weighted Adjusted Earnings Per Share
and relative TSR targets

Adjusted EPS

2018 Adjusted EPS' % of that part of the award that vests

Below 9p 0%
9p 20%
13 8p 100%

Between 9p and 13 6p Pro rata straight-line between

20% and 100%

1 Adjusted EPS i1s caleulated as basic earnings less amortisauon, exceptional
rerns and the resukiant tax effect, unless the Committee determines otherwise

Relative TSR vs FTSE Small Cap {(excluding investment trusts)
as at 1 January 2016

Gym Group ranking % of that part of the awsrd that vests

Below median 0%
Median 20%
Upper quintile 100%

Pro rata straight-line between

Med:ian to upper quintile  20% and 100%

Non-Executive Diractors’ fees

Penny Hughes will receive an annual fee of £130,000 as Chairwoman
Paul Gilbert will receive a fee of £50,000 as Senior Independent
Director The Company has agreed to pay Phoanix Advised Funds
a fee of £30,000 per annum {payable monthly} for so long as a
Non-Executive Director appointed by varnious funds managed by
Phoenix Equity Partners 2010 Guernsey Lumited (currently Dawid
Burns} pursuant to the Relationship Agreement remains on the
Board The Company has agreed to pay Bndges Ventures a fee
of £30,000 per annum (payable monthly} for as long as Philip
Newborough rematns a Nen-Executive Director
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The Committee (unaudited mformation)

The Committee’s pnincipal responsibilities are to recommend the
Group's policy on executive remuneration, determine the levels of
remuneration for Executive Directors and the Chairman and prepare
an annual remuneration report for approval by the shareholders at
the AGM

The Chief Executive Officer and other Executive Directors as
necessary are iInvited to attend meetings of the Committee, except
when their own remuneration Is being directly discussed Penny
Hughes takes no part in any discussions relating to her own
remuneration The Committee did not meet between the IPO and the
end of the financial pericd The Cormmittee met an 28 January 2016
and 9 March 2016 and reviewed the Terms of Reference, the
Executive Directors’ bonus outturn for 2015 and the 2016
remuneration policy, amongst other matters

The Committee has formal terms of reference which can be viewed
on the Company's website

FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP (FIT), signatories to the
Remuneration Consultants Group's Code of Conduct, were
appointed by the Committee dunng the year FIT provides advice to
the Committee on all matters relating to remuneration, including
best practice FIT provided no other services to the Group and,
accordingly, tha Committee was satsfied that the advice provided
by FIT was objective and independent FIT's fees in respect of 2015
were £59,000 FIT's fees were charged on the basis of the firm's
standard terms of business for advice provided

Statement of voting at general meeting

As the Company only listed in November 2015, there has not yet
been an AGM where a resolution to pass each of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy and Directors’ Remuneration Report has

been put forward for voting In next year's Annual Report this section
will have the voting breakdown of those two resoluttons from this
year's AGM

On behalf of the Board
Paul Gilbart

Chairman of the Remuneration Committeg
14 March 2016



Directors’ Report

Corporate structure

The Gym Group plc is a public company limited by shares,
incorporated in England and Wales and 1ts shares are traded on
the main market of the London Stock Exchange The Company
number is 08528493

The Board
The Directors who served during the year were

Penny Hughes {(appointed 6 November 2015)
John Treharne

Jim Graham

Richard Darwin (appointed 5 May 2015)
Paul Gilbert

Dawvid Burns (appointed 6 November 2015)

Philip Newborough {(appointed 6 November 2015)

Bndges Ventures LLP (resigned 6 Naovember 2015)

Andrew Mathews (resigned 18 May 2015}

The roles and biographies of the Directors as at the date of this
report are on pages 34 to 35

The general powers of the Directors are set out In Articles 64 to 68 -
of the Company's Articles of Association {'the Arucles') This provides
that the Board may exercise all the powers of the Company, subject
to applicable legislation, the Articles and any special resolution of
the Company, applicable on the date that any power 1s exercised

Appomtment and replacement of Directars

The appointment and replacement of Directors Is governed by the
Company's Articles These state that the number of Directors shall
not be less than twe nor exceed 12 and that

¢ the Shareholders may by ordinary resolution elect any person
willing to act as a Director,

» the Board may by ordinary resolution elect any person who is

willing to be a Director,

every Director shall retire at each AGM and be eligible for

re-election,

the Company may by special resolution, or ordinary resoluticn of

which special notce has been given according 1o applicable

legrislation, remove any Director before the expiratton of his or her

penod of office, and

there are a number of other grounds on which a Director's office

may cease namely, voluntary resignation, iIf they are absent

without special leave of absence for a period of more than six

months, they are physically or mentally incapable of acting as

a Director, they become bankrupt or prohibited by law from being

a Director

Diractors’ Indemnity

The Company has granted a third-party indemnity to each of its
Directors against any llability that attaches to them in defending
proceedings brought against them, to the extent permitted by
English law In addition, Directors and officers of the Company
and its subsidianes are covered by Directors' & Officers’

hability insurance

Compensation for loss of office

The Company does not have arrangements with any Director that
would provide compensation for loss of office or employment
resulting from a takeover, except that provisions of the Company's
share plans may cause options and awards granted under such
plans to vest on a takeover Further information 1s provided in the
Report of the Remuneration Committee on page 46

Strategic
Repart

Financal

Overview overnance]

Statements,

Dividend
Due to the short period of time between the IPO and the year end,
the Board has not recommended a final dvidend for 2015

The Directors intend to declare an intenm dividend in respect of the
fiest half of 2016

Future developments In the business of the Company

The ilkely future developments in respect to the business of the
Company can be found in the Strategic Report on pages 6 to 33 and
forms part of this report by reference

Corporate governance

A report on corporate governance and comphance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code Is set out on pages 36 to 38, and forms
part of this report by reference

Health and safety

An overview of health and safety 1s provided in the Corporate Social
Responsibility Statement on page 31 and forms part of this report
by reference

Greenhouse gas emissions

Information on the Group's greenhouse gas emissions 15 set out In
the Corporate Social Responsibility Statement on page 31 and forms
part of this report by reference

Political donations
The Company made no politcal donations in 2015 (2014 €nil)

Employee involvernent and policy regarding

disabled persons

The Gym Group operates an equal opportunities policy that ams
t0 treat Indmviduals farrty and not to discriminate on the basis of sex,
race, ethnic ongin, disability or on any other basis The Company's
policy and procedures are designed to prowvtde for full and farr
consideration and selection of disabled applicants, to ensure they
are properly trained to perform safely and effectively and to provide
career opportunities that allow them ta fulfil therr potental Where
a member of staff becomes disabled in the course of their
employment the Company will actively seek to retain them
wherever possible by making adjustments to their work content
and environment or by retraining them to undertake new roles

The Group provides staff with information on the Group's
performance and on matters concerning them on a regular

basis Considerable value is placed on the involvement of 1ts staff,
regular, open, fair and respeciful communication, zero tolerance
for human nghts violations, fair remuneration and, above all, a safe
working environment

Directors’ interests

The beneficial Interests of the Directors of the Company at

31 December 2015, and therr connected persons, In the issued
Ordinary shares are provided on page 52, within the Report of the
Remuneration Committee
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Major interests in shares

As at 14 March 2016, the Company was aware of the following
Interests representing 3% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company, correct as at the date of noufication It should be noted
that these holdings may have changed since notified to the
Company, however notificaticn of any change 1s not required until
the next applicable threshold is crossed

Number of

Institution shares  Percentage
Phoenix Advised Funds 35,990,866 281%
Bridges Community Development 17,813,080 139%
Venture Fund Il LP

Quantum Partners LLP 7,400,000 58%
Fil. Investments International 6,921,322 54%
Hargreave Hale Ltd 6,835,325 53%
Standard Life Investments Limited 6,057,644 47%
Threadneedle Asset Management Limited 5,125,172 4 0%
John Treharne 4,510,937 35%

Share capital

The detatls of the 1ssued share capital can be found in note 22 to
the Consclidated Financial Statements The nghts attached to the
Company's Ordinary shares, being the only share class of the
Company, are set out In the Articles of Association

The Ordinary shares rank pari passu in all respects with the cther
Ordinary shares In Issue, the sacunties including for voting purposes,
and will rank in full for all dividends and ather distributions thereafter
declared, made or paid on the Ordinary share capital of the
Company Each Ordinary share ranks equally in the nght to receive

a relative proportion of shares in case of a caprtalisation

of reserves

Subject to the provisions of the Act, any equity secunties issued
by the Company for cash rmust first be offered to shareholders in
proportion to their haldings of Ordinary shares The Act and Listing
Rules allow for the disapplicaton of pre-emption nghts which may
be effected by a spectal resolution of the shareholders, whether
generally or specifically, for a maxmum penod not exceeding

five years

Except in relation 1o dividends which have been declared and nghts
on a lquidation of the Company, the shareholders have no nghts 1o
share in the profits of the Company

The Ordinary shares are not redeemable However, the Company
may purchase or centract to purchase any of the Ordinary shares
on or off market, subject to the Act and the requirements of the
Lisung Rules
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There are no restrictions on transfers of Qrdinary shares other than

¢ certam restrictions which may from time to time be imposed by
laws or regulations such as those relaung to insider dealing,

» pursuant to the Company’s Share Dealing Code whereby the
Directors and designated staff require approval to deal in the
Company's shares, and

¢ where a person with an interest in the Company's shares has been
served with a disclosure notice and has failed to provide the
Company with information concerning interests in those shares

The Company 15 not aware of any arrangements between
shareholders that may result in restrictons on the transfer of
securiues or voung rights

Amendment to the Company’s Articles of Assoclation
The Company may alter its Articles of Association by special
resolution passed at a general meeting of shareholders

Authority for the Company to purchase its own shares

Prior to listing, the Company was generally and unconditionally
authonsed by its shareholders to make market purchases {(within the
meaning of section 693 of the Act) of its Ordinary shares on such
terms and in such manner as the Directors of the Company may
determine subject to the following conditions

(1) the maximum number of Ordinary shares authorised to be
purchased 1s 12,810,527 representing 10% of the Company’s
existing share capital immediately following Admission,

() the mimmum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for
an Ordinary share 1s £0 0001 (being the nominal value of the
Ordinary shares),

() the maximum price {exclusive of expenses) which may be paid
for each Ordinary share purchased under this is authority 1s the
higher of

(a) an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market
pnce shown in the quotations for an Ordinary share as dernved
from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five
business days immediately preceding the day on which the
Qrdinary share 1s contracted to be purchased, and

(b) an amount equal to the higher of the price of the last
independent trade of an Ordinary share and the highest
current independent bid for an Ordinary share as denved from
the London Stock Exchange Trading System, and

() the authority shall expire at the close of the next AGM of the

Company after the passing of this resclution ar, if earlier, on

30 June 2016




Authority to allot shares
Following Admission the allotment of equity secunties in connection
with an offer or fresh issue to of, in favour of

{} holders of Ordinary sheres in proportion {(as nearly as practicable)
to ther existing holdings,

(i} holders of equity securities if this 15 required by the nghts of those
securites or, if the Directors consider it necessary, as permitted
by the rights of those securities, and so that the Directors may
impose any imits, exclusions or restnctions or make other
arrangements as they consider appropnate in relation to treasury
shares, fractional entidlements, record dates, legal or practcat
problems under the laws in any territory or the requirements of
any regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter, the
Company may allot equity secunties for cash up to a maxmum
nommal amount of £640 526375

Significant agreements
The Company 1S not a party to any signihcant agreements that would
take effect, alter or terminate on a change of control of the Company

Financial risk management

The Group's financial nsk managernent objectves and policies,
including its use of financial Instruments, are set out In note 20 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Information presented in other sections

Certain information Is required to be included in the Annual Financial
Report by Listing Rule 9 8 4 The following table provides references
to where this Information can be found in this Annual Report If a
requirement |s not shown It is not applicable to the Company

Sectlon  Listing Rule Requirement Location

4 Detalls of long-term
Incentive schemes

Repeort of the Remuneration
Committee (page 46)

Strateglc ., Financial
Overview Report Giovernance

Statements,

Auditor
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this
Annuat Report confirms that

{a) so far as the Director 1s aware, there 13 no relevant audit
mnformation of which the Company's Auditor 1s unaware, and

{b) the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make himselffherself aware of any
relevant audit informanon and to establish that the Company’s
Auditor is aware of that information

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to contnue In
office as Auditors and a resolution to reappoint them will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM

AGM

Your attention I1s drawn to the Notice of AGM accompanying this
Annual Report which sets out the resolutions to be proposed &t the
forthcoming AGM

On behalf of the Board
Richard Darwin

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
14 March 2016
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report,
Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

As a listed company within the European Union, the Directors are
required to prepare the Group Financial Statements in accardance
with Internatlonal Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as

adopted by the EU The Directors have elected to prepare the Parent
Company Financial Statements in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 and UK Accounting Standard FRS 101 ‘Reduced

Disclosure Framework'

Under company law the Directors must not approve the Financial
Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Group for that period In prepanng the Financial
Statements, the Directors are required to

e select suitable accountung policies and then apply them
consistently,

¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

¢ present information, including accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable, cormparable and understandable
mformation,

« In respect of the Group Financia!l Statements, provide additional

disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements of

IFRS Is insufficient to enable users to understand the mpact of

particular transactions, other events and condiions on the Group's

financial position and performance,

state that the Group has complied with IFRS, subject to any

matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Financial

Statements,

in respect of the Parent Company Financial Statements, state

whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed,

subject 1o any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the

Financial Statements and

prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis,

unless they constder that to be inappropriate

The Drirectors confirm that the Financial Statements comply with the
above requirements

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them
to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4
of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties
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Responsibilities statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

» the Group Financial Statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and farr
view of the assets, habilities, financial position and results of the
Group, and

the Strategic Report contained in this Annual Report includes a
fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the posion of the Company and the Group, together with a
descnption of the principal nsks and uncertanues that they face,
and

the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, 13 farr,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
performance, business model and strategy

On behalf of the Board
Richard Darwin

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
14 March 2016




Strategic A Financial
Repon Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members

of The Gym Group plc

Our opinion on the Financial Statements
In our apinion

« the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at
31 December 2015 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

s the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared tn
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and

» the Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure
Framework’, and

s the Financial Staterments have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited
The Gym Group ple's Finanoal Statements compnse

Group Parent Company

Statement of Financial Posiion
as at 31 December 2015

Consohdated Statement of
Financial Posrion as at
31 December 2015

Consolidated Statement of
Ceornprehensive Income for the
year then ended

Statement of Changes i Equity
for the year then ended

Related notes 1 to 9 to the
Financial Statements

Consoldated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year
then ended

Consohdated Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended

Related notes 1 to 27 to the
Consolidated Financtal Statements

The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group Financial Statements I1s applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent
Company Financial Statements i1s applicable law and United
Kingdem Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced
Oisclosure Framework

Overview of our audit approach

Risks of matenal * Recognition of membership iIncome
misstatement * Annual goodwill impairment testing cash
flow and discount rate assumptions
Accounting for the IPO and related
refinancing transactions

Audit scope o We performed an audit of the complete
financial information of two components
and audit procedures an specific balances
for a further two components

s The components where we performed full
or specific audit procedures accounted for
100% of Earnings before interest, tax and
depreciation (EBITDA) pre-exceptional
items and other income, 100% of the Loss
befare tax, 100% of Revenue and 100% of
Total assets

Overall Group materiality of £340,000
which represents 2% of EBITDA pre-
exceptional items and other income

Matenality

Our assessment of risk of matenal misstatement

We identified the nsks of matenal misstatement descrnibed below as
those that had the greatest effect on our overall audit strategy, the
allocation of resources in the audit and the direction of the efforts of
the audit team In addressing these nsks, we have performed the
pracedures below which were designed in the context of the
Financtal Statements as a whole and, consequently, we do not
express any opiion on these individual areas
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members
of The Gym Group plc continued

Risk

QOur rasponsa to the nisk

Whet we cancluded to the
Audit Committee

Recognition of membership income - year ended

31 December 2015 £59 4 million (31 December
2014 £44 9 million)

Refer to the Report of the Audit and Risk
Committee (page 4i), Accounting policies {page
70), and note 4 of the Consoldated Financial
Statements (page 74)

Member’s monthly subscription payments are

collected each month on or just after the same day
of the month In which they joined Consequently, In

preparing the annual accounts management need
to estimate the amount of payments collected
which relate to membership after the year end
date and hence needs to be deferred

Although this process 1s not highly judgemental,
given the number of members, varying
subscniption rates, the rellance on outsourced
membership data systemns, manual general ledger
postings etc there 15 an increased nsk of matenal
error in making this estimate Further, consistent

with Auditing Standards, the recognition of revenue

1s assessed as a matenal fraud nsk on every audit
engagement with only rare exceptions

We obtained an understanding of the Group's revenue
streams, processes and related controls over these
processes, Including assessing the design and testing
the implementation of internal controls over these
revenue streams

We tested a sample of revenue transactions {ncluding
Journals) to ensure properly processed, recognised
and measured

We tested a sample of management’s deferred revenue
estmate to ensure complete and reasonably measured

We considered the nsk of management overnde in the
revenue process Including the deferred revenue estimate

The Group audit team performed the full scope audit
procedures on the membership income of the sole trading
entity within the Group

Based on our procedures
we did not 1dentify any
matenal errors in the
recognition of
membersh:p income in
the year ended

31 December 2015

Annual goodwlll impairment testing cash flow
and discount rate assumptlons — 31 December

2015 £45 2 millien (31 December 2014 £45.2 million)

Refer to the Report of the Audit and Risk
Committee (page 41), Accounting policies
{page 70}, and note 13 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (page 78)

As disclosed in note 13 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements goodwill recognised in the
Group statement of financial position of £45 2
million arising on the acquisiton of The Gym
Limited in 2013 has been allocated to the group
of cash generatng units {CGUSs’) comprising The
Gym chain of health and fitness facilities

As required management have undertaken an
annual impairment review in respect of this
goodwill in accordance with the requirements of
1AS 36 ‘Imparrment of Assets’ and concluded that
no impairment arses at 31 December 2015

We focused on this area due to both the
significance of the carrying value of goodwill and
the inherent uncertainty involved In an imparment
review, which requires management to make

significant judgements and estimations as to future

outcomes and assumptions of cash flows, along
with the discount rate to be applied to those cash
flows In addition, such judgements and estimates
could be influenced by management bias

The significant assumptions are disclosed in note
13 to the Consclidated Financial Statements

We obtained and considered management's impairment
testing, considenng the calculation methodology, sources for
key assumptions and sensitivities applied

We discussed with management the basis of the key
assumptions used In the imparment model, being the
discount rate, long-term growth rate, revenue growth and cost
inflation as disclosed in note 13 to the Consochidated Financial
Statements We then challenged the reasonableness of these
assumptions by reference to histonical data, external
benchmarks and the nsk of management bias

We also assessed the historical accuracy of management's
forecastng by comparing actual financial perfarmance to
management's previous forecasts / budgets

We considered management's sensitivity analysis showing
the impact of a reascnable change in imparrment
assumptions to determene whether an imparment charge
was required This constderauon Included perforrming our
own sensitivity analysis by reference to the results of our
assessment of assumptions referred to above

We ensured that the financial statement disclosures,
partcularly those i1 note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, met the requirements of tAS 36 and IAS 1R
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (1AS 1RY), particularly
those related to judgements, estimation uncertainty and
sensitivities

The Group audit team performed the full scope audnt
procedures on the iImpairment model prepared for The Gym

As part of our work we utilised EY valuauons specialists to
assist In our assessment of the discount rate and long-term
growth rate assumptions used i the impairment model and
the methodology of the model

Based on our
procedures, we beleve
that the cash flow and
discount rate
assumphons used by
management in The Gym
impairment model are
within acceptable ranges
and that reasonably
possible changes in the
key assumptions would
not cause an imparment
to arise Furthermore we
consider that
management's
impaurment model
methodology 1s
acceptable

The financial statement
disclosures, partcularly
thase in note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial
Statements, materally
comply with the
applicable requirements
of 1AS 36 and IAS 1R

60




Strategic Financial

Report Statements,

What we concluded to the

Risk Our response to the nsk Audit Committee
Accounting for the IPO and related refinancing We tested the flow of funds ansing in relation to the IPO, debt  Based on our procedures
transactions refinancing, finance lease repayments and swap breaks etc, we did not identify any
including agreeing amounts to supporting documentation material errors in the
Refer to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and bank statements We also assessed the reasonableness recogntion,
and notes 6, 10, 18, 20 and 22 of the Consolidated  of the measurement, de-recognition or recogniton and measurement or
Financial Statements {pages 68 to 86) presentation of these vanous transactions to ensure the presentation of the IPO
treatment adopted in the Group's accounts accords with the  and related refinancing
The £81 5m net proceeds of the IPO (£89 9m gross  requirements of |AS 32, [AS 39 and IAS 17 transactions within the
proceeds less £8 4m costs) have prnmarnly been Consolidated Financial
used to settle shareholder loans (£22 7m} bank In respect of the IPO costs of £8 4m we tested a sample of Statements
facilities (£53 9m), finance lease obhgations these costs to supporting documentation to ensure therr
(£9 9m) and interest rate dervatives (£0 8m) inclusion as IPO costs was appropriate and that these costs  The disclosures in
were correctly measured We also tested the allocation of respect of the IPO and
The Group also entered into a new term loan these costs between the newly i1ssued shares and the related refinancing
facity with HSBC, drawing down £10m, with fees of existing shares, including venfying that the resultant transactions, particularly
£11m being incurred Unamortised finance costs recognition In the iIncome statement or within equity was those In notes §,10,18, 20
on the previous debt facilities of £1 3m have also correct based upon this allocaten In particular we and 22 of the
been witten off to the Income statement considered the appropriateness of management’s 34 66 ratio Consolidated Financial
in Iight of the requirements of IAS 32 and the underlying Statements, matenally
Management have considered the accounting share positon comply with the
treatments of these varnous transactions and costs applicable IFRS
in ight of tha requirements of IAS 32 Financial Wa also assessed the measurement and presentatton of the  requirements
Instruments Presentation ('IAS 327, IAS 39 IPC and refinancing transactions within the cash flow
‘Financial Instruments Recogmtion and statement In hght of the requirerents of 1AS 7 ‘Statement of
Measurement’ { IAS 39" and IAS 17 ‘L eases’ Cash Flows'
(IAS 17

We assessed whether the disclosures given in respect of the
Management have apportioned £8 4m [PO costs ~ IPO, refinancing and related financial instruments ara
between the newly 1ssued shares and the existing  reasonable and matenally complhant with the requirements of
shares In the rauo of 34 66, accordingly £26m has  IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’ and IFRS 13 ‘Fair

been apportioned to the 1ssue of new shares value measurement’
belng recognised as a deduction from the share
premium withih equity The Group audit team performed the full scope audit

procedures on the accounting treatment adopted In respect
We focused on these transactions due to ther one  of the 1PO and related refinancing transactions
off nature, complexity and significance to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The year ended 31 December 2015 1s the first year in respect of which we have audited the annual Financial Statements of the Group and
Parent Company

The scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk our evaluation of maternality and our allocation of performance materality determine our audit scope for each
entity within the Group Taken together, this enables us 1o form an opinicn on the Consolidated Financial Statements We take into account
size, risk profile, the organisation of the Group and effectiveness of Group-wide controls, changes in the business environment and other
factors when assessing the level of work to be performed at each entity

In assessing the nsk of material misstatement to the Group Financial Statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative caverage of
significant accounts in the Financial Statements, of the five reporting components of the Group, we selected four components which
represent the principal business units within the Group All reporting components within the Group are located in the United Kingdom

Of the four components selected, we performed an audit of the complete financial informatien of two components (full scope components’)
which were selected based on therr size or rnisk charactenstics These full scope components comprise the Parent Company and the sole
trading entity within the Group For the remaming two components {specific scope components) which are intermediate holding companies,
we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within each component that we considered had the potenual for the greatest impact on
the significant accounts in the Financial Statements either because of the size of these accounts or their nsk profile

61




The Gym Group ple £ Annual Report and Accounts 2015 € Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members
of The Gym Group plc continued

The reporting components where we performed audit procedures accounted for 100% of the Group’s Revenues, EBITDA pre-exceptional
items and other Income, Loss before tax and Total assets For the current year the full scope components contributed 101% of the Group's
EBITDA pre-exceptional items and other income, {25)% of the Group's Loss before tax, 100% (2014 100%) of the Group’s Revenue and 100%
(2014 100%) of the Group’s Total assets The specific scope components contributed (1% of the Group’s EBITDA pre-exceptional tems and
other iIncome, and 125% of the Group’s Loss before tax None of the Group's Revenue and Total assets related to specific scope components
The audit scope of these components may nect have included testing of all significant accounts of the component but will have contributed to
the coverage of significant tested for the Group

The remaining one companent 1s an ntermediate holding company that represents none of the Group's Revenues, EBITDA pre-exceptional
items and other income, Loss before tax and Total assets In respect of that component we performed other procedures, including enquiries
of management, analytical review, testing of related consolidation journals and intercompany eliminations to respond to any potential risks of
materal misstatement to the Group Financial Statements

Involvement with component teams
All audit work performed for the purposes of the audit was undertaken by the Group audit team

Our application of matenality
We apply the concept of matenalty in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effact of iIdenufied misstatements on the audit and
in forming our audit opinion

Matenality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the
ecanomic decisions of the users of the Financial Statements Matenality provides a bas:s for determining the nature and extent of our
audit procedures

We determined materiality for the Group to be £340,000, which 1s 2% of EBITDA pre-exceptional items and other Income We have used an
earnings based measure as our basis of matenality It was considered inappropnate to calculate matenality using the Group Loss before tax
given that this loss anses primarily from the private equity funding structure of the Group prior to 1ts IPO on the London Stock Exchange on

4 November 2015 and costs related to that IPO Consequently, in the current year we do not consider that such a measure reflects the
continuing performance of the Group EBITDA pre-exceptional tems and other income was selected as the basis of our measure of
materiality on the grounds that is a key performance indicator for the Group and 1s also a key metric used by the Group in the assessment of
the performance of management We also noted that the IPO prospectus together with market and analyst commentary on the performance
of the Group, use EBITDA pre-exceptional items and other income as a key metric We therefore considered EB|TDA pre-exceptional items
and cther income to be the most appropriate performance metric on which to base our materality calculation as we considered that to be
the most relevant performance measure to the stakeholders of the entity

During the course of our audit, we reassessed inmat matenality from an amount of £330,000 based on pre year end forecasts to the amount
indicated abaove ance actual results were avallable
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Parformance materiality
The application of materniality at the individual account or balance level It s set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level the
probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds matenality

On the basis of our nsk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group's overall control environment, our judgement was that
performance matenality was 50% of our planning matenality namely £170,000 We have set performance matenality at this percentage
pnmarily due to this being our first year of auditing the Group and Parent Company Annual Financial Statements

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts 1s undertaken
based on a percentage of total performance maternality The performance matenalty set for each component 1s based on the relative scale
and risk of the component to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the nsk of misstatement at that component In the current year, the
range of performance matenality allocated to components was £34,000 to £170,000

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trvial

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £17,000, which ts set at 5% of
planning matenality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

Wa evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of matenalrty discussed abova and in ight of other
relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion

Scope of the audit of the Financial Statements

An audit involves cbtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the Financial Statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting polictes are appropnate to the Group's and the Parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reascnableness of sigrificant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the
Financial Statements In addimion, we read all the financial and non-financial Information in the Annual Report and Accounts to Identify maternal
inconsistencies with the audrted Financial Statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently materially incorrect based on, or
matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Cirectors’ Responsibility Statement set out on page 58, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair iew Our respaonsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
Financtal Statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter three of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opiniens we have formed

Opinion on other matters prascribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

s the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

« the informaton given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Financial Statements are
prepared 1$ consistent with the Financial Statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

ISAs (UK and lreland) We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, financial and non-financial information We have no exceptions
reporting in the Annual Report is to report

» matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited Financial Statements, or

» apparently materially incorrect based on, or matenally Inconsistent with, our knowledge
of the Group acquired in the course of performing our audit, or

= otherwise misleading

In parucular, we are required to report whether we have identified any inconsistencies
between our knowledge acquired in the course of performing the audit and the Directors
statement that they consider the Annual Report and Accounts teken as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders 1o
assess the entity's performance, business model and strategy, and whether the Annual Report
appropriately addresses those matters that we communicated to the Audit Committee that we
consider should have been disclosed

Companies Act 2006 We are required to report to you if, in our opinion We have no exceptions

reporting » adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns 1o report
adequate for our audit have not been recelved from branches not wisited by us, or

the Parent Company Financial Statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneraton

Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

o certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

s we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Listing Rules review We are required to review We have nc exceptions

requirements o the Directors’ statement in relation 10 going concern and longer-term viability, set outon @ report

page 29, and
e the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's compliance with
the prowisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

Statement on the Directors’ assessment of the principal risks that would threaten the sclvency or liquidity of the entity

ISAs (UK and lreland) We are required to give a statement as to whether we have anything metenal to add or to We have nothing
reporting draw attention to in relation to material to add or to
« the Directors’ confirmation In the Annual Report that they have carmed out a robust draw attention to

assessment of the principal nsks facing the entity, including those that would threaten 1ts
business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity,

the disclosures in the Annual Repert that describe those nsks and explain how they are
being managed or mitigatad,

the Directors’ statement in the Financial Statements about whether they considered it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In preparing themn, and their
denufication of any material uncertainties to the enuty’s ability to continue to do so over a
period of at least 12 menths from the date of approval of the Financial Statements, and

the Directors’ explanation in the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects
of the entity, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be
appropriate, and therr statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the
entity will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
perod of therr assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary qualifications or assumptions

Kelth Jess ‘ﬁ ‘
Senior statutory auditor ﬁ‘& éutf a P

for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Belfast
14 March 2016

Notas

1 The malntenance end integnty of The Gym Group plc websie is the responsibility of the Directors, the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of
these matters and accordingly the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred o the Financial Statements since they were Initially
presented on the website

2 Legslation In the United Kingdom gaverning the preparation and dissemination of Financial Staternents may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Performance matetiality
The apphcation of matenality at the indmdual account or balance level It is set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level the
probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality

On the basls of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group's overall control environment, our judgement was that
performance materiality was 50% of our planning materiality, namely £170,000 We have set performance materiality at this percentage
primarily due to this belng our first year of auditing the Group and Parent Company Annual Financial Statements

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts 1s undertaken
based on a percentage of total performance materiality The performance matenality set for each component is based on the refative scale
and risk of the component to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the risk of misstatement at that component In the current year, the
range of performance materlality allocated to components was £34,000 to £170,000

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £17,000, which is set at 5% of
planning matenality as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reportng on qualitative grounds

We evaluate any uncorrected misstaternents against both the quantitative measures of materlality discussed above and in ight of other
relevant qualitative considerations in forrming our opinion

Scope of the audit of the Financlal Statements

An audit Involves obtalning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the Financial Statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Duectors, and the overall presentation of the
Financial Statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the Annua! Report and Accounts to identify matenal
Incongistencies with the audited Financial Statements and to identify eny information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the Implications for our report

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement set out on page 58, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they give & true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
Financial Statements In accordance with applicable law and Internatlonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report Is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter three of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required 1o state to them inan
auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our aud it work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

« the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and
= the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Financial Statements are
prepared |s consistent with the Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2015

31 Dacembar 31 December

2015 2014
Nate 000 £000
Revenue 4 59,979 45,480
Cost of sales {1,073) (1,040)
Gross profit 58,906 44,440
Admunistration expenses (62,112}  (42,105)
Other income 1,105 -
Operating {loss) / profit 5 {2,701) 2,335
Being
- Group Adjusted EBITDA' 17,016 14,688
- Depreciation 12 {10,907) {7600
— Amortisation 13 {2,308) {2,100)
- Exceptional items and other iIncome 5.6 {6,502) (2,653)
Finance income 9 265 20
Finance costs 10 (9,946) n.797)
Loss before tax (12,382) (9.442)
Tax credit il 909 659
Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (11,473) {(8,783)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive loss attributable to aquity sharaholders (11,473) {8 783)
Earnings per share £ £
Basic and Diluted 7 {019) (018)
Adjusted 7 {0 02) (0 09)

1 Group Adjusted EBITDA Is a non-GAAP metric used by management and is not an IFRS disclosure

The netes on pages 69 to 95 form an integral part of the Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015

31 December 31 December 3! December

2015 2014 2013
Note £'000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 85,237 67,510 51,418
'ntangible assets 13 49,137 50,870 52,738
Deferred tax asset 11 177 - -
Total non-current assets 134,551 118,380 104,156
Current assets
Inventories 14 122 75 138
Trade and other recewvables 15 5,654 4,282 3,060
Cash and cash equivalents 16 2,860 5,576 4,091
Total current assets 8,636 9,933 7,289
Total assets 143,187 128,313 111,445
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 25,546 20,797 14,125
Income taxes payable - 246 -
Borrowings 18 - 3.813 2,363
Total current liabilitles 25,546 24,656 16,488
Non-current llabilltles
Borrowings 18 8,966 70,253 106,195
Provisions 19 232 223 131
Denvative financial instruments 20 - 1,037 177
Deferred tax liabilities i - 559 1,708
Total non-current liabtlities 9,198 72,072 108,211
Total liabilities 34,744 96,728 124,699
Net assets/(liabilities) 108,443 31,585 {13,254)
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 22 12 9 8
Own shares held 22 48 - -
Capital redempuon reserve 22 4 - -
Share premium 22 136,280 48,974 550
Retained deficit 22 {2r901) (17.398) (3,812
Total equity shareholders’ funds/(deficit) 108,443 31,585 (13,254)

The notes on pages 69 to 95 form an integral part of the Financial Statements
These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Drectors on 14 March 2016

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

John Treharne 41/_5—/ Richard Darwin %ﬁ‘/\—\ v

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Company registration number 08528493
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Capitel
Issued  Ownshares redemption Share Retalned
capltal held resarve pramium deficit Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2014 8 - - 550 {13,812) (13,254)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss - - - - {8,783) (8,783)
Waver of Preference share interest - - - - 5,197 5,197
Issue of Ordinary share capital 1 - - 29 - 30
Reclassificaton of Preference shares - - - 48,395 - 48,395
At 31 December 2014 9 - - 48,974 {17,398} 31,585
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss - - - - {(11,473) (11,473)
Share based payments - - - - 1018 1,018
Conversion of Preference share capital into Ordinary share capital 2 - - - - 2
Cancellation of share capital (4) - 4 - - -
Issue and repurchase of share capital - 48 - (48) -
Costs associated with the 1ssue of share capital - - - (2.620) - {2,620)
Issue of Ordinary share capital 5 - - 89,926 - 89,99
At 31 December 2015 12 48 4 136,280 (27,901) 108,443

The notes on pages 69 to 95 form an Integral part of the Financial Statements
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2015

31 December 31 December
L]

2014

Note £000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating {loss) / profit (2,701 2,335
Adjustments for
Other income {1,105} -
Exceptional items 6 7.607 2,653
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 10,907 7.600
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 2,308 2,100
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment a8 39
{Increase) / decrease In Inventories {47) 85
Increase In trade and other receivables (1,372) {1,223)
Increase In trade and other payables 5,669 4,526
Cash generated from operations 21,364 18,095
Tax paid {73) (244)
Interest paid {4,124) {5.726)
Net cash flows from operating activities before exceptional items and other income 17167 12,125
Other Income 1,105 -
Exceptional items {1,001) {2,653)
Net cash flow from operating activitles 1,271 9,472
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment - 1,036
Purchase of praperty, plant and equtpment {27,330} {17.785)
Purchase of iIntangible assets (575) (231
Interest received 16 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (27,889) (16,980)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds of 1Issue of Ordinary shares 89,931 30
Drawdown of bank loans 17,500 1,580
Payment of financing fees (1,067) -
Costs assocliated with IPO {2,620) -
Repayment of bank loans {53,902) -
Repayment of shareholder loans (22,699) -
Repayment of finance leases (13,241) (2.617)
Net cash flows from financing activities 13,902 8,993
Net (decrease) / Increase In cash and cash equivalents (2,716) 1,485
Cash and cash equivalents at | January 5,576 4,091
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2,860 5,576

The notes on pages 69 to 95 form an integral part of the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2015

1 General information

The Gym Group ple fformerly The Gym Group Holdings Limited)
{the Company') and its subsidiaries (‘the Group’) provide low cost,
high quality health and fitness facilues

The Company 1s a public limited company iisted on the premium
listing segment of the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authority
and Is incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom

The registered address of the Company is Woodbridge House,
Woodbndge Meadows, Guildford, Surrey, United Kingdorn, GU1 1BA

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
A summary of the significant accounting policies is set out below
These have been applied consistently in the Financial Statements

Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards {IFRS')
as adepted for use in the EU, International Financial Reparting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC') interpretations and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS The functional currency of each entity in the Group 18
Pounds Sterling The Consohdated Financial Statements are
presented in Pounds Sterling and all velues are rounded to the
nearest thousand Pounds, except where otherwise indicated

Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on

a going concern basis under the historical cost convention as
moedified by the recognition of financial habilities (including dernvative
nstruments) at farr value through the profit and loss

This 1s the Group's first set of Financial Statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS The Group previously prepared 1ts Financial
Statements under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
The Group's deemed transition date to IFRS s 1 January 2014, the
beginning of the first penod presented, and the requirements of
IFRS 1 First-ume Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRS 1) have been applied as of that date IFRS 1 aliows
certain exemptions In the application of particular IFRS to pnor
periods in order to assist companies with the transition process
The exemptions applied are detalled in note 27

Standards Issued not yet affactive

At the date of authorisation of these Financial Statements, the
following new standards and interpretations which have not been
appled in these Financial Statements wera In Issue but not yet
effective, and In some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU

« |AS 16 and |AS 38 amendments — Clanfication of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation {effective 1 January
2016}

» [FAS 11 amendments — Accounting for Acquisitons of Interests in
Joint Operations {effective 1.January 2016)

* |AS 18 and 1AS 41 amendments — Agriculture Bearer Plants
{effective 1 January 2016}

¢ |AS 27 amendments — Equity Methed in Separate Financial
Statements {effective t January 2016)

« IFRS 10 and IAS 28 amendments — Sale or Contnbution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (effective
1 January 2016)

s 1AS 1 amendments — Disclosure Intative (effective 1 January 2018}

s Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle {effective 1 January 20i6)

« [FRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective
1 January 2018}

» IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2018)
» IFRS 16 — Leases (effective 1 January 2019)

With the exception of IFRS 16, the adoption of these Standards and
Interpretations I1s not expected to have a matenal impact on the
Financial Statements of the Group In the penod of intial application
when the relevant standards come into effect IFRS 16 specifies the
recogniion, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring
lessees to recognise assets and habilites for all leases unless the
lease term Is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low
value While the Group continues to assess the detaled impact of
adopting IFRS 16, given significant leasing arrangements within the
Group, the adoption of this standard 1s expected to have a matenal
impact on the Group's Financtal Statements

Going concarn

The Directors have made appropnate enquines and formed a
Judgement at the time of approving the Financial Statements that
there Is a reascnable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis In preparing the Financial Statements

Consolidation

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity controlled, either directly or indirectly, by the
Company Control 1s achieved when the Group 1s exposed, or has
nghts, to vanable returns from its involvement with the Investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee Specifically, the Group controls an investee If and only If
the Group has

s power over the Investee (e existing rights that give 1t the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee),

* exposure, or nghts, to vanable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and

» the ability to use 1ts power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majonty of the voung or similar nghts of
an Investee, the Group conslders all relevant facts and circumstances in !
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including

» the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee,

» nghts ansing from other contractual arrangements, and

= the Group's voting nghts and potential voling rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and clrcumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of contre! Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group cbtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the substdiary Assets,
habilides, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the iIncome statement
from the date the Group gains control and until the date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary

When necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements
of subsidianes to bring thelr accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies All intra-group assets and habilities,
equity, ncome, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

For year ended 31 December 2015

2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for the
acquisiton of subsidianes by the Group The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the far value of the assets given, equity instruments
1ssued and habilites incurred or assumed at the date of exchange
Identifiable assets acquired and hiabilities and contingent labilities
assumed In a business combination are measured mitially at theirr
fair values at the acquisihon date, irespective of the extent of any
minority Interest The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Group's sharae of the identifiable net assets acquired i1s
recorded as goodwill If the cost of acquisiton is less than the farr
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference 1s
recognised directly In the income statement

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In & manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
The chief operating decislon maker, who I1s responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segment,
has been idenufied as the Board of Directors The Group's activities
consist solely of the provision of high qualty health and fitness
facilities within the United Kingdom It (s managed as one entity and
management have consequently determined that there is only one
operating segment

Segment results are measured using earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items and other income
Segment assets are measured at cost less any recognised
impairment Revenue 1s attnbuted to geographical regions based
oh the country of residence of the customer All revenue arises tn
and all non-current assets are located in the United Kingdoem The
accounting policies used for segment reporting reflect those
used for the Group

Ravenue

Revenue, which 1s stated excluding value added tax and other sales
related taxes, I1s measured at the fair value of the consideration
recewvable for goods and services supplied and non-refundable
joining fees

Revenue from upfront annual membership fees are recognised and
spread over the 12 month penod Monthly membership fees paid
upfront are recognised on completion of each month the fee
relates to

Non-refundable joining fees associated with monthly members are
recognised immediately as revenue Provisicns are made for
cancellations and refunds based on the Group's experience cver
the previous 12 months

Revenue frorn the sale of goods s recognised at the pornt of sales
as this reflects the transfer of nsks and rewards of ownership

Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprise costs ansing in connection with the
generation of ancillary revenue, primarily vending machine costs
and tanning bed costs, call centre costs, payment processing costs
and costs ansing from the operation of the Group’s member
management systems

Exceptional items

Items that are maternial in size, unusual or infrequent in nature are
included within operating profit and disclosed separately as
exceptional tems In the income statement
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The separate reporting of exceptional tems, which are presented
as exceptional within the relevant category in the income statement,
helps provide an indication of the Group’s underlying business
performance

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are included at cost less
accumulated depreciauon and any recognised impairment loss

Depreciation 1s calculated to write down the cost of the assets on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful [ives on the following
bases

over term of lease

between three and ten years
between five and eight years
three years

+ Leasehold improvements

s Fixtures, fitings and equipment
* Gym and other equipment

« Computer equipment

The estimated useful hives are renewed at the end of each reperting
period and adjusted \f appropriate The carrying values of tangible
fixed assets are reviewed for Impairment if events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net Identifiable assets of
the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidianies is included in ‘intangible assets’
Goodwill is tested annually for mpairment and carned at cost less
accumulated iImpairment losses Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the enuty sold

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units {CGUS) for the
purpose of impairment testing The allocation 1s made to those
CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose identified
according to operating segment

Brands and customers hsts

Brands and customers hists are initally recognised at histoncal cost,
which s far value f acquired as part of a business combination
Brands and customers lists have finite useful lives and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation Amortsation 1s calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of brands and
customers lists over their estimated useful lives of five and three
years respectively

Contract related

Contract related intangibles relate to the lease premium associated
with a portfolio of leases acquired in a business combination where
the terms of the lease were favourable compared to market terms
and prices These assets have been amortised over the useful lives
of the Indmidual contracts ranging from 14 5 to 27 years respectively

Technology related

Technology related intangible assets are the Intellectual property
nghts represented by the development costs associated with the
development of the bespoke membership and customer related
management systems that provide highly tailored functionality and
integrates closely with website and online payment systems This
asset is amorused over its useful economic life of three years



2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Computer software

Acqurred computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of
the costs Incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software

Certain costs incurred in connection with the development of
software to be used internally or for providing services to customers
are capnalised once a project has progressed beyond a conceptual,
prefiminary stage to that of application development Development
costs that are directly attnbutable to the design and testing of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group
are recognised as intangible assets when the following critena

are met

1t 1s technically feasible to complete the software product so that it
will be available for use,

* management intends to complete the software product and use
or sell i,

there 1s an ability to use or sell the software product,

1t can be demonstrated how the software product will generate
probable future economic benefits,

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the software product are avallable,
and

the expenditure attributable to the software product during its
development can be reliably measured

Costs that qualify for capitalisation include both internal and external
caosts, but are imited to those that are directly related to the specific
project Computer software costs are included at capitalised costs
less aceumulated amortisation and any recognised impairment loss

Amortisation 1s calculated to wnte down the cost of the assetson a
straight line basis over ther estimated useful lives, over a maximum
of three years Useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually and when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired Assets that are
subject to amortlsation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The
recaverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to
sell and value in use Where the asset does not generate cash flows
that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGUs to which the asset belongs For
property, plant and equipment and intangble assets the allocaton
1s made to those CGL units that are expected to benefit from the
asset, that being each trading health and fitness facility For goodwill,
the CGU is deemed to be each chain of hezlth and fitness

facihues acquired

Any impatrment charge 1s recognised in the income statement in
the period in which it occurs Impairrment losses relating to geadwill
cannot be reversed in future penods Where an impairment loss on
other assets, subsequently reverses due to a change In the onginal
estimate, the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount

Strategic
Overvew F!epogn

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and recewables
Loans and receivables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market
They are included in current assets, except for those with matunities
greater than 12 months after the reporting date These are classified
as non-current assets The Group's loans and receivables compnse
trade and other recevables and cash and cash equivalents
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carrned at
amortised cost using the effective interest method Income from
these financial assets I1s calculated on an effective yield basis and
1s recognised In the income statemerit

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial hlabilities comprise trade and other payables,
borrowings and denvative financial liabilives

The Group Initially recognises its financial habiliies at fair value net
of transaction costs where applicable and subsequently they are
measured at amorused cost using the effective interest method
Transaction costs are amortised using the effective interest method
over the matunity of the loan

Borrowlng costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarly take a substantial period of tme to get
ready for therr intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such tme as the assets are substantally ready for their
intended use or sale

Investment income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending ther expenditure on qualifying assets

1s deducted from the borrowing costs of assets eligible

for capitalisation

All other barrowing costs are recognised In the income statement in
the penod in which they are Incurred

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's activities expose it to financial nsks assoctated with
movements In interest rates The Group uses Interest rate hedging
contracts to hedge its Interest rate exposure The use of financial
denvatives 1s governed by the Group's treasury policies, as approved
by the Board The Group does not use dervative financial
instruments for speculative purposes

All dervative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value
an the contract date and are alsc measured at farr value at
subsequent reporting dates

Penslons

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme and
pays contributions to publicly or privately admirustered pension
plans The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contnbutions have been paid The contnbutions are recogrised
as employee benefit expense when they are due
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Leases

Finance leases

Assets funded through finance leases are caprtalised as property,
plant and equipment and are depreciated over therr esumated
useful lives or the lease term, whichever 1s shorter The amount
capitalised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present
value of the minimum lease payments duning the lease term at the
inception of the lease The resulting lease obhigations are included
within labilities net of finance charges Finance costs on finance
leases are charged directly to the iIncome statement on an effective
interest basis

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retaned by the lessor are classihed as operating
leases Payments made under operating leases {(net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease

Lease incentives

Lease incentives primarily include upfront cash payments or
rent-free periods Lease incentives are capitalised and recognised
over the penod of the lease term

Share based payments

Equity-settled share based payments are measured at the: farr value
of the equity instruments at the grant date, which excludes the effect
of non-rarket-based vestng conditons The fair value at the grant
date I1s recognised as an expense on a straight ne basis over the
vesting penod, based on the Group's estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will eventually vest The estimate of the
number of awards likely to vest Is reviewed at each balance sheet
date up to the vesting date at which point the estimate 1s adjusted
to refiect the actual outcome of awards which have vested No
adjustment 1s made o tha farr value after the vestng date even if
the awards are forfeited or not exercised

Inventones
Inventonies are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Trade and other recelvables
Trade and other recewvables consist mamnly of prepayments and
receivables relating to property leases

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, short-term
deposits held on call with banks and other short-term highly iquid
investments with onginal maturities of three months or less

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabiliues if payment s due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating eycle of the business if longer) If not, they are presented
as non-current habiliies

Trade payables are recognised initially at farr value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method
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Current taxation

Current tax assets and habiliues for the current and prior penods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Income tax relating to stems recognised in comprehensive income or
directly in equity 1s recognised in comprehensive income or equity
and not In the Income statement

Deferred taxation

Deferred income tax 1s provided using the liability method on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financtal reporting purposes, with the following exceptions

where the temporary difference anses from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or hability in a transacticn that Is not a
business combination that at the tme of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
Investments In subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and 1t 1s probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, and

deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which
deducuble temporary differences, carned forward tax credits

or tax losses can be utlised

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets Is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and amended to the extent that it1s
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utihsed

The amount of deferred tax provided I1s based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilittes Deferred income tax assets and liabiities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the penod
when the asset Is realised or the hability 1s settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date

Pravisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 1t 1s probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required 1o settle the obligauon using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and risks specific to the obligation The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time 1s recognised as a finance cost




3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions

The preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the vatue
at which certain assets and habiliies are held at the balance shest
date and also the amounts of revenue and expenditure recorded in
the peniod The Directors believe the accounting policies chosen

are appropriate to the circumstances and that the estimates,
judgements and assurnptons involved In its financial reporting

are reasonable

Accounting estimates made by the Group's management are based
on information avallable to management at the time each estimate
1s made Accordingly, actual outcomes may differ matenally from
current expectations under different assumptions and condiions
The estimates and assumptons for which there 1s a significant sk
of a material adjustment to the Financial Statements within the next
financial year are set out below

Cnucal judgements in applying the Group's accounting pelicies
Depreciation and amortisation

Judgement 1s used In assessing useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets The assets are
depreciated or amortised over their estimated useful lives to ther
residual values

Goodwill impairment

The Group I1s required to test, on an annual basis, whether gocdwall
has suffered any impairment based on the recoverable amount of its
CGUs The recoverable amount I1s determined based on value in use
calculations The use of this method requires the estmation of future
cash flows and the determination of a pre-tax discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of the cash flows More information
including carrying values is included in note 13

Prowvisions

Provtsions have been made for dilapidations in respect of leased
premises These provisions are estimates, In particular the
assumptions relating to restorauon expenses, and the actual costs
and timing of future cash flows are dependent on future events
Any difference between expectations and the actual future hiability
will be accounted for In the penod when such determination Is
made Further management have determined that in the majority
of cases that hkelhood of a labiity ansing s remate In the majonty
of instances as the Group enjoy secunty of tenure as tenant and
therefore are unlikely to give up a site where 1itis trading profitably
However, If circumstances indicate otherwise the Group will
recognise an appropriate provision Detalls of provisions are

set out in note 19

Income taxes

The Group recagnises expected habilities for tax based on an
estimation of the likely taxes due, which requires significant
Judgement as to the ultimate tax determination of certain iterms
Where the actual hability ansing from these 1ssues differs from these
estimates, such differences will have an impact on income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the penod when such determinatucn is
made Detall of the tax charge and deferred tax are set outin note 11

Strategic Financial
Overvew Report
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Determining carrying values of intangible assets idenufied

in business combinations

Valuauon of separable intangible assets identified on business
combinattons dunng the penod requires management to make
assumptions and estimates regarding the expected future cash
generation or replacement cost of the intangibles rdentified
Management employed the use of external valuation services to
facilitate this exercise Detalls of the intangible assets identfied are
set out In note 26

Lease classification

The Group 1s required to assess whether operating leases te which
the Group Is party have the charactenistics of finance leases in which
case they are capitalsed within property, plant and equipment and
a lease liability recorded In order to do this management consider a
numbser of indicators which require management to make estimates
as follows

» useful expected economic life,
» implicit interest rate under the lease, and
« present value of future cash flows under the lease

Share based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
staff by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
date at which they are granted Estimating fair value for share
based payment transactions requlres determination of the most
appropriate valuation model, which 1s dependent on the terms and
conditons of the grant Judgements are applied In relaton to
estimations of the number of options that will vest and of the farr
value of the options granted to staff Estmates of farr value are made
using a widely recognised share option value madel and are
referred to third party experts where necessary Judgement is
applied in determining the assumptions input into the share option
value model Refer to note 23 for further detalls
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4, Revenue
An analysis of revenue by service or preduct is as follows 2015 2014
£000 £000
Membership Income 59,400 44,993
COther income 579 487
59,979 45,480
5 Operating loss / profit
Operating loss / profit 1s stated after charging / {crediing) 2015 o4
£000 £000
Other income {1,105) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10,907 7,600
Amortisation of intangible assets {included in administration expenses) 2,308 2,100
Operating lease rentals 11,186 7781
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment a8 39
Cost of inventory recogmsed as an expense 197 225
Auditors' remuneration
Fees payable for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 40 6
Fees payable for other sarvices
Audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 50 37
Tax comphance services - 25
Tax advisory services 3 -
Reporting accountant services n relation to IPO 883 -
Other non-audit services In relation to IPO 42 -
Corporate finance services 126 -
1,144 68
The amounts above for 2015 relate to Ernst & Young LLP, with the comparative figures in 2014 relating to Grant Thornton UK LLP
Other income recelved In the year of £1,105,000 (2014 £nil} relates to a payment received on the surrender of a lease
6 Exceptional tems 2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000
Costs in relation to IPO 5731 -
Share based payment costs associated with IPO 1,018 -
Exploration of strategic options 809 -
Costs 1n relation to aborted merger with Pure Gym 49 1,850
Gym relocation - 703
7,607 2,653

An additional £2,620,000 of exceptional costs associated with the 1ssue of shara capital as part of the IPO have been recognised directly

tn reserves

7 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attnibutable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number

of Ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year

As the Company ssued shares and changed its capital structure on IPQ, the number of shares in the prior penod has been adjusted

to match the post restructuring position such that the figures remain comparable

Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by adjusung the weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential Ordinary shares During the current and prior year the Group had no convertible financial instruments, options or other

dilutive instruments
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2015 2014
Loss for the year £'000 {11,473) {8,783)
Basic and diluted weighted average number of shares 60,485,605 48802414
Basic and diluted earnings per share £ {019) {018)
Ad|usted earnings per share 1s based on profit for the year before exceptional items, amortisation and therr associated tax effect
2015 2014
£000 £'000
Loss for the year (11,473) {8,783)
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,308 2,100
Other income (1,108) -
Exceptional administration expenses 7,607 2,653
Excepticnal finance costs 1,623 -
Tax effect of amortisation and exceptional items (87) 422)
Adjusted earnings {1,107) (4,452)
Basic weighted average number of shares 60,485,605 48,802,414
Adjusted earnings per share £ (002) {009)
8 Employee information 2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Wages and salarnes 7,367 4,942
Social secunty costs 899 503
Employers' pension costs 153 35
8,419 5,480
The average number of employees, including Directors, durtng the year was 2015 2014
Numbar Number
Operational 143 109
Administration 50 30
183 139
9 Finance income 2015 2014
£000 £000
Bank interest receivable 16 20
Fair value gains on denvative financial instruments 249 -
265 20
10 Finance costs 2015 014
£000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts 4,950 4,937
Shareholder loans 1,809 1,809
Preference share interest - 2,533
Finance leases and hire purchase contracts 1,12 1,073
Unwinding of discount 9 3
Amortisation of financing fees 443 492
Exceptional finance costs 1,623 -
Fanr value losses on denvative financial instruments - 860
9,946 1,797

Exceptional finance costs compnse the write-off of £1,290,000 of outstanding capitahsed financing fees and interest incurred on the

repayment of finance lease creditors of £333,000 {see note 18)
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11 Taxation

The major components of taxation are

a) Tax on profit

2015 2014

£'000 £'000
Current income tax
Current tax on profits for the year - 246
Adjustments in respect of prior years {173) 244
Total current Income tax {173) 490
Deterred tax
Origination and reversal of temparary differences {ro00) (628)
Change In tax rates {91) 44
Adjustments in respect of prior years 55 (565)
Total deferred tax {7136) (1,149)
Tax credit in the Income Statement {309) {659)
b) Reconciliation of tax credit
The tax on the Group's loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the weighted average rate applicable to
{osses of the Group as follows 2015 2014

£000 £000
Loss before tax (12,382) (9,442)
Tax calculation at standard rate of corporation tax of 20 25% {2014 21 49%) {2,507) (2,029)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 786 1,647
Exceptional IPO costs not deductible 1,023 -
Change In tax rates (a3) 44
Adjustments In respect of prior years {118} (3210

(909) (659)
c) Deferred tax
During the year the Group recognised the following deferred tax assets and habilites

Accelerated
capital Intangible
allowances Losses assets Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000

At 1 January 2013 (1,386) 1,683 - 1285 422
Prior year adjustment (77} 213 - (30) 6
Acquisitions - - (1,898) - (1,898)
Recognised in iIncome statement (414) (315) 248 (29) (510)
Change in deferred tax rate 264 (198) 215 (9) 272
At 31 December 2013 {1,713} 1,383 {1,435) 57 {1,708)
Prior year adjustment 526 39 - - 565
Recognised In Income statement (581) 829 393 (57 584
At 31 December 2014 (1,768) 2,251 {1,042) - {559)
Prior year adjustment {55) - - - (55)
Recognised In Income statement 1,545 {1.245) 400 - 700
Change in deferred tax rate at - - - 91
At 31 December 2015 (187) 1,006 (642) - 177

d) Unrecognised tax losses

The Group has tax losses of £nil (2014 £nil} that are avallable indefinitely for offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which the

losses arose

e) Change in tax rate

The Finance Act 2013 reduced the main rate of corporation to 21% from 1 April 2014 to 20% wath effect from 1 Apnl 2015 Further future rate
reductions have been announced as part of the 2015 Budget to 19% from 1 Apnl 2017 and 18% from 1 Apnl 2020 Therefore a blended tax rate
of 20 25% (2014 21 49%) has been applied in calculating the income tax charge Deferred tax assets and habiltes have been measured at

the rate expected to be In effect when the deferred tax asset or liability reverses
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures Gym and
Leasehold fittings and other Computer
improvements equipment equipment equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At1 January 2013 32780 2,265 15,276 272 50,593
Additions 9,080 818 4,264 95 14,257
Disposals (19) - {280) 2 (300
At 3t December 2013 41,841 3,083 19,260 365 64,549
Additions 15,978 1,054 7,526 178 24,736
Disposals (1,067) (104) {1129} 00 (2.310)
At 31 December 2014 56,752 4,033 258657 533 86,975
Additions 17,364 549 9,428 391 28,732
Disposals (89) (i3) (298) - {400)
At 31 December 2015 74,027 5,869 34,787 924 115,307
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013 2,276 523 4,496 137 7432
Charge for the year 1,961 524 3,41 83 5979
Disposals - - (280) - (280)
At 31 December 2013 4,237 1,047 7827 220 13,131
Charge for the year 2,602 672 4,225 101 7,600
Disposals (233) (47) {980} (6) {1,266)
At 31 December 2014 6,606 1,672 10,872 315 19,465
Charge for the year 5,745 656 4,329 177 10,907
Disposals (42) (7) (253) - (302)
At 31 Decembaer 2015 12,309 2,321 14,948 492 30,070
Net book value
At 3t December 2013 37,604 2,036 11,633 145 51,418
At 31 December 2014 50,145 2,361 14,785 218 67,510
At 31 December 2015 61,718 3,248 19,839 432 85,237

‘The net book value of tangible fixed assets ncludes an amount of £nil (2014 £9,995,000, 2013 £8,484,000) In respect of assets held under
finance leases The related depreciation charge on these assets for the period was £1,472,000 (2014 £2,964,000, 2013 £2,691,000)
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13, Intangible assets

Computer
Goadwlll Brand Customer list  Technology Contract software Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2013 - - - - - 495 485
Additions 45,188 2,219 3,550 778 1,709 148 53,590
At 31 December 2013 45,188 2,219 3,550 776 1,709 643 54,085
Additions - - - - - 237 237
Disposals - - - - - (5) (5)
At 31 December 2014 45,188 2.219 3,550 776 1,708 875 54,317
Additions - - - - - 575 575
At 31 Dacember 2015 45,188 2,219 3,550 776 1,709 1,450 54,892
Accumulated amortisation
At January 2013 - - - - - 156 156
Charge for the year - 244 651 142 43 n 1,191
At 31 December 2013 - 244 651 142 43 267 1,347
Charge for the year - 444 1,183 259 7 137 2,100
At 31 December 2014 - 688 1,834 401 120 404 3,447
Charge for the year - 448 1,209 265 78 209 2,209
Accelerated write offs - - - - - 99 99
At 31 December 2015 - 1,136 3,043 666 198 712 5,755
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 45,188 1,875 2,889 634 1,666 376 52,738
At 31 Dacember 2014 45,188 1,531 1,716 375 1,589 471 50,870
At 31 Decembar 2015 45,188 1,083 507 10 1,511 738 49,137

Impairment test for goodwall
The goodwill balance relates to the Group's acquisition of The Gym Limited dunng 2013 {note 28) and is allocated to the respective group of
CGUs that represent that acquisition In this instance the CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated and the level at which it is monitored 1s
deemed 1o be the chain of heaith and fithess facilities acquired Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated for

impairment testing purposes accordingly as follows

2015 2014 2013
£000 £ 500 £ 000
The Gym Limited 45,188 45,188 45,188

This represents the lowest level within the Group at which gaodwill 1Is monitored for internal management purposes The recoverable amount
of the CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
the Board caovering a three to five year penod Cash flows beyond this period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated in the
key assumptions The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations are as follows

2015 2014 2013
Discount rate 17% 200% 20 0%
Growth rate 30% 2 5% 25%

Discount rates reflect management's estimate of return on capital employed required in each business This is the benchmark used by
management to assess operating performance and to evaluate future capital investment proposals These discount rates are derived from
the Group's weighted average cost of capital Changes in the discount rates over the years are calculated with reference to latest market
assumptions for the nisk free rate, equity market nisk premium and the cost of debt

Growth rates in subscrnptions rates and increases applied to costs reflect the effect of Inflationary prices at 2% Membership growth for
mature gyms has been modelled on a site by site basis

Goodwill 1s tested for impalrment on at least an annual basis, or more frequently if events or changes In circumstance indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired In the years under review management's valus n use calculations have indicated no ragquirement to impair

Sansitnaty to changes in assumptions

The estimates of the recoverable amounts associated with this CGU affords significant head room over the carrying value, conseguently
only significant adverse changes In these key assumptions would cause the Group to recognise an impairment loss
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14 Inventories 2015 2014 203
£000 £000 £000

Finlshed goods and goods for resale 122 75 138
15 Trade and other receivables 2015 2014 013
£'000 £000 £000

Other recevables 394 474 102
Income and other taxes nr 151 -
Prepayments and accrued income 4,543 3657 2,958
5,654 4,282 3,060

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents earn Interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates Short-term deposits are made for varying penods
of between one day and one month depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective

short-term deposit rates

17 Trade and other payables

2015 2014 2013
£000 £000 €000
Trade payables 2,689 4,516 1,830
Soctal secunty and other taxes 6 4 475
Other creditors - 1 230
Lease incenuves and renta! Increases 13,872 9,737 739
Accruals and deferred income 8,979 6,539 4,199
25,546 20,797 14,125
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are payable on average within 22 days (2014 30 days, 2013 30 days)
18 Borrowmgs 2015 2014 2013
£'000 £000 £000
Nen-current
Bank facility A 10,000 - -
Former bank facility A {principal and PIK interest) - 34,813 31,786
Former bank facllity B {principal and PIK interest) - 9,800 1,010
Finance leases - 6,555 5675
Shareholder loans and accrued interest - 20,785 18,892
Preference share capital and accrued interast - - 50,924
Loan arrangement fees {1,034) (1,700} {2,192)
8,966 70,253 106,185
Current
Finance leases - 3,613 2,363

The Group's bank borrowings are secured by way of fixed and fleating charges over the Group's assets

On 12 November 2015 the Group refinanced its former bank facllities and shareholder loans using the net proceeds of its [PQ

HSBC and Barclays bank facility

On 12 November 2015 the Group entered Into a new five year bullet repayment facility with HSBC and Barclays The facility compnises a
£10 0 million term loan (facility A) for the purposes of refinancing the Group's finance leases, a £25 0 million term loan {'facility B') to fund
acquisitons and capital expenditure, and a £5 0 million revolving credit facility Interest s charged at LIBOR plus a 2 5% margin

At 31 December 2015, facility A was fully drawn and facility B and the revolving credit facility were undrawn
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18 Borrowings {continued)

Proventus term loan undar the £30 0 million bank facility (Former bank facility A’)

0On 13 June 2013 the Group entered into a five year, £30 0 millon bullet repayment credit facility to finance the Group's acquisition of The Gym
Group Midcol Limited The variable interest rate payable under the facility is LIBOR plus margin plus mandatory costs and 15 repayable in
June 2018 Margin means the PIK Margin (10%} prior to the second anniversary and thereafter the Cash Margin (9%) Interest on the Cash
Margin s payable at the end of each interest period Interest on the PIK Margin 1s accrued and compounded on each anniversary

The facility was repaid on 12 November 2015

Proventus term loan under the £20 0 millien bank facility {Former bank facility 8°)

On 13 June 2013 the Group entered into a five year, £20 0 millon amorusing credt facility to part finance the Group’s acquisition of The Gym
Group Midcol Limited and site development capital expenditure The variable interest rate payable under the facility ts LIBOR plus margin
plus mandatory costs and 1s repayable in June 2018 Margin means the rate equal to the aggregate of the Cash Margin (6%) and the PIK
Margin {4%) Interest en the Cash Margin i1s payable at the end of each interest period Interest on the PIK Margtn 1s accrued and compounded
on each anniversary

The facility was repaid an 12 November 2015

HSBC £3 0 million Revolving credit facility

On 13 June 2013 the Group entered Into a five year, £3 0 milkon multi-currency revolving credn facility to provide financing for general
corporate and working capital requirements The vanable interes: rate payable under the facility Is LIBOR plus margin plus mandatory costs
Each drawing under the facility is repayable at the end of the interest peniod and subject to the terms of the facility agreement these amounts
are avallable to be redrawn Margin 1s defined as the Cash Margin {4 5%) Interest on the Cash Margin Is payable at the end of each interest
penod All amounts cutstanding under the facility are repayable in June 2018 Ancillary facilities are available under the revolving credit facility
to provide financing for overdraft, short term loans and guarantees/bondingfletter of credit This may constitute all or part of the revolving
credit facility from time to time

The faciity was cancelled on 12 November 2015

Tarm loan under the £171 millien 10% Fixed Rate Unsacured Midce Loan Notes 2023 (*Shareholdar loans’)

On 13 June 20t3 the Group entered into a 10 year, £171 millon credit facility to part finance the Group’s acquisition of The Gym Limited Interest
15 accrued on the loan at the rate of 10% per annum and compounded on each anniversary Interest is then also payable on the PIK notes at

a rate of 10% per annum by the 1ssue of further PIK notes The shareholder loans are repayable in full in June 2023

The loans were repaid on 12 Novemlber 20i5

Torm loan under the £0 9 million 10% Fixed Rate Unsecured Topco Loan Notes 2023 ('Shareholder loans’)

On 13 June 20t3 the Group entered mnto a 10 year, £0 9 millon credit facility to part finance the Group's acquisition of The Gym Lirmited Interest
15 accruad on the loan at the rate of 10% per annum and compounded on each anniversary Interest is then also payable on the PIK notes at

a rate of 10% per annum by the issue of further PIK notes The sharehcolder ioans are repayable in full in June 2023

The loans were repaid on 12 November 20i5

Preference share capital £50 9 million {(Preference share capital’)

On 14 May 2013 Preference shares were 1ssued These shares attract a ixed cumulative preferential dmdend at an annual rate of 10%,
compounded annually on each anniversary This accrued dividend becomes due and payable immediately prior to Sale or Listing but does
not ctherwise become payable wathout the consent of holders of 75% of the Preference and Roll-out Preference shares On 23 July 2014 the
terms of these shares was altered such that the dvidend was only payable at the discretton of the Board of Directors as such they were
reclassified from debt to equity Interest of £5 Im accrued on these shares up to 23 July 2014 warved by shareholders has been credited
directly to equity

Covaenhants
The Group is currently subject to financial covenants in relatton to Facility A, B and the Revolving Credit Facility

In prior penods the Group was subject to financial covenants in relation to Former facility A, B and the previous Revolving Credit Facility

The current covenants relate to leverage and interest cover The previous covenants related to cash flow cover, interest cover, leverage,
minimum levels of EBITDA and maximum levels of capital expenditure

The Group has been in comphance with all of the covenants during the periods under review Breach of the covenants following a cure
penod would render any outstanding berrowings subject to immediate settlement
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18 Borrowings (contnued)
Available facilities
The total borrowng faciliies available to the Group are 2015 2014 oo
£000 £000 £000
Facility A 10,000 - -
Facility B 25,000 — -
Former facility A - 30,000 30,000
Former facilny B - 20,000 20,000
Revolving credit facility 5,000 3,000 3,000
Shareholder loans - 18,000 18,000
40,000 71,000 71,000
Facilities undrawn and availlable are 2015 014 2013
£000 £000 £000
Facility A - - -
Faciity B 25,000 - -
Former facility A - - -
Former facility B - 10,500 19,000
Revolving credit facility 5,000 3,000 3,000
Shareholder lcans - — —
30,000 13,500 22,000
Loan matunty 2015 2014 2013
£000 £000 £'000
Within one year - 3,613 2,363
Between one and two years - 6,795 2,704
Between two and five years 10,000 42,673 33,574
After five years - 22,484 72308
10,000 75,565 10,750
19. Prowvisions bilapidations
£000
At 1 January 2013 4
New provisions 89
Unwinding of discount 1
At 31 December 2013 131
New provisions 89
Unwinding of discount 3
At 31 December 2014 223
Unwinding of discount o]
At 31 December 2015 232
20 Financlal instruments
201§ 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000
Interest rate cap - - -
Interest rate swap - 1,037 177
- 1,037 177
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20 Financial instruments (continued)
The Group has entered into the following Interest rate contracts with the following terms

Minimum notionel Maxirmum notuonal
Trade date Type Fixed rate amount amount Start date End date
22 August 2013 CAP 181% 5,161,000 5161,000 31 October 2013 31 October 2017
22 August 2013 SWAP 181% 24,089,000 46,452,200 31 October 2013 31 October 2017

On 12 November 2015 the interest rate swap was broken as part of the refinancing activity described in note 18

The farr value of a derivative financial instrument 15 split between current and non-current depending en the remaining matunty of the
denvative contract and its contractual cash flows The interest rate instruments are designated as fair value through profit or loss at inital
recognition The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s the fair value of the dervative as a financial asset

Fair valua hierarchy
IFRS 7 requires fair value measurements 1o be recognised using a farr value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in the
value measurements

Level 1 1nputs are quoted prices in active markets
Level 2 a valuation that uses observable inputs for the asset or hability other than quoted prices in active marksts
Level 3 a valuation using unobservablae inputs te a valuation technique

There were no transfers between levels throughout the periods under review

Fair values

Set out below 1s a comparison of carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments The farr values of financial denvatives
and borrowings has been calculated by discounting the future cash flows at prevailing market interest rates and Is categonsed as a Level 2
valuation The fair values of the other financial instruments closely approximates their carrying values

2015 2014 2013
Carrying Carrying Carrying

value Falr value value Fair value value Farr vglye

£'000 000 £ 000 £000 £000 €000
Held at amortised cost
Trade and other recevables 1,11 1,11 625 625 102 102
Cash and cash equivalents 2,860 2,860 5,576 5,576 4,081 4,091
Trade and other payables (1,674  (11,674) (n060)  (11,060) (6.734) (6,734)
Borrowings {10,000) (10,000) (75,566) (76,053) {(110,750) {(110,750)
Held at fair value
Derwvative financial instruments - - {(1,037) (1,037) (77) 77

21 Capntal and financial nsk management

Capital dsk managemaent

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital In order to
mantain or adjust capital the Group may adjust the amount of dvidends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, 1ssue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt

Consistent with others In the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio This ratio 1s caleulated as net debt divided
by total capital Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents Total capital 1s calculated as equity as shown in the
consclidated balance sheet plus net debt. The geanng rauos for the penods under review are as follows

2015 2014 2013

£000 £000 £000
Total borrowings 10,000 75,566 10,750
Less cash and cash equivalents {2,860) {5,576) (4,091}
Net debt 7,140 69,990 106,659
Total equity 136,292 48,983 558
Total capital 143,432 118,973 107,217
Geartng ratio 5% 598% 99%
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21 Capital and financial nsk management {continued)
Financial nsk management
The Group has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial Instruments

» Market nsk
s Liquidity nsk
e Credit nsk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above nisks, and the Group's objectives, policies and procedures
for measuring and managing nsk The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and eversight of the Group's risk
management framework

Market nsk

Market nsk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market pnces Key
market nsks affecting the Group include interest rate nsk Financial instruments affected by market nisk include berrowings, deposits and
denvative financial instruments

The sensitivity analfysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013 The analysts has been prepared
on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives are all constant

Interest rate nsk

Interest rate nsk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a inancial iInstrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primanly to the Group's long-term debt obligations with
floating interest rates

The Group manages Its interest rate nsk by entening into interest rate denvatives when 1t 1s considered appropnate to do so by management
At 31 December 2015 all of the Group's borrowings were at floating rates of interest At 31 Decermnber 2014 after taking mnto account the effect of
interest rate swaps, 100% of Group's borrowings were at fixed rates of interest

The Group Is not expecting any reduction in Interest rates over the next 12 months The effect on profit after tax of a notional 0 5% movement
in LIBOR Is as follows

2015 2014 2003
£000 £000 £000
Change In interest rates of 0 5% 50 10 3z

Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due Ultimate responsibility for hquidity risk
management rests with the Board of Directors The Group manages hquidity nsk by continuously monitening forecast and actual cash flows,
matching the matunty profiles of financial assets and operaticnal liabilities and by maintaining adequate cash reserves

The table below summarnes the matunty profile of the Group s financial labiliues

2015

Mare than
Withiniyear 1to2years 2to5years S yoars Total
£'000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 11,674 - - - 11,674
Borrowings 307 307 10,895 - 11,509
11,981 307 10,895 - 23,183
2014

More than
withiniyear 1w2ysers 2105 years Syears Tota!
£000 £000 €000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables 1,060 - - - 11,060
Borrowings 6,970 8,020 57,477 36,440 m,807
Dernvative financial Instruments 650 537 278 - 1,465
18,680 8,857 57,755 39,440 124,432
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21 Capital and financial nsk management {continued)

Ligudity risk {continued}

quidity 2012
More than
withiniyear 1to2years 2to5years 5yeara Totel
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables 6,734 - - - 6,734
Borrowings 3,749 5,380 61,811 145,477 216,417
Derivative financial instruments 481 650 814 - 1,945
10,964 6,030 62,625 145,477 225,086
Cradit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables and investments The Group's credit nisk is low
as it has hmtted trade receivables The credit nisk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments 1s imited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-raung agencies The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk,

with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers

22 Issued share capital and reserves

2015 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000
Allotted. called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each 12 - -
A Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 4 4
C1 Ordinary shares of €0 04 each - 4 4
C2 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 1 -
Preference shares of £1 each - - 48,394
12 9 48,402
Preference shares reclassified - - {48 384)
12 g 8
Own shares held
Deferred Crdinary shares of £1 each 48 - -
The number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue Is as follows
2015 2014 2013
Qrdinary shares of €0 0001 each 128,105,275 - -
Deferred Crdinary shares of £1 each 48,050 - -
Preference shares of £1 each - — 48,393,939
Preference shares of £0 00001 each - 48,393,938 -
A Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 385,575 385,575
B Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 20,486 20,486
Cl Ordinary shares of £004 each - 87,642 87,642
C2 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 87,963 57,963
C3 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 6,895 6,885
C4 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 50 50
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22. Issued share capital and reserves (continued)
The movements in shares occurred on following dates set cut below 205 2014 2013
Nurnbar Number Number

13 June 2013
Reclassification of Preference shares of £1 each - - 48,393,839

Issue of A Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 385,575
Issue of B Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 20,4886
Issue of C1 Ordinary shares of £0 04 each - - 87,642
Issue of C2 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 57,8963
Issue of C3 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 6,895
Issue of C4 Ordinary shares of £1 each - - 50
12 August 2014

Issue of C2 Crdinary shares of £0 0f each - 30,000 -
3 March 2015

Issue of C2 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 5,350 - -
22 Apnl 2015

Issue of C2 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 2,150 - -
12 November 2015

Issued

C2 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 10,000 - -
GCrdinary shares of £0 0001 each 46,126,596 - -
Deferred Ordinary shares of £1 each 48,000 - -
Share split

C1 Ordinary shares of £0 04 each (87,642) - -
C1 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 87,642 - -
C1 Deferred Ordinary shares of £0 03 each 87,642 - —
Bonus tssue

Preference shares of £0 00001 each 3,073,711,461 - -
Re-designation

A Ordinary shares of £0 01 each (385,575) - -
A Ordinary shares of €0 0001 each 38,557,500 - -
B Ordinary shares of £0 01 each {20,486) - -
B Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each 2,048,600 - -
C1 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each {87,642) - -
C1 Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each 4,448,500 - -
C1 Deferredd Orchnary shares of €0 0001 each 4,315,700 - -
C2 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each {105,463) - -
C2 Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each 5,353,051 - -
C2 Deferred Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each 5,193,249 - -
C3 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each (6,895) - -
C3 Ordinary shares of £0 000t each 349,974 - -
C3 Deferred Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each 339,526 - -
C4 Ordinary shares of £1 each (50) - -
Deferred Ordinary shares of £1 each 50 - -
Preferred shares of £0 000001 each {3,122,105,400) - -
Preferred shares of £0 000t each 31,221,054 - -
Cancaellation

C1 Deferred Crdinary shares of £0 0001 each (4,315,700) - —
C2 Deterred Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each (5,193,249) - -
C3 Deferred Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each (339,526) - -
C1 Deferred Ordinary shares of £003 each (87,642) - -
Balance carrled forward 79,170,775 30,000 48,952,550
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22 Issued share capital and reserves (continued)

2015 2014 203
Number Number Number
Balance brought forward 79,170,775 30,000 48,952,550
Re-designation
A Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each (38,557,500)
8 Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each {2,048,600}
C1 Crdinary shares of £0 0001 each (4,448,500}
C2 Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each {5,353,051)
C3 Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each {349,974)
Preferred shares of £0 0001 each (31,221,054)
Ovdinary shares of £0 0001 each 81,978,679
79,170,775 30,000 48,852,550

On 12 November 2015 the Company's Ordinary shares were admitted to the London Stock Exchange's main market for listed secunties
The Company made an Intial Public Offering of 46,113,007 Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each at a price of 195 pence per share

Prior to 23 July 2014

The A Ordinary shares, B Ordinary shares and C Ordinary shares ranked pari passu among themselves, but constituted separate classes of
shares All shares carred equal voting nghts with the exception of holders of C3 Ordinary shares who had five votes in respect of each share
provided that the A Ordinary class of shares never had less than 82 38% of the total voting nghts

Preference shares or Roll-out Preference shares ranked ahead of the Ordinary shares for all purposes The Preference shares and Roll-out
Preference shares accrued a fixed cumulative preferantal dividend at an annual rate of 10% and 12% respectively of the Issue Price per share,
compounded annually on each anniversary This accrued dividend would become due and payable immedately prior to Sale or Listing but
otherwise would not become payable without the consent of holders of 75% of the Preference and Roll-out Preference shares

©On the return of capital on iquidation or otherwise, the surplus assets of the Company would be applied in the following order

» Each Preference share and Roll-out Preference share holder would receive 100% of the Issue Pnce thereof together with the aggregate
amount of any accruals and/or unpaid amounts of dividend
+ £1in aggregate to all holders of Deferred shares

The balance would be distributed prorata amongst each holder of A Ordinary shares, B Ordinary shares and C1, C2 and C3 Ordinary shares,
subject to allocating 38 38% of the amounts allocated to halders of €1, C2 and C3 Ordinary shares to holders of A and B Ordinary shares

As a result of the repayment terms attaching to the Preference shares and Rolfl-out Preference shares these instruments were treated as
debt instruments

Post 23 July 2014
The Articles of Association of the Company were amended on 23 July 2014 in respect of the repayment of the fixed preferential dwidend on
the Preference and Roll-out Preference shares as follows

‘All aceruals of Preference share and Roll-cut Preference share dividend shall become payable at the sole discretion of the Board'

As a result of the change in repayment terms attaching to the Preference shares and Roll-out Preference shares these instruments were
reclassified from debt to equity

The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve in equity
Own shares held and capital redemption reserve
These reserves arose when the Company repurchased 48,050 Deferred Ordinary shares of £1 each on 12 November 2015 The shares

constitute separate classes of shares but carry the same rnights as Ordinary shares

Share premium
Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value

Retained earnings / deficit
Are the accumulated net gains and losses of the Group since inception
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During the year ended 31 December 2015 the Group operated The Gym Group Senior Management Share Option Plan The Group operated

no share based payment plans in the year ended 31 December 2014

On & November 2015 share options were granted over 10,000 C2 Ordinary shares under The Gym Group Senior Management Share Option
Plan The exercise price was £1 per C2 Ordinary share The share options were exercisable immediately prior to the Company being admitted

to the Official List of the London Stock Exchange and were exercised on 12 November 2015

These shares were subsequently converted into 507,579 Ordinary shares and 492,421 Deferred C2 Ordinary shares on 12 November 2015 as

described in note 22 The Deferred C2 Ordinary shares were repurchased and cancelled

As the share options were granted and exercised at a ume near to the admission of the Company’s shares on the Londen Stock Exchange's
main market for isted secunues, the fair value at grant date 1s considered to be represented by the closing price on the day of admission less

the exercise price

The exercise price has been calculated as £10,000 received on exercise divided by 507,579 Ordinary shares granted

2015
Number of Ordinary share options granted and exercised 507,579
Fair value at grant date 200 5p
Exercise price 197p

A share based payment charge of £1,018,000 has been recognised in the income statement

24. Commitments and contingencies
Operating lease commitments

The Group has entered into leases on commercial real estate These leases have an average outstanding life of 14 6 years (2014 15 6 years)
with no renewal option included in the contracts There are no restrictions placed on the Group by entering into these leases

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December, analysed by the period in which they fall due are

as follows 2015 2014 2013
£000 2000 £000

Within one year 10,053 7,075 5,210
Between one and two years 1,334 8,690 6,109
Between two and five years 35,904 30,852 19,633
Greater than five years 128,025 15,767 89,126
185,316 162,384 120,078

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts together with the present value of the net minimum lease

payments are, as follows

2015 2014 2013

£000 £'000 £000

Within ane year - 4,644 3,296
Between one and two years - 3,841 3,054
Between two and five years - 3,567 3723
Greater than five years - - -
- 12,052 10,073

Future finance charges - (1,884) (2,035)
Present value - 10,168 8,038
The present value of finance lease labilives 1s as follows 2015 2014 —
£000 £000 £000

Within one year - 3,613 2,363
Between one and two years - 3,267 2,704
Between two and five years - 3,288 2,971
Greater than five years - - -
- 10,168 8,038

Capital commitmants 2015 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000

Contracted for but not provided 2,342 3,304 3,952

87




The Gym Group plc € Annual Report and Accounts 2015 € Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For year ended 31 December 2015

25 Related party transactions

Identification of related parties

The ultimate holding company of the Group 1s The Gym Group plc a company Incorporated 1n the United Kingdom Until 12 November 2015
the Company’s controlling shareholders were Phoemix Equity Partners 2010 L P and Phoenix Equity Partners 2010 GP L P (‘the Phoentx
Funds’), which are managed by Phoenix Equity Partners 2010 Guernsey Limited Phoenix Equity Nominees Limited holds the shares on behalf
of the shareholders Phoenix Equity Partners Limited 1s an adwiser to Phoenix Equity Partners 2010 Guernsey Limited After 12 November 2015
the Company has no controlling shareholder

Until 12 November 2015 Bridges Community Development Ventures Fund H, which is managed by Bridges ventures LLF. was the beneficial
minerity shareholder in The Gym Group Midcol Limited Bridges Community Ventures Nominees Limited holds the shares on behalf of
the shareholders

Closewall Limited 1s a company under the control of a family member of a Director, J Treharne, and provides services to the Group as
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Heport

C Treharne 1s a relation of a Director, J Treharne, and provides services to the Group

The subsidianes of the Group are as follows

Cauntry Holding
Company Principal activity of ingorporation %
The Gym Group Midco! Limited Holding Company United Kingdom 100%
The Gym Group Midco2 Limited Holding Company United Kingdom 100%
The Gym Group Operations Limited Holding Company United Kingdom 100%
The Gym Limited Fitness Operator United Kingdom 100%

Transactions with related partles
The following table provides the total amounts owed to related parties for the relevant financial penod

2015 2014 2013

2000 £000 £000

Phoenix Funds - 44,008 44,539
Bridges Ventures LLP - 21,822 22,109
Key management - 3,349 3,509
Closewall Limited 49 467 353
C Treharne - 1 1
49 69,647 70,51

Opening balance 69,647 70,51 20,261
New loan notes - - 18,000
Loan note interest 1,809 1,803 1,555
Preference shares - - 48,394
Dividends - {2,665) 2,665
Purchases 7,635 5,409 417
Repayments (79,042) (5.41) (24,481
49 69,647 70,511

Representng

Borrowings (note 18) - 20,785 69,916
Share premium - 48,394 -
Trade and other payables 49 468 595

49 69,647 70,51

The following table prowides the total amounits of purchases from related parties for the relevant financial penod

2015 2014 2013

£'000 £'000 £000

Phoenix Equity Partners {Guernsey) Limited - 1,308 3,088
Phoenix Equity Partners Limisted - - 611
Bridges Ventures LLP - 627 1,965
Key management - - 159
Closewall Limited 7,627 5,270 2,511
C Treharne 8 8 3
Total 7,635 7.213 8,337
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25. Related party transactions {continued)
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Financial

Stataments)

The purchases from related partes are made at normal market prnces Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured, interest free and
settlement occurs in cash There have been no guarantees provided for any related party payables Loans from related parties carry interest
at10% Payments to Closewall Limited and C Treharne are in respect of the provision of services and goods respectively

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management includes the Directors as identified in the Directors’ Report and members of the Group's senlor management tearn The

compensation pard or payable to key management for employee services 1s shown below

2015 2014 2013

£'000 £000 £000
Remuneration 1,160 665 612
Company contributions to defined contnbution pension scheme 3t 16 19
Share based payment charge 305 - -

1,486 681 631

At the year end £116,000 (2014 £nil) was owed to the Directors In respect of year end bonus
Information regarding the highest paid Director 1s shown in the Report of the Remuneration Committee
26 Business combinations
On 13 June 2013 the Group purchased the entire 1ssued share capital of The Gym Limited for a consideration of £52,363,000

Book Falr value Fair

value adustments value

£'000 £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 45,952 - 45,952
Intangible assets - 8,289 8,289
Inventories a2 - 32
Trade and other recevables 2,056 - 2,086
Cash and cash equivalents 3,986 - 3,986
Trade and other payables (15,770} - (15,770)
Bank loans (34,199) - {34,199)
Deferred tax (1,273) {1,898) (3.171)
Net assets acquired 784 6,391 7175
Gaoodwilll 45,188
Total censideration 52,363
Consideration compnses ¢ 000
Cash consideration paid 28,160
Shareholder loans 24,000
Deferred consideration 203
Total conslderation 52,363

Goodwill represents the premium assoclated with advantageous site locations, petential growth opportunities offered by the low cost

business model, profitability and assembled workforce
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27. Transition to IFRS

This is the first tme that the Group has presented its financial infarmation under IFRS The previously presented financial information, for the
year ended 31 December 2014, was presented under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principle (UK GAAP") The date of transition to IFRS

was 1 January 2014

IFRS 1 offers a number of exemptions from full retrospective application of applicable standards on transition to IFRS It has been concluded

that no exemptions are applicable to the Group

Set out below are the UK GAAP to IFRS equity and profit reconcilations for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014

Reconciliation of equity at 31 December 2013

Other IFRS
UK GAAP  adjustments transiticn IFRS
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment {a).aN{cl)omnh) 44,584 326 6,508 51,418
Intangible assets {b0),a) ). 53,130 662 (1,054) 52,738
Deferred tax asset {b)ig) - - — -
Total non-current assets 97,714 a88 5,454 104,156
Current assets
Inventenes 138 - - 138
Trade and other receivables {a){d) 4,007 - {947} 3,060
Cash and short-term deposits 4,091 - - 4,091
Total current assets 8,236 - (947) 7,289
Total assets 105,950 aas 4,507 11,445
Current liabilities
Borrowings {a) 441 - 1922 2,363
Trade and other payables {d).(e) 7.404 1,692 5,029 14,125
Current taxes payable {g) - - - -
Total current liabilities 7,845 1,892 6,951 16,488
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings {a) 101,808 - 4,389 106,195
Deferred tax habilives {BiM{g) 1,030 862 18 1,708
Provisions {h) - - 13 131
Financial instruments {f) - - 77 177
Total non-current habilities 102,836 662 4,713 108,21
Total ltabilities 10,681 2.354 11,664 124,699
Net assets (4.731) {1,366} (7157)  (13,254)
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 8 - - 8
Share premium 550 - - 550
Retained earnings (al{b)(c).ld)le)f).(g)  (5.289) {1,366) (7.157) (13,812
Total equity {4,731) {1,366) (7157)  (13,254)
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27 Transition to IFRS (continued)
Reconciliation of equity at 31 December 2014

Other IFRS
UK GAARP  adjustments transition IFRS

Nota £000 £000 £000 £'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment (& (),(m),{eli),(m),(h) 63,042 201 4,267 67,510
Intangible assets (B0 MkcO)imn) 49,452 662 756 50,870
Deferred tax asset {b)(q) - - - -
Total non-current assets 112,454 863 5,023 118,380
Current assets
Inventories 75 - - 75
Trade and other recevables {a){d) 5,417 - (1,135) 4,282
Cash and short-term deposits 5,576 - - 5576
Total current assets 11,068 - (1,135) 9,933
Total assets 123,562 863 3,888 128,313
Current habilities
Borrowings (a) 1,553 - 2,060 3,613
Trade and other payables (d).(e) 1,577 1,967 7,253 20,797
Current taxes payable (@) 246 - - 246
Total current liabllities 13,378 1,967 9,313 24,656
Non-current habihities
Borrowings (a) 67,930 - 2,323 70,253
Deferred tax habilities (bli)lg) 1,821 724 1,086) 559
Provisions (h) - - 223 223
Financial instruments {f) - - 1,037 1,037
Total non-current llabilives 69,75t 724 1,597 72,072
Total liabilities 83,127 2.691 10,910 96,728
Nat asseats 40,435 {1,828) (7,022) 31,585
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 9 - - 9
Share premiurm 48,974 - - 48,974
Retained earnings {a)(b)(c)(d) {e) (f)lg)  (8,548) {1,828) {7.022) (17,398)
Total equity 40,435 {1,828) {7.022) 31,585

Notes to the reconciliations of equity
{a) {I) IAS 17 Leases
The Group reclassified leases previously treated as operating leases to finance leases as they satisfied the recognition cntena outlined
under IAS 17 This resulted 1n the following impact

2014 2013

£000 £000

Property, plant and equipment — recognition 4,535 6,759
Trade and cther receivables — reversal of inial down-payment treated as prepayment (617) {947}
Borrowings (current) — recogninton of finance lease hability (2,060} (,922)
Borrowings (non-current) — recognitton of finance lease hability (2,323) {4,389)
Net reduction in net assets resulting from 1AS 17 (465) (499)

() Other adjustments —~ Property, plant and equipment
Adjustment in respect to assets under construction not Invoiced

Recogniton of assets under construction not invoiced 201 326
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27. Transition to IFRS (continued)

Notes to the reconciliations of equity {continued)

(b) ()} IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Intangible assets
IFRS 3 Business Combinations requires the Group to make an assessment of the faw value of any 1denufiable Intangible assets that exist
at the date of acqursition and to recognise these separately from goodwill The recognition of these intangible assets gives nse to a
deferred tax hability at the date of acquisiton which will unwind as the intangible assets are amortised

2014 2013

£000 £000
Transacton fees expensed on acquisition (4,272) (4,272)
Recognition of identifiable intangible assets {8,254) (8,254)
Deferred tax recognised on acquisition 1,888 1,898
Net reduction in carrying value of goodwill (10,628) {10,628)
Increase in other intangible assets 8,254 B,254
Net impact on Intang ble assets {2,374) (2,374)

(it UK GAAP restatement
Adjustrment in respect of deferred tax in the pre-acquisition penod which had been omitted from the acquisiion balance sheet in
calculating goodwill

Recognition of iIdentifiable intangibles on acquisition 662 662
Other adjustments 62 62
724 724

(c) 1AS 38 Intangible Assets
() Amortisation of Intangible assets
Under |AS 38 Intangible Assets, goodwill Is treated as an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life and 1s not amortised Therefore
ameartisation previously recogrised under UK GAAP 1s wnitten back In addition, the intangible assets recogrnised in (a} have indefinite
useful ives and give nise to amortisation

2014 203

£000 £000

Write back of cumulative amaortsation 5,702 2,024
Amortisation of iIntangible assets recognised {3,044) {1,081}
Net increase resulting from amortisation under |1AS 38 2,658 943

() Software and software development
Under |AS 38 costs that meet the recognition critenia such as software and costs associated with website design are reclassified from
property, plant and equipment to intangible assets

Increase In other intangible assets 472 377
Net impact on intangible assets 3,130 1,320
2014 2013

£000 £000

Property, plant and equipment — website reclassification (472) (377}

{d) SIC 15 Lease Incentives and 1AS 17 Leases
Under UK GAAR, lease incentives are recognised over the period to the first rent review Under SIC 15 lease incentives are recognised over
the lease term Where leases contain fixed or determinable rent increases, these form part of the minimum lease payments which are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term under 1IAS 17

2014 2013
£000 2000
Net impact on trade and other payables 7,252 5,030

92




Strategic

Financial
Report

Statements,

27 Transition to IFRS {conunued)

Notes to the reconciliations of equity {continued)
In addition the Group received an enhanced lease incentive on the termination and commencement of a lease with the same landlord after a
dispute with another tenant which was recognised as income in full dunng 2014 by the creation of a prepayment on the balance sheet which
was then amortised IFRS requires that this is treated in the same manner as all other lease incentives and as such the prepayment has been
derecognised The impact on trade and other raceivables 1s as follows

2014 2013
£000 £000
Net impact on trade and other receivables (517) -

(e) Revenue recognition — other adjustment
Under UK GAAP and IFRS revenue 1s recognised once all performance condittons have been satisfied, or by reference to the stage of
completion The Group previcusly recognised 100% of membership on receipt of payment irrespective of the stage of completion at the
end of the reporting pencd, and balances have been restated Deferred income therefore arises as follows

2014 2013
£000 £000
Net impact on trade and other payables 1,766 1,366

{f) Financial instruments
Under IFRS the Group are required to recognise financial denvauves at farr value The Group did not qualify for hedge accounting under
I1AS 39 Financial instruments and as such all movements in fair value are recognised in the income statement

2014 2013
£000 £000
Financial dervatives 1,037 177

{g) Income taxes
Other than the deferred tax arising on the recognition of separately dentfiable intangibles there are income and deferred tax effects
ansing on recogrition of the IFRS adjustments The impact of taxes payable and deferred tax labilies are as follows

2014 2013

£000 £000
Deferred tax — recognmiuocn of IFRS adjustments (3,884) {1,882)
Deferred tax — recognition of intangible assets 1,898 1,898
Net impact on deferred tax (1,9886) 16

(h} Provisions
The Group has an obligation to return commercial property that has been leased in a specified condition at the end of the contract term
Under IFRS the Group has 10 recognise the cost as a discounted hability The amount 1s also included as part of the cost of the asset
being dismantled and depreciated accordingly The net mpact s as follows

2014 2013
£000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 205 126
Provisions (223) {131)
Reconciliation of iIncome statement for the year ended 31 December 2014 Other IFRS
UK GAAP  adjustments transition IFRS
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue {d) 45,880 (400) - 45,480
Cost of sales (1,040) - - {1,040)
Gross profit 44,840 (400) - 44,440
Administration expenses {a)(b)c){g) (41,863) - {242)  (42)05)
Operating profit 2,977 {400) {242) 2,335
Finance costs {a)(e).(g) (4,979) (5197 {1.621) n,797)
Finance income 20 - - 20
Loss before tax (1,982) (5,597) (1,863) (8,442)
Tax charge H {1,282) {62) 2,003 659
Loss for the year attributable to the equity shareholders {3,264) {5,659) 140 (8,783)
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27. Transition to IFRS (continued)

Notes to the income statement reconciliation

{a) IAS 17 Leases
The Group reclassified leases previously treated as operatng leases to finance leases as they satisfied the recognition critena outined
under lAS 17

2014

£000
Operating lease rentals - reversal {(3,017)
Depreciation 2,224
Net impact on administration expenses (793)
Finance costs — finance lease interest 758

{b) IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Intangible assets
Under IAS 38 Intangible Assets, goodwill 1s treated as an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life and 1s not amortised Therefore
amortisation previously recognised under UK GAAP is written back In additon the intangible assets recagnised in {a} of the recanciliation
of equity have indefinite useful lives and give rise to amortisation

2014

£000
Write back of amortisation of goodwill (3.678)
Amortisation of intangible assets recognised on acquisition 1,963
Net impact on administration expenses {1,715

{c) SIC 15 Lease Incentives and IAS 17 Leases
Under UK GAAP, lease incentives are recognised over the period to the first rent review Under SIC 15 lease incentives are recognised over
the lease term Where leases contain fixed or determinable rent increases, these form part of the minimum lease payments and are

recognised on a straight-fine basis over the lease term under [AS 17
2014
£000

Net impact on administration expenses 2740

{d) Revenue recognition — other adjustment
Under UK GAAP and IFRS revenue 1s recognised once all performance conditions have been satusfied, or by reference to the stage of
completion The Group previously recogrised 100% of membership on receipt of payment irespective of the stage of completion at the

end of the reporting period, and balances have been restated 2014

£000

Net impact of revenue (400)

(e) Financial instruments
() Denvative financial instruments
Under IFRS the Group are required to recognise financial denvatives at farr value The Group did not quakfy for hedge accounting under

1AS 39 Financial Instruments and as such all movernents in farr value are recognised in the iIncome statement 2014

£000

Fair value movements In financial denvative 860

(1) Other adjustment
As aresult a change in the Articles of Association the shareholders waved the nght to the Preference share interest payable relating to
the current and previous accounting period This should have been treated as a contrnibution from the sharehalders

Walver of Preference share interest {5,197)
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27 Transition to IFRS (continued)
Notes to the income statement reconciliation (continued)
{f) Income Taxes
() IFRS adjustments
Other than the deferred tax ansing on the recognition of separately identfiable intangibles there are income and deferred tax effects
arising on recognition of the IFRS adjustments

2014

£000

Deferred tax 1,336

Income taxes 667

Net impact on tax charge 2,003
() Other adjustments

Deferred tax charge 62

(g)Provisicns
The Group has an obligation to return commerciat property that has been leased in a specified condition at the end of the contract term
Under IFRS the Group has to recogruse the cost as a discounted liability The amount 1s also included as part of the cost of the asset
being dismantled and depreciated accordingly The net impact on profit is as follows

2014

£000
Finance cost — unwinding of discount 3
Admiristration expenses — depreciation 10

Cash flow statement

The move from UK GAAP to IFRS does not change any of the cash flows of the Group The IFRS cash flow format s similar to UK GAAP but
presents various cash flows in different categories and 1n a different order from the UK GAAP cash flow statement All of the IFRS accounting
adjustments net out within cash generated from operations except for the intangible assets reclassificanon and the inclusion of ligud
Investments with a matunty of less than three months on acquisitton, together with related exchange adjustments, within cash and cash
equivalents under IFRS
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Company Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015

31 December
31 Decambear 2014 3t December
2015 Aestated 2013
Note £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments In subsidiaries 5 132,330 49,838 49,838
Deferred tax asset - 5 5
Total non-current assets 132,330 49,843 49,843
Current assets
Trade and other recewables B 13,454 7,966 1,742
Cash and cash equivalents 15 - -
Total current assets 13,469 7,966 1,742
Total assats 145,799 57,809 51,585
Current |iabilities
Trade and other payables 7 817 9 49
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables i - 146 2,75
Borrowings 8 8,966 908 48,302
Total non-current habilities 8,968 1,054 52,017
Total Labilities 9,583 1,173 52,066
Net assets / (liabilities) 136,216 56,636 {481)
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 9 12 9 8
Own shares held 9 48 - -
Capital redemption reserve 4 - -
Share premium 136,280 48,974 550
Retained {defcit) / earnings (128) 7,653 (1,039)
Total equity shareholders’ funds / (deficit) 136,216 56,636 (a81)

These Financial Statemenits were approved by the Board of Directers on 14 March 2016
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

John Treharne Richard Darwin
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Company registraticn number 08528493

The notes on pages 98 to 102 form part of these Financial Statements
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Capital
lested  Own shares  redempuon Shara Retained

capital held reserve pramicm 848ININGS Toral

£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

At 1 January 2014 8 - - 550 {1,039) (481
Profit for the year - - - - 3,495 3,495
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Waiver of Preference share interest - - - - 5197 5197
Preference share reclassification - - - 48,395 - 48,395
Issue of Ordinary shares 1 - - 29 - 30
At 31 December 2014 restated g - - 48,974 7653 56,636
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income - - - - (13) {13)
Waver of Preference share dividend receivable - - - - {8,738) (8,738)
Capital contnibution to subsichanes - - - - 1.018 1,018
Conversion of Preference share capital into Ordinary share capital 2 - - - - 2
Repurchase and cancellation of share capital (4} — 4 - - -
Issue and repurchase of Ordinary share capntal - 48 - - {48) -
Costs assoclated with the 1ssue of share capital - - - (2,620} - (2,620)
Issue of Ordinary share capital 5 — — 89,926 - 89,931
At 31 December 2015 12 48 4 136,280 {128) 136,218

The notes on pages 98 to 102 form part of these Financial Statements
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2015

1 General information
The Gym Group Holdings Limited {the Company’) 1s incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom with company number 08528493
The registered address of the Company 1s Woodbridge Heuse, Woodbndge Meadows Guildford, Surrey, United Kingdom, G 1BA

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
A summary of the signihcant accounting policies 1s set out below These have been applied consistently in the financial period

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework {FRS 101') and with thase parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under FRS101 The Financial
Statements of the Company are included In the Company's consolidated Financial Statements which can be obtaned from the Company’s
registered office

Thes 1s the Company’s first set of Financial Statements prepared in accordance with FRS 101 The previously presented financial infermation,
for the year ended 31 December 2014, was presented under the previous UK GAAP

The Campany's deemed transition date to FRS 101 1s 1 January 2014, the beginning of the first period presented, and the requirements of
IFRS 1 have been applied as of that date IFRS 1 offers a number of exemptions from full retrospective applicaton of applicable standards
on transition to IFRS It has been concluded that no exemptions are applicable to the Company

No matenal adjustments have ansen as a result of the transitien to FRS 101 As such the disclosures required by IFRS | cancerning the
transition to FRS 101 are not applicable

However, in preparing these Financial Statements the Directors have recognised the following restatements by way of prior year adjustment

* Interest of £5,197,000 accrued up to 23 July 2014 on the Preference shares prior to the change in their terms {see note 9) and waived by the
sharehclders at that ume was onginally credited against interest payable and similar cests in the year ended 31 December 2014 The
Directors have reassessed that given the circumstances relating to this waiver that this was a transaction with the shareholders and should
be credited directly to reserves While net assets of the Company are unaffected, the profit before and after tax of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2014 has been reduced by £5,197,000, and

» a deferred tax charge of £657,000 recognised in the 2014 Financial Statements has subsequently been identified by the Directors as
incorrectly recognised The reversal of this charge has reduced the 2014 tax charge to £nil, increased profits after tax for the year ended
31 December 2014 by £657,000, with a corresponding decrease in the deferred tax hability at 31 December 2014 and an increase in net
assets of that amount

The Cempany meets the defimtion of a qualfying entity under FRS 101 and has therefore taken advantage of the following disclosure
exernptions available to it under FRS 101

the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments,

the requirements of paragraph 97 of IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement,

the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,

the requirements of paragraphs 10{d) 1! and 134 t0 136 of I1AS | Presentation of Financial Statements,

the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errers,

the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, and

the requirements in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party ransactions entered into between two or more members of
a Group, provided that any subsldiary which 1s a party to the wansacuon is wholly owned by such a member

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with FRS 101 requires the use of certamn critical accountng estimates it also requires
management to exercise Its judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies The areas involving a hegher degree of
judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Financial Statements are disclosed in note 3
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Going concern

The Directors have made appropnate enquines and formed a judgement at the ume of approving the Financial Statements that there is a
reascnable expectaton that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this
reason the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Financial Statements

Investments

On initial recognition, investments in subsichanes are recorded at cost, which 1s the fair value of the consideration paid Where consideration
15 paid by way of shares, tha excess of fair value of the shares over nominal value of those shares s recorded in share prermum Investments
in subsidianes are reviewed for impairment at each balance shest date with any impairment charged to the income statement

Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financral assets as loans and receivables Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market They are included in current assets The Company's loans and recevables
comprise trade and cther recevables and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are
carned at amortised cost using the effective interest method Income from these financial assets 1s calculated on an effective yield basis and
1s recognised in the iIncome statement

Financial llabilities
The Company imitially recogmises its financial habilities at far value and subsequently they are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method

Current taxation

Current tax assets and habilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Income tax relating to items recognised in comprehensive income or directly in equity i1s recognised in comprehensive income or equity and
not in the Income statement

Caferred taxation
Deferred income tax is provided using the lizbility method on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and habilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, with the following exceptions

= where the temporary difference arnses from the inital recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability 1n a transaction that 1s not a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the iming of the reversal of the temparary
differences can be controlled and it i1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, and

« deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available agamst which deductible
temporary differences, carned forward tax credits or tax losses can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred iIncome tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and amended to the extent that it1s probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised

The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and

liabidites Deferred income tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the perod when the asset s
realised or the lability 1s settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

For year ended 31 December 2015

3 Signihcant accounting jJudgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Financial Statements In accaordance with IFRS requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the value
at which certain assets and liabilites are held at the balance sheet date and also the amounts of revenue and expenditure recorded in the
penod The Directors believe the accounting policies chosen are approprate to the circumstances and that the estimates, jJudgements and
assumptions involved 1n its financial reporting are reasonable

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
There are no critical estimates or assumptions within these Financial Statements

4 Profit of the Parent Company
As permitted by s408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company’s profit and loss account 1s not presented as part of these accounts
The Parent Company s Joss for the year amounted to £13,000 (2014 profit of £3,496,000 restated)

5 Investments in subsidianes

£000
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 49,838
Capntahisation of intercompany loans 81,474
Capital contribution to subsidiaries 1,008
At 31 December 2015 132,330

On 22 December 2015 The Gym Group Midceol Limited 1ssued share capital to the Company in constderation for the extinguishing of
Intercompany debt

Dunng the year share options In the Company's shares were granted to employees of The Gym Group Operations Limited and The Gym
Lumited Corresponding capital contributions have been recognised within investments in subsidiaries

The Company's subsidiary undertakings are shown in note 25 to the Consalidated Financial Statements

6 Trade and other recewvables

2013 2014 2013
£'000 £000 £000

Incorme and other taxes 574 2 -
Prepayments and accrued income - 7 7
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 12,880 7.957 1,735
13,454 7,966 1,742

Interest of £8,738,000 was accrued in relation to fixed Preference share dwvidends as an intercompany receivable from The Gym Group
Midco! Limited up to 22 December 2015 On 22 December 2015 the Articles of Association of The Gym Group Midcol Limited were amended
such that all accruals of Preference share dividends became payalsle at the discretion of the Directors of the Company The de-recognition of
this amount has been recognised directly within reserves

7 Trade and other payables

2015 2014 2013
£0060 £000 £009

Trade payables 14 10 44
Social secunty and other taxes 6 - -
Accruals and deferred income 497 a 2,720
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - 101 -
817 ne 2,764

Due in less than one year B17 19 49
Due in more than one year - — 2,715
617 19 2,764
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8 Borrowings 2015 2014 2013
£'000 €000 £000

Bank facility A 10,000 - -
Shareholder loans and accrued interest - 908 908
Preference share capital - - 48,394
Loan arrangement fees (1,034) — —
8,966 908 49 302

The Company's bank borrowings are secured by way of fixed and floating charges over the Group's assets

Bank facility A

On 12 November 2015 the Company entered into a five year loan facility with HSBC and Barclays The facility compnises a £10 0 million term
loan (faciity A) for the purposes of refinancing the Group's finance leases, a £25 0 million term loan {facility B'} to fund acqutsiuons and
capital expenditure, and a £5 0 million revalving credit facility Interest is charged at LIBOR plus a 2 5% margin

Total borrowing facilities avallable to the Company under the facility are £400 million

At 31 December 2015, facility A was fully drawn and facility B and the revolving credn facility were undrawn, giving £30 O rrulion of undrawn and

available facilities

9 Issued capital and reserves

2015 2014 2013
£'000 £000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each 12 - -
A Ordinary shares of 01 each - 4 4
C1 Ordinary shares of £0 04 each - 4 4
C2 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 1 -
Prefarence shares of £1 each - - 48,394
12 9 48,402
Preference shares reclassified - - {48,394)
12 9 8
Own shares held
Deferred Ordinary shares of £1 each 48 - -
The number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s as follows
2015 2014 2013
Qrdinary shares of £0 0001 each 128,105,275 - -
Deferred shares of £1 each 48,050 - -
Preference shares of £1 each - ~ 48,393,839
Preference shares of £0 000001 each - 48,393939 -
A Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 385,575 385,575
B Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 20,486 20,486
C1 Ordinary shares of £0 04 each - 87,642 87,642
C2 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 87,963 87,963
C3 Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - 6,895 6,895
C4 QOrchinary shares of £0 01 each - 50 50

Refer to note 22 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for details of mevements in share capital

On 12 November 2015 the Company's Ordinary shares were admitted to the London Stock Exchange’s main market for listed secunities
The Company made an Initial Public Offering of 48,113,007 Ordinary shares of £0 0001 each at a price of 195 pence per share
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

For year ended 31 December 2015

9 Issued capital and reserves {continued}

Prior to 23 July 2014

The A Ordinary shares, B Ordinary shares and C Ordinary shares ranked pan passu among themselves, but constituted separate classes of
shares All shares carned equal voting nghts with the exception of holders of C3 Ordinary shares who had five votes in respect of each share
provided that the A Ordinary class of shares never had less than 82 38% of the total voting nights

Preference shares or Roll-out Preference shares ranked ahead of the Ordinary shares for all purposes The Preference shares and Roll-out
Preference shares accrued a fixed cumulative preferential dvidend at an annual rate of 10% and 12% respectively of the Issue Price per share,
compounded annually on each anniversary This acerued dvidend would become due and payable immediately prior to Sale or Listing but
otherwise would not become payable without the consent of holders of 75% of the Preference and Roll-out Preference shares

On the return of capital on hquidation or otherwise, the surplus assets of the Company would be applied in the following order

e each Preference share and Roll-out Preference share holder would receive 100% of the Issue Price thereof together with the aggregate
amount of any accruals and/or unpaid amounts of dividend, and
¢ £1in aggregated to all holders of Deferred shares

The balance would be distrbuted pro rata amongst each holder of A Ordinary shares, B Ordinary shares and C1, C2 and C2 Qrdinary shares,
subject to allocating 39 38% of the amounts allocated to holders of Cl, C2 and C3 Ordinary shares to holders of A and B Ordinary shares

As a result of the repayment terms attaching to the Preference shares and Roll-out Preference shares these instruments were treated as debt
Instruments

Post 23 July 2014
The Articles of Association of the Company were amended on 23 July 2014 in respect of the repayment of the fixed preferential dividend on
the Preference and Roll-out Preference shares as follows

‘All accruals of Preference share and Roll-out Preference share dividend shall become payable at the sole discretion of the board'

As a result of the change In repayment terms attaching to the Preference shares and Roll-out Preference shares these instruments were
reclassified from debt to equity

The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve In equity

Own shares held and capital redemption reserve
These reserves arose when the Company repurchased 48,050 Deferred shares of £1 each on 12 November 2015

Share premium
Amount subscribed for share capital In excess of nominal value

Retained earnings
Are the accumulated net gains and losses of the Group since incepuon
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Four Year Record

For year ended 31 December 2015

The following table sets out a summary of selected audited key financtal information and key performance indicators for the business

2015 2014 2013 2012

£ 000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 59,979 45,480 35,734 22,264
Group Adjusted EBITDA 17,016 14,688 1,752 6,000
Group Ad|usted EBITDA before Pre-Opening Costs 19,681 16,668 12,886 7615
Group Operating Cash Flow 18,616 16,514 14,751 9,624
Operating Cash Flow Conversion 109 4% H2 4% 125 5% 160 4%
Expansionary Capital Expenditure 28,230 20,335 14,058 21,645
Net Debt 7140 49,205 36,743 18,979
Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA 0.42x 335x 31x 316x
Group Adjusted earnings {1,107) {4,452) (3,551) (958)
Adjusted earnings per share £ {0 a2} (009) 013) {0 04)
Total number of gyms (number) 74 55 40 32
Number of members (000) 376 283 225 166
Revenue per member per month {£) 14 08 1398 14 06 1378
Mature gyms in operation {number) 40 32 16 10
Mature Gymn Site EBITDA 18,828 16,244 9,505 6,041

I The Gym Group plc acquired centrol of The Gym Limited en 13 June 2013 Before this date the Group did not canstitute a single legal group. Prior to the acquisition
combined financial informatlon has been prepared on a basis thet aggregates the results, cash flows, assets and llabilities of each the companies constituting the Group
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